


TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business ..............................................................................................................................................................................................6

HKScan in brief..............................................................................................................................................................................6

Market areas............................................................................................................................................................................8

Oper ating envir onment ......................................................................................................................................................10

Graphs...................................................................................................................................................................................14

CEO's review ..............................................................................................................................................................................18

Strategy .......................................................................................................................................................................................21

Corpor ate r esponsibility ..............................................................................................................................................................24

Value chain .................................................................................................................................................................................24

Corpor ate responsibility a t HKScan........................................................................................................................................25

Economic responsibility ......................................................................................................................................................27

Social responsibility .............................................................................................................................................................30

Responsible pr oducts ...................................................................................................................................................31

Employee wellbeing .....................................................................................................................................................34

Responsible sour cing ....................................................................................................................................................40

Animal he alth and welfar e..................................................................................................................................................43

Environment .........................................................................................................................................................................46

Energy efficiency............................................................................................................................................................47

Greenhouse gas emissions ..........................................................................................................................................49

Water use and wastewater ...........................................................................................................................................53

Material ef ficiency ..........................................................................................................................................................56

Environmental work a t farms .......................................................................................................................................61

Goals and impr ovements ...................................................................................................................................................63

Stakeholders ...............................................................................................................................................................................66

Financials .........................................................................................................................................................................................72

Repor t of the Board of Dir ectors ..............................................................................................................................................72

Five years in figures.............................................................................................................................................................85

Calculation of financial indica tors......................................................................................................................................87

Financial statements ..................................................................................................................................................................89

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 2



Consolida ted income sta tement for 1 J anuaryÐ31 December......................................................................................89

Consolida ted statement of compr ehensive income 1 J anuaryÐ31 December ...........................................................91

Consolida ted balance sheet a t 31 December .................................................................................................................92

Consolida ted cash flow statement ....................................................................................................................................94

Statement of changes in consolida ted equity .................................................................................................................96

Notes to the financial sta tements ......................................................................................................................................97

Notes to the income sta tement .................................................................................................................................112

1. Business segments............................................................................................................................................112

2. Other oper ating income ...................................................................................................................................115

3. Materials and services.......................................................................................................................................115

4. Employee benefit e xpenses.............................................................................................................................116

5. Depreciation and impairment .........................................................................................................................120

6. Other oper ating e xpenses ...............................................................................................................................121

7. Financial income and e xpenses ......................................................................................................................122

8. Income taxes......................................................................................................................................................123

9. Earnings per share ............................................................................................................................................124

Notes to the balance sheet ........................................................................................................................................126

10. Items affecting compar ability ........................................................................................................................126

11. Intangible assets ..............................................................................................................................................126

12. Goodwill ...........................................................................................................................................................127

13. Tangible assets ................................................................................................................................................129

14. Business combinations ...................................................................................................................................131

15. Shares in associates ........................................................................................................................................133

16. Financial assets and liabilities ........................................................................................................................134

17. Deferred tax assets and liabilities .................................................................................................................136

18. Inventories .......................................................................................................................................................138

19. Trade and other curr ent receivables .............................................................................................................138

20. Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................................................................................140

21. Notes relating to equity ..................................................................................................................................140

22. Pension obliga tions.........................................................................................................................................142

23. Provisions .........................................................................................................................................................145

24. Liabilities ..........................................................................................................................................................145

25. Financial risk management ............................................................................................................................149

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 3



26. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities .................................................................................................157

27. Other le ases.....................................................................................................................................................160

28. Conditional assets and liabilities and pur chase commitments .................................................................161

29. Related par ty transactions..............................................................................................................................162

30. Events after the repor ting da te......................................................................................................................165

Parent company financial sta tements ....................................................................................................................................166

Parent company income sta tement for 1 J anuaryÐ31 December ...............................................................................166

Parent company balance sheet, 31 December ..............................................................................................................167

Parent company cash flow sta tement ..............................................................................................................................169

Notes to the par ent company's financial sta tements ....................................................................................................170

Notes to the par ent company's income sta tement .................................................................................................174

Notes 1Ð7................................................................................................................................................................174

Notes to the par ent company's balance sheet ........................................................................................................178

8. Non-curr ent assets ............................................................................................................................................178

9. Non-curr ent receivables ...................................................................................................................................180

10. Current receivables .........................................................................................................................................181

11. Equity ................................................................................................................................................................182

12. Accumula ted appr opria tions .........................................................................................................................183

13. Statutory pr ovisions ........................................................................................................................................184

14. Non-curr ent liabilities .....................................................................................................................................184

15. Current liabilities .............................................................................................................................................185

16. Commitments and contingent liabilities ......................................................................................................187

17. Derivative instruments ....................................................................................................................................189

Signatures to the financial statement and r epor t of the boar d of dir ectors .....................................................................191

Auditor Õs note...........................................................................................................................................................................192

Auditor's r epor t........................................................................................................................................................................193

Governance ...................................................................................................................................................................................200

Corpor ate governance sta tement .........................................................................................................................................200

Remuner ation statement ........................................................................................................................................................211

Risk management ....................................................................................................................................................................216

Group Leadership Team .........................................................................................................................................................219

Board of Dir ectors ...................................................................................................................................................................223

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 4



Investors ........................................................................................................................................................................................227

HKScan as an investment........................................................................................................................................................227

Shares and shareholders ........................................................................................................................................................228

Information for the shar eholders ...........................................................................................................................................234

Analysts.....................................................................................................................................................................................236

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 5



HKSCAN IN BRIEF

HKScan is the leading Nor dic food company with over a hundr ed yearsÕ experience in r esponsible me at production and
processing of high-class raw materials. We sell, market and pr oduce high-quality , responsibly-pr oduced pork, beef,
poultry and lamb pr oducts, pr ocessed meats and convenience foods under str ong br and names.

Our customers ar e the retail, food service, industrial and e xpor t sectors, and our home mark ets comprise Finland,
Sweden, Denmark and the Baltics. W e expor t to close to 50 countries.

We are commit ted to high standar ds of economic, social and envir onmental r esponsibility as well as animal he alth and
welfare both in our strategy and oper ations. Our of fering delivers a pr omise of tasty food and Nor dic purity , quality and
responsibility . This promise covers the entir e meat value chain and everyone involved in the pr ocess Ð from farm to fork.

Our best known pr oduct br ands are shown below . Read mor e about them in the footer .
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YEAR 2016 IN BRIEF

NET SALES
1 872.9

EUR MILLION

EBIT
13.2

EUR MILLION
(Compar able)

EBIT MARGIN
0.7

%
(Compar able)

MARKET
POSITION

#1Ð2
IN HOME MARKETS

EMPLOYEES
7 319

AVERAGE

KEY FIGURES

2016 2015

Net sales, EUR million 1 872.9 1 917.1

EBIT, EUR million 9.7 9.6

% of net sales 0.5 0.5

Profit/loss befor e taxes, EUR million 0.9 2.2

% of net sales 0.0 0.1

Return on capital employed (ROCE) befor e taxes, % 2.1 2.3

Equity ratio , % 47.9 50.9

Net ge aring, % 33.5 33.8

Gross investments, EUR million 97.6 49.6
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MARKET AREAS

HKScanÕs production oper ations are located around the Baltic Sea, enabling fle xible utiliza tion of the assets, and
synergies in pr oduct of fering developments. T he GroupÕs customers are situated around the world, fr om the U.S. to
New Zealand, in close to 50 countries altogether .

HKScanÕs home markets include Finland, Sweden, Denmark and the Baltics. The Group is also pr esent in close-by
markets, the most impor tant of which ar e the U.K. and Germany, where it has sales offices, and Russia, where it has a
representation of fice. Outside Eur ope, HKScan has a sales office in Hong Kong.
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SWEDENSWEDEN
804 MEURNET SALES

14 MEUROPERATING PROFIT *

2 162PERSONNEL

MEAT TYPE

FINLANDFINLAND
807 MEURNET SALES

15 MEUROPERATING PROFIT *

2 912PERSONNEL

MEAT TYPE

DENMARKDENMARK
173 MEURNET SALES

-9 MEUROPERATING PROFIT *

686PERSONNEL

MEAT TYPE

BALBALTICSTICS
161 MEURNET SALES

6 MEUROPERATING PROFIT *

1 560PERSONNEL

MEAT TYPE

YEAR 2016 BY MARKET AREA

* Compar able
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

HKScanÕs business and operating envir onment ar e affected by global mega trends. Both HKScanÕs own business and
that of its customers is dir ectly and indir ectly impacted by consumer tr ends and economic tr ends. To maintain our
competitive edge, it is vitally impor tant that we gain insight on the la test market trends to serve as a basis for our
innovation and R&D work.

We keep a close eye on consumer surveys and mark et research in order to gain up-to-da te insights into the needs of
todayÕs and tomorr owÕs consumers. Through close cooper ation with our customers, suppliers and other stak eholders,
we strive to anticipa te emerging tr ends in consumer behaviour , food r etail, the food industry and food services in or der
to help us develop a commer cially successful offering.

Food has become a highly visible topic in the public eye. T he rising vegetarian tr end and the envir onmental impact of
meat production ar e among the issues that have gained e xtensive media cover age and public a ttention. Also issues
related to he alth and nutrition have been highlighted in the media r ecently.

HKScan has a long history of working in the me at industry , and we have a long tr ack record of close collabor ation with
our contr act producers. We also wish to engage in continuous, open and tr ansparent dialogue with our customers and
consumers. We actively contribute to cultiva ting new culinary cultur e in the countries in which our pr oducts are sold and
consumed, and we justifiably tak e pride in our know-how of the industry and our locally specialized me at expertise.

MEAT INDUSTRY TRENDS
Meat consumption is showing no sign of change on any of HKScanÕs home markets. As large a propor tion as 96 per
cent of the Danish popula tion are repor tedly me at eaters, as are 94 per cent of the F innish popula tion and 90 per cent
of the Swedish popula tion. Me at consumption is on the rise worldwide, and this gr owth is expected to continue for a t
least another decade. In Europe, me at consumption is gr owing by a few per cent (3%) per ye ar. The majority of this
growth stems from rising poultry consumption, wher eas consumption of r ed meat is expected to decline.

Rather than taking a rigid Ôeither or Õ stance, HKScan respects everyoneÕs right to their own personal dietary pr eferences.
We strive to of fer products also to consumers who wish to r educe their me at consumption and those who choose a
meat-free diet. HKScan has responded to the rising vegetarian tr end by launching innova tions such as products
combining me at and vegetables.
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HKScan regards the moder ate consumption of me at together with vegetables, wholegr ain products and vegetable fa ts
as a valuable part of a healthy, well-balanced diet. Me at is an excellent sour ce of protein and it contains all the essential
amino acids tha t cannot be pr oduced by the human body . In addition, me at is a rich source of vitamin B and an
excellent sour ce of miner als such as iron, zinc and selenium.

CONSUMER TRENDS
The following consumer tr ends hold k ey significance for the food industry .

HEALTH AND WELLNESS ARE HOT TOPICS, SMALL IS BEAUTIFUL
TodayÕs consumers are interested in looking af ter their he alth and wellness. They want wholesome sour ces of protein,
they are eager to r educe salt in their diet, and they favour cle an label range pr oducts fr ee of artificial additives. Many
consumers wish to reduce their consumption of fa ts and sugars. Vegan and or ganic pr oduct r anges are expanding
rapidly . We are seeing rapid pr olifer ation of small, local pr oducers and specialized niche suppliers, and their pr esence
is expected to e xpand in the futur e.

CONSUMERS WANT INSPIRING EXPERIENCES
TodayÕs consumers want to be surprised by new e xperiences. On one hand, they want authentic, local pr oducts, and on
the other hand they ar e keen to seek out new and inspiring interna tional flavours. Communal dining is also becoming
an increasingly impor tant par t of our culinary cultur e. Whenever our busy schedules allow , we enjoy get ting together
with loved ones to enjoy a str ess-free slow dining e xperience. Social media is also becoming an inspiring pla tform for
sharing new culinary ide as. HKScan is responding to this tr end by e xpanding its pr emium me at range, its local artisanal
offering and its other novelty concepts.

EASIER WEEKDAYS WITH CONVENIENCE MEALS
Many consumers who invest e xtra effort into their week end me als want something dif ferent from their weekday
cooking: e ase and convenience Ð though without compr omising on quality or r esponsibility . High-quality convenience
meals and semi-cooked ingr edients are making a major br eakthrough. For instance HKScanÕs precooked pr oducts and
ready-to-he at meals make food pr eparation a br eeze, freeing up valuable time for other impor tant commitments. W e
also offer a range of he althy snack options. HKScan plans to continue of fering new innova tions in the convenience me al
category , where we see plenty of potential for e xpansion.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY IS THE NEW NORMAL
TodayÕs consumers expect a solid commitment to corpor ate responsibility both in the pr oducts they consume as well as
from the manufactur ers. All link s in the supply chain are expected to adher e to uniform principles of r esponsibility .
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Today, everyone from primary pr oducers, industrial manufactur ers and retailers to the HoReCa industry and public
sector must be mindful of the envir onmental and clima te impacts of their actions. Other priorities include social and
economic r esponsibility as well as pr oduct tr aceability and animal welfar e throughout the entir e supply chain.

HKScan has actively engaged in corpor ate responsibility work for many ye ars. One of our key CR goals is to reduce our
environmental footprint. W e are working to constantly impr ove our ener gy efficiency, for instance by investing in
renewable ener gy, by reducing the volume of industrial r aw material waste that we gener ate, and also by helping
customers and consumers to r educe food waste. In addition, we ar e efficiently harnessing r aw material side streams in
order to pr omote the cir cular economy . HKScanÕs commitment to corpor ate responsibility me ans setting ambitious CR
targets, working to achieve them, as well as embr acing a policy of open communica tion.

PACKAGING AND LABELLING
Consumers value environmentally sound pack aging and informa tive labelling. Young consumers in par ticular pay
special attention to pack aging and its envir onmental impacts. W ell-chosen pack aging highlights the pr oduct Õs quality
and pur e ingredients. Consumers fur thermor e appreciate local pr oduction and ecologically sustainable ma terials.

The latest innovations on the mark et include smar t and active pack aging. The number of single-person households is
on the rise, which is pushing demand for optimized sizing of pr oducts and pack aging.

Labelling is also acquiring incr easing impor tance; consumes expect clear, explanatory labels tha t are fully transparent in
their informa tive content.

CUSTOMER TRENDS
International competition and digitaliza tion are posing new challenges for the r etail industry . Sluggish economic gr owth
and the recession, too , have intensified price competition and cr eated fur ther headwind for r etailers. Private-label
brands have seized a growing mark et share and strengthened their foothold also in the fr esh meat segment.

While the pr olifer ation of digital services is posing a thr eat to the futur e of traditional brick -and-mor tar establishments,
online pla tforms also pr esent a number of new oppor tunities. Digital pla tforms of fer a new channel for r eaching out,
serving and inter acting with consumers. T hey provide a real-time envir onment for faster , more open communica tion on
topics such as food quality , health, origin and tr aceability and corpor ate responsibility .
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The retail industry is being challenged by low-cost chains and online shopping, both of which have become established
forms of commer ce. Online r etailing in the food segment is still r elatively small in scale on HKScanÕs home markets,
however.

The food industry needs to find new ways of get ting closer to its k ey customers, fostering innova tion, incr easing the
visibility of its br ands and pr omoting gr owth alongside priva te-label br ands. One of the k ey assets offered by tr aditional
retailers is the high quality and br oad selection of fr esh foods included in their of fering. HKScan aim to remain a key
supplier of high-quality , responsibly pr oduced fr esh foods sold by food r etailers.

Ready-to-he at meals are gaining popularity in the HoR eCa segment. Sous vide and other slow-cook ed pr oducts are also
in high demand. R ecent trends in the food services sector lar gely conform to those in the r etail segment: on-the-go
meals are on the rise and locally-gr own meat that is traceable from farm to fork is lik ewise gaining popularity . The
number of vegetarians and fle xitarians is rising, and demand for or ganic food has also gr own recently.
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1) Compar able

2) Soko�—wÕs accounting tr eatment changed in 2013. C ompar able figur es from 2012 are not available.
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CEO'S REVIEW

HKScanÕs business landscape was challenging in 2016. T he EU witnessed ongoing political and economic instability
owing to unpr edictable developments such as possible impacts of Br exit and the massive influx of asylum-seek ers in
Europe. Af ter a long period of economic decline, consumer confidence slightly r ecovered and began to str engthen
towards the end of the ye ar. HKScanÕs home markets will hopefully gain fr esh traction from new expor t oppor tunities
harnessed as a joint effort with the industry , decision-makers and other stakeholders in the food value chain.

Competition gr ew tougher in the r etail as a growing number of interna tional r etailers have widened their oper ations to
our markets. This, among other factors, has r esulted in fier ce price competition. Online commer ce and other digital
services are shaking up established rules of play in the r etail segment, the HoR eCa business, and the entir e food value
chain. Digitaliza tion is challenging the actors in the chain to answer to consumer needs with faster r eal-time service and
greater transparency. The digital r evolution is steering the food industry to critical r e-evaluate their oper ating models
and efficiency.

Consumers continued to show inter est in responsibly pr oduced, he althy food, which str engthened the sta tus of
domestic me at. Vegetarianism, veganism and alterna tive protein sour ces were highly visible topics in the media and
consumer forums. The media has also recently spotlighted the envir onmental impacts of me at production. Over all, the
media, the food industry and consumers alik e are showing a gr owing inter est in food and cooking, with emer ging food
trends providing fr esh inspiration for new ide as.

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016 Business / CEO's review

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 18



FARM-TO-FORK RESPONSIBILITY AS A COMPETITIVE ASSET
HKScan is responding to the challenges and oppor tunities of todayÕs business landscape by adopting a mor e
consumer-driven appr oach, whilst continuing to uphold high standar ds of quality and corpor ate responsibility with a
zero-compr omise mindset. W e are also making a dedica ted ef fort to upgr ade our ef ficiency and competitiveness.

We are working har d to stay one step ahe ad of the game in pr oduct development by anticipa ting new tr ends in
consumer values, attitudes and lifestyles. W e are also commit ted to mor e transparently sharing informa tion about our
products, nutrition and our pr oduction methods. W e strive to pr ovide customers and consumers with e asy access to all
the facts about our r aw material sourcing by sharing informa tion on the continual impr ovement ef forts under taken by
our contr act producers. We are commit ted to continuous impr ovement in line with our corpor ate values ÐInspire, Lead,
Care Ðand I am confident tha t our pr oducts will r etain an established place on consumersÕ plates as part of a healthy,
well-balanced diet.

GOING GLOBAL WITH STRONG LOCAL ROOTS
Despite pr evailing economic and political instability , we are confident about the various oppor tunities and mark et
drivers in our curr ent business environment tha t are adding positive momentum to our gr owth and development.
Global me at consumption is rising ste adily, particularly with emer ging mark ets enjoying a high level of disposable
income. Poultry pr oducts are in growing demand, as ar e convenience me als and semi-cooked pr oducts making daily
life easier for consumers. Our k ey strengths on all our home mark ets are our leading, well-known br ands and our pur e,
responsibly pr oduced Nor dic ingr edients, which ar e gaining appr eciation among consumers worldwide.

BUILDING PROFIT THROUGH INVESTMENT IN RAPIDLY
GROWING PRODUC T CATEGORIES
HKScan witnessed a year-on-year decline in net sales in 2016. Our performance on all mark et areas except Finland fell
short of the pr evious year. The GroupÕs comparable EBIT likewise witnessed a decr ease on the previous year. The
challenges in performance corr elate with common mark et trends and various other e xternal factors. The overall market
in Finland saw a steady decline during the first thr ee quarters, coinciding with a contr action also on the Baltic mark et.
We nevertheless maintained a good inventory balance on those mark ets. The Swedish and Danish markets witnessed
overall growth, but our pr ofit suffered due to the scar city of beef in Sweden. T he Danish teamÕs good performance on
the domestic mark et was overshadowed by challenges in e xpor ts.

STRONG BALANCE SHEET
Despite our unsa tisfactory result, we maintained our strong financial standing. HKScanÕs balance sheet is among the
strongest in the industry , which will enable us to continue investing r esources into impr oving our competitiveness.

We are currently taking me asures on numerous fronts to impr ove our pr ofitability . First of all we plan to str engthen our
market position in Sweden and impr ove our financial performance by focusing on consumer -driven expor ts.
Meanwhile, we will also invest in r apidly gr owing pr oduct ca tegories and new concepts. W e are in the pr ocess of
building a wholly new pr oduction facility specializing in poultry pr oducts in Rauma, Finland. Additionally , we are
expanding our bacon plant in Swinoujscie, P oland. The investments will impr ove our pr oduct of fering and quality , as
well as our cost efficiency and streamline our pr oduction structur e. We will continue to e xtract synergy gains through
closer collabor ation and pr oductivity enhancements.

We have identified potential for e xpansion on our e xpor t markets and we plan to push our e xpor t business in a more
demand-driven dir ection. We officially launched our Asian business in Hong K ong at the beginning of 2016.
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STRATEGIC REVIEW TO BE INITIATED
HKScan will initiate a strategic r eview in spring 2017. T he results of this work will be published la ter in the year. In future,
HKScan will be a more unified, innova tive and competitive food company . We are commit ted to r esponding to the
expectations of consumers and customers with a tasty , responsibly pr oduced of fering of pr oducts, services and
solutions tha t add joy , inspiration and convenience to everyday dining and special occasions.

THANKS FOR YOUR COOPERATION Ð LETÕS CONTINUE
BUILDING OUR STRENGTHS TOGETHER
I would lik e to express my warmest thanks to our personnel, who have showed e xemplary dedica tion thr ough a year of
many changes. You have worked hard to bring multiple pr ojects to a successful outcome and have thus ensur ed the
continuity of our business. I also owe a debt of gr atitude to all the consumers, customers, par tners, producers and
shareholders who have work ed by our side and suppor ted our ef forts in championing the cause of r esponsibly
produced food.

Let us continue working together to foster our home mark etsÕ strengths and to continue bringing joy fr om food to
consumersÕ tables and prosperity to all stak eholders in the me at value chain throughout the Nor dic region and our
expor t markets.

Jari Latvanen
President and CEO
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STRATEGY

MISSION
HKScanÕs mission is to make daily life tastier for consumers and customers Ð both today and tomorr ow. As a leading
Nordic food company , active on multiple mark ets, we impact on many peopleÕs everyday lives. We have deep insight
into our consumersÕ needs and we provide them with an e xtensive offering of tasty pr oducts both for daily dining and
special occasions. ÔMaking life tastierÕ not only means offering gr eat flavour, but also giving consumersÕ peace of mind:
when they choose HKScan, they can be confident they ar e making a responsible choice.

As the market leader across the Baltic Sea region, HKScan is in a position to e xert a positive impact on the culinary
culture and economy of many countries. W e uphold the principles of sustainability and adher e to high standar ds of
environmental, social and economic r esponsibility as well as animal he alth and welfar e.

VALUES
Our business is driven by our Gr oupÕs mission and values: Inspire, Lead, Care.

¥ Inspire Ð We generate excitement by of fering inspir ational new flavours and e xperiences around the world of
food. W e regard cooking and dining as an impor tant par t of enjoying life and sharing good times with friends
and family .

¥ Lead Ð We guarantee high standar ds of quality and r esponsibility in all our pr oducts and actions, all the way
from farm to fork. W e aim to be me at industry for erunners and contribute to ensuring tha t the meat value
chain continues to thrive in futur e.

¥ Care Ð Our products of fer a balanced combina tion of gr eat flavour, health, safety and responsibility . We
disclose informa tion openly , helping consumers mak e responsible choices with a cle ar conscience.

GROWTH THROUGH CONSUMER-DRIVEN BRANDED
PRODUCTS AND EXPORTS
HKScan actively seeks profitable gr owth and we strive to continually push our business in a mor e consumer-centric
direction. We want to continually impr ove our ability to meet consumer needs and e xpectations, which entails e arly-
stage insight into consumer values, a ttitudes and lifestyle tr ends as a basis for innovative product development. T o
succeed, we continually upgr ade our pr oduct ca tegories and concepts. W e also invest a growing amount of r esources
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into mor e dynamic innova tion, br and marketing and open communica tions. We pay attention to internal collabor ation
to ensure that every team is fully commit ted to our mission of making daily life tastier and mor e sustainable.

We are in the pr ocess of making strategic investments in gr owing pr oduct ca tegories, such as chicken and bacon.
HKScan is currently building a wholly new pr oduction facility in F inland specializing in poultry pr oducts, which is
scheduled for completion a t the end of 2017. W e are also expanding our e xisting bacon plant in Swinoujscie, P oland,
which is expected to be completed in 2018. T hese projects will enable us to develop wholly new pr oducts in a high
value-add category as well as impr ove our cost ef ficiency.

HKScan recognizes potential for gr owth on e xpor t markets and is commit ted to develop its e xpor ts in a more demand-
driven dir ection. The Group of ficially launched business in Asia by opening a sales of fice in Hong Kong early in 2016.

The circular economy is another ar ea offering inter esting gr owth potential for HKScan. Our Biotech business has
developed commer cially viable and eco-ef ficient alterna tives for the utiliza tion of me at industry side str eams in various
applica tions.

STRATEGIC STRENGTHS
HKScan recognizes the inher ent challenges in our oper ating envir onment and their potential impacts on our str ategy
implementa tion. Our shor t-term gr owth pr ospects could potentially be af fected by economic and political uncer tainty,
expor t barriers and changing consumer values. W e are aware of the risks affecting our business and we strive to actively
minimize the impact of said risk s. We also strive to leverage maximum gain fr om our competitive str engths.

We attained one of the k ey targets of our pr evious strategy period by successfully having solidified our capital structur e.
The GroupÕs balance sheet is currently strong, of fering a solid founda tion for our futur e growth. Other k ey strengths
suppor ting our str ategy include our well-known br ands, our market leadership on all our home mark ets, our superior
professional meat expertise and the synergies offered by our geogr aphical loca tion.

In the wake of internal r estructuring completed over the past few ye ars, HKScan is today a more unified company , which
was another key goal of our pr evious strategy period. Going forwar d, we will continue upgr ading our oper ational
efficiency and harmonizing our oper ational footprint. HKScan has divested a number of its smaller , noncore oper ations,
which has streamlined our corpor ate structure and enabled us to focus mor e resources on our core mission.

The growth and evolution of our business is suppor ted by HKScanÕs innate strategic strengths, our active ef forts to
impr ove our pr ofitability , as well as numerous market drivers on the mark et.
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MARKET DRIVERS SUPPORTING OUR BUSINESS
Megatrends suppor ting our gr owth:

¥ Consumption of me at, especially poultry , is on the rise globally .
¥ Competition in the me at industry favours lar ger players such as HKScan.
¥ Urbanization and various lifestyle tr ends are driving demand for convenience me als, semi-cooked foods and

on-the-go pr oducts.
¥ Consumers appr eciate pur e, wholesome r esponsibly pr oduced Nor dic me at.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL T ARGETS
HKScanÕs long-term financial tar gets are:

¥ Oper ating pr ofit : over 4 per cent of net sales
¥ Return on capital employed: over 12 per cent
¥ Net ge aring: less than 100 per cent
¥ Distribution of dividends: over 30 per cent of net pr ofit

HKScan will evaluate its long-term str ategic focus areas as part of a strategic r eview to be initia ted in spring 2017.

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016 Business / Strategy

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 23



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

We are the leading Nor dic food company . This means producing, selling and mark eting me at and meat products in a
responsible and ethical way . This covers the entir e value chain, starting fr om feed and the genetics of pr oduction
animals all the way to the consumer Õs plate. Sustainable business creates value for all our stakeholders every day .

We are commit ted to systematically developing the sustainability of our business thr ough our str ategy, operations and
actions. At HKScan, everyone is urged to contribute to r esponsible ways of working.

VALUE CHAIN

At HKScan, we have unique know-how on the entir e meat value chain, and we are commit ted to oper ating r esponsibly
every step of the way. The GroupÕs daily business covers all parts of the value chain from customer and consumer
cooper ation to feed and primary pr oduction.

By continuing to r espond ef fectively to changing needs and e xpectations in the mark et, we can impr ove our pr ofitability
and develop our oper ations sustainably, bringing value to our business as well as to consumers, our par tners and other
stakeholders.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AT HKSCAN

ConsumersÕ food choices are increasingly being influenced by factors such as the origin of me at and responsible
production pr actices. A key issue that has emerged r ecently in public deba te Ð in addition to animal welfar e Ð is the
climate impact of me at production. In all these ar eas, the Nordic countries ar e frontrunners thank s to our nor thern
location, as well as our soil and natural conditions, which ar e ideal for growing gr ain and gr ass for animal feed. Our
other strengths in food pr oduction include high standar ds of hygiene, he althy animals, efficient pr oduction, and
plentiful cle an water resources.

HKScanÕs corpor ate responsibility work is divided into four sub-ar eas: economic responsibility , social responsibility ,
animal health and welfar e and environmental r esponsibility . Our corpor ate responsibility pr ogr amme is divided up
accordingly . The goals and actions defined in our corpor ate responsibility pr ogr amme are embedded as an integr al
part of our daily work and le adership .

Economic r esponsibility : At HKScan, economic responsibility me ans that we strive to maintain the pr ofitability of our
business both on the shor t and the long term. T his extends to our impact on our stak eholders: we for instance ensur e
that we pay wages to our personnel, pay dividends to our shar eholders, and pay tax es to the government.

Social r esponsibility covers issues such as the quality and safety of our pr oducts, the he alth and wellbeing of our
employees, and a r esponsibly run supply chain.

Animal he alth and welfar e are a key priority to HKScan thr oughout its entir e value chain. We work to continuously
impr ove our performance in this ar ea. Last year we structurally upgr aded our slaughter houses and pr ovided personnel
with follow-up tr aining in animal handling.

Envir onmental r esponsibility : HKScan is committed to continually striving to mitiga te the envir onmental impacts of its
production pr ocesses, both in the immedia te vicinity of its plants and thr oughout the entir e value chain, whether
affecting the air , soil or water. HKScan additionally seeks to promote envir onmental awar eness among its employees
through good le adership .

The current corpor ate responsibility pr ogr amme and its priorities ar e based on an extensive stakeholder survey
conducted in 2014.

HKScan will publish its first corpor ate responsibility r epor t in compliance with Global R epor ting Initia tive SRS
standards from the r epor ting year 2017. During 2016 HKScan under took preparations to initia te GRI repor ting.
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ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILIT Y

At HKScan, economic responsibility me ans that we safeguard the pr ofitability and competitiveness of our business both
in the shor t and long term. A sound economic founda tion forms the basis also for our other ar eas of responsibility , i.e.
social and environmental r esponsibility , and animal health and welfar e. The concept of economic r esponsibility also
covers the impacts we have on stak eholders: for instance, we pay wages to personnel, dividends to shar eholders, and
taxes to the government.

INVESTMENTS AND EXPORTS SUPPORT PROFITABLE
GROWTH
HKScanÕs strategic objective Ð profitable gr owth Ð was the key driver of our work in 2016. HKScan invested in gr owing
product ca tegories for instance by constructing a new pr oduction facility in R auma, Finland, specialising in poultry
products and curr ently under construction, and the e xpansion of the bacon plant in Swinoujscie, P oland.

Good pr ogr ess was made with the Rauma investment pr oject. The construction was launched in the first half of 2016,
the environmental permit was gr anted in Mar ch, and the cornerstone laying cer emony was celebr ated in May. The
production facility is e xpected to be completed a t the end of 2017. T he project is HKScanÕs most significant pr oduction
plant investment to da te, and it will help to pr eserve food industry jobs in western F inland. The new pr oduction plant
will replace the e xisting plant in Eura.

In May 2016, HKScan decided to invest in the expansion of the Swinoujscie bacon plant in P oland. Production
technology will be upgr aded and pr oduction capacity incr eased, with the result that the Swinoujscie unit will be one of
the GroupÕs most sophisticated pr oduction plants.

These projects will enable the development of new br anded pr oducts for gr owing pr oduct segments and added-value
product gr oups. Additionally , they will impr ove product quality , occupational safety and working conditions while
decreasing environmental impacts. In par allel with these investments, HKScan is impr oving ef ficiency by simplifying its
production structur e and centr alizing its pr oduction technologies.
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HKScan recognizes the oppor tunities of fered by new e xpor t markets, in which respect 2016 was a milestone ye ar also in
interna tionalization. In January, HKScan opened a sales office in Hong Kong. In conjunction with the opening,
Rypsiporsas¨ (r ape seed fed pork) pr oducts wer e launched on Asian markets. Previously, HKScan has only expor ted
frozen meat to Asia, but now high-quality fr esh Finnish meat can be deliver ed to Asian consumers. The growing
demand for Nor dic me at products is based specifically on Asia Õs desire for safe raw materials and incr eased health
awareness. Responsible pr oduction and supply chain tr ansparency are also impor tant factors for Asian tar get gr oups.

PRODUCERS AND HKSCAN COLLABORATE TO BOOST
PRODUCTIVITY
HKScanÕs animal sourcing is based on long-term contr act production and close collabor ation with pr oducers. Growing
interest among consumers, customers and other stak eholders in issues related to r esponsibility , such as the origin of
meat, product safety , quality, environment, and animal welfar e, is a major driver of continuous impr ovement a t HKScan,
in which primary pr oduction plays a big r ole.

Intensifying competition also underlines the impor tance of continually impr oving the competiveness of HKScan and the
entire meat value chain. A responsible, tr ansparent supply chain and ef ficient and high-quality primary pr oduction can
only be achieved thr ough seamless collabor ation with our pr oducers.

Collabor ation is conducted on many levels: our r egional animal sour cing te ams and producer service specialists work
directly with the farms (Read mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish), while we have special co-oper ation gr oups
working on issues common to HKScan and our pr oducers. Shared issues are also discussed on a more general level in
various producer meetings and seminars. Dialogue between primary pr oducers and the companyÕs top management,
marketing and pr oduct development is equally impor tant. This dialogue helps HKScan to monitor the oppor tunities
and challenges in our primary pr oduction, and utilize this informa tion in the development of our pr oducts and
oper ations. At the same time, our contr act producers can learn more about HKScanÕs future targets and can bet ter
highlight their str engths and e xpress their ideas about shared development oppor tunities.
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CASES

1. In 2016 a 25-ye ar-old Danish poultry pr oducer invested EUR 1.6 million in new pr oduction facilities,
incr easing the farmÕs annual pr oduction capacity fr om 250 000 chick ens to one million.

2. HKScan engages in collabor ation in ar eas such as feed tr anspor ts. Transpor tation costs account for a
significant por tion of feed costs. W orking together , HKScan and its par tners have been able to optimize delivery
routes, elimina te overlapping functions, decr ease tr anspor tation fleets, and incr ease fleet oper ating hours,
which has significantly lower ed costs. Me asures to boost ef ficiency impr ove the sector Õs competitiveness and
also benefit me at pr oducers. A new oper ating model was adopted during the first quar ter of 2016 in F inland.

3. HKScan of fers various services to pr oducers to suppor t their pr ofitability and competitiveness; e xamples
include advisory services r ela ted to animal feeding and he alth. Additionally , HKScan of fers pr oducers advice in
the design and construction of new facilities (R ead mor e: HKScan Agri magazine , only in Swedish), and in
pr oduction star t-ups, as well as financial advice and financial services.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At HKScan, social responsibility covers product-r elated issues such as quality, safety and health, as well as the
wellbeing of our personnel and r esponsible sour cing.

High-quality , healthy and safe products are the founda tion of our business. W e promote r esponsible business pr actices
and adher e to the highest food safety standar ds in our pr oduction. In addition to our dedica tion to pr oduct safety , we
are commit ted to constantly impr oving the quality and taste of our pr oducts, and listen closely to consumer pr eferences
in doing so .

We look after our employees by maintaining a good work a tmospher e, offering occupa tional he alth services, as well as
by emphasizing equality and diversity . We believe tha t consistent leadership and competence development pair ed with
a suppor tive work cultur e encourage our employees to e xcellent performance. In 2016, the Gr oup paid special
attention to workplace safety . Focusing on pr eventive action, the personnel wer e encouraged to mak e safety
observations and share their findings to help r educe the incidence of workplace accidents.

HKScanÕs responsibility ef forts cover the entir e supply chain , and we aim to uphold high standar ds of transparency and
sustainability at each stage of the chain. A well-managed supply chain ensur es smooth and streamlined collabor ation,
all the way from the pur chasing of raw materials and services until consumersÕ shopping carts.

HKScan engages with society and local communities by taking par t in initia tives and decision-making a t various levels,
from co-oper ating with the communities immedia tely surrounding our pr oduction facilities to wider Gr oup-level
initia tives. In 2016, for example, HKScan Finland par ticipa ted in an initia tive distributing usable food pr oducts to the
needy. In Sweden, HKScan took part Ð now for the second year in a row Ð in a project dona ting lef tover food to a local
charity.

As part of its social responsibility ef forts, HKScan also provided work to r efugees in Denmark. Access to employment is
one of the most impor tant steps helping asylum-seek ers integr ate in a new society. The three-month tr aining period
included Danish language studies as well as courses pr ovided by HKScan. The company is also a significant pr ovider of
seasonal job oppor tunities, and in 2016, the company employed ar ound 1 400 summer work ers.

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016
Corpor ate responsibility / C orpor ate responsibility a t HKScan / Social
responsibility

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 30

http://annualreport2016.hkscan.com/corporate-responsibility/corporate-responsibility-at-hkscan/social-responsibility/responsible-products/
http://annualreport2016.hkscan.com/corporate-responsibility/corporate-responsibility-at-hkscan/social-responsibility/employee-wellbeing/
http://annualreport2016.hkscan.com/corporate-responsibility/corporate-responsibility-at-hkscan/social-responsibility/responsible-sourcing/
http://www.yhteinenpoyta.fi/front-page/
https://www.stadsmissionen.se/vad-vi-gor/matmissionen
https://www.stadsmissionen.se/vad-vi-gor/matmissionen


RESPONSIBLE PRODUCTS

Consumers are becoming incr easingly aware of issues related to he alth and sustainability . When making food choices,
they consider not only price and availability , but also health aspects and sustainable pr oduction pr actices.

HKScanÕs objective is to meet the needs of modern consumers by pr oviding he althy, safe and responsibly pr oduced
products suppor ting a varied and balanced diet (R ead mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish). HKScan also
ensures reliable pr oduct labelling as well as tr aceability of its pr oducts at each stage of the value chain.

Product safety is the cornerstone of HKScanÕs operations. Our pr oduction pr ocesses comply with strict food safety
standards, and all of our pr oduction facilities ar e certified accor ding to interna tional standar ds (see table). Our pr oduct
safety standards are based on risk assessments of products and pr ocesses and they are writ ten into our management
progr ammes. Hygiene and pr oduction pr ocess management ar e addressed in our employee tr aining, which
additionally covers the handling of pr ocess deviations to ensur e product safety .

CASES

HKScan also tak es par t in pr oduct safety r ela ted academic r esearch. For example, in 2016, HKScan par ticipa ted
in r esearch pr ojects initia ted by the University of Helsinki.

In addition, the company is involved in the Marie Sk�odowsk a-Curie Actions pr ogr amme, which comprises eight
university and corpor ate labor atories in Eur ope. T he pr ogr amme will tr ain 15 pr omising young r esearchers,
whose micr obiology doctor al studies will be financed for thr ee ye ars.
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Product safety and other standar ds at HKScan production loca tions:

CERTIFIED OPERATIONS 2016

Production
sites

ISO
9001

ISO
14001

ISO
18001

ISO
50001

ISO
22000

FSSC
22000 IFS BRC Remark s

Finland Vantaa X X X

Forssa X X X

MellilŠ X X X

Eura X X X

Outok umpu X X X

Mikkeli X X X 1)

Baltics Tabasalu, Estonia X X X

Rakvere, Estonia X X X

Viiratsi, Estonia X X

Jelgava, Latvia X X

Sweden Kristianstad X X X 2)

Linkoping X X X 2)

Skara X X X X 2)

Halmstad X X X X 2)

Denmark Vinderup X X

Skovsgaard X X

Poland �winouj�cie X X X

1) Organic cer tificate in Finland

2) Krav Ð Organic cer tificate in Sweden
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BROAD SELECTION FOR INCREASINGLY AWARE CONSUMERS
HKScanÕs product development is founded on an in-depth understanding of consumer needs and is steer ed both by
nutritional goals and incr eased health awareness among consumers. Our pr oduct development follows the la test food
trends and national dietary guidelines, which r ecognize me at as part of a balanced and varied diet alongside
vegetables, wholegr ains and unsaturated fats.

CASES

1. HKScan published r esults of a study made by the Helsinki University . Accor ding to it, people who had
eaten rape seed fed pork (R ypsiporsas¨) me at, got mor e omega-3 fa ts from their diets during the study than
persons who had e aten same amout of gr ain-fed pork me at. In addition, the F innish r estaur ant chain K otipizza
chose to use R ypsiporsas¨ pork in their ham pizzas, basing their decision on domestic origin, tr aceability and
sustainability . The Swedish counterpar t of the F innish R ypsiporsas¨ concept is called R apsgris¨.

2. During 2016, HKScan F inland took par t in a r esearch pr oject funded by the F innish F unding Agency for
Technology and Innova tion (T ekes). In addition to developing new types of food solutions for conscripts in the
field, the pr oject pr omotes he althy food choices in mass ca tering. HKScan was also involved in another pr oject
aiming to motiva te conscripts to mak e healthy , envir onmentally sound food choices by optimizing the user -
friendliness of food pr oducts.

3. In Sweden, HKScan continued to develop the pr oduct concept tha t incorpor ates 50 per cent vegetables
(JŠrpish , Korvish, Burgish ), of fering an e asy way for consumers to incr ease vegetables in their diet and also to
reduce salt Ð but not a t the e xpense of gr eat flavour . HKScan also intr oduced vegetable cold-cuts suitable for
vegetarians.
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EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

HKScan is a major employer in all the countries in which it oper ates, and social responsibility is a k ey focus area of the
GroupÕs overall CR work. For HKScan, a socially responsible way of working me ans that we are able to safeguar d and
continuously impr ove the wellbeing, engagement, equality and diversity of our personnel.

HKSCAN CONTRIBUTES TO LOCAL COMMUNITIES BY
OFFERING JOB OPPORTUNITIES
HKScan offers job oppor tunities to a lar ge number of se asonal workers in the communities wher e its production
facilities are located. We give many young people their first job and ther eby of fer them valuable work e xperience.

The barbeque se ason is one of the most impor tant business seasons for HKScan, making spring and summer busy
periods in our pr oduction. HKScan invests a lot of ef fort into its spring and summer r ecruitment in or der to ensur e a
high degr ee of efficiency and quality in pr oduction for the benefit of our customers and consumers, as well as to of fer
flexible holiday arr angements for our permanent employees. In 2016, HKScan r ecruited appr oximately 1 400 summer
workers, of whom 700 in F inland and over 400 in Sweden. Many alr eady worked for us during pr evious summers.

Europe witnessed an unpr ecedented influx of r efugees in 2016. In Denmark, HKScan set a proactive example of
diversity pr omotion by welcoming r efugees primarily fr om Syria to join its poultry pr oduction te am in Vinderup . The
plant Õs aim was to offer them e xperience of working for a Danish company and the Danish labour mark et in gener al. The
plant Õs intention was to eventually of fer permanent employment to those r efugees inter ested in staying with the
company . At the end of 2016, half of the r efugees continued working a t Vinderup . HKScan considers this a win-win
situation: The refugees are able to suppor t themselves and their families, and HKScan can br oaden the local
recruitment base for its futur e employees.

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING AND WORKPLACE SAFETY Ð SAFETY
IN FOCUS
HKScanÕs target is to create a culture of proactive wellness pr omotion and workplace safety management by
implementing harmonized pr ocesses, training supervisors and management, and by focusing on knowledge-based
leadership .
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In 2016, the GroupÕs focus was on workplace safety. HKScan aims to develop a Group-wide appr oach to health and
safety management, including Gr oup-wide standar ds for selected critical safety ar eas, such as repor ting and
investigating accidents and ne ar misses, making safety observations, and adhering to common standar ds and pr actices
for the most hazardous work types. The Group has impr oved its repor ting on safety performance and pr omotion of
common activities thr ough monthly safety communica tions (let ters, blogs and phone meetings), as well as by collecting
all safety related informa tion, e.g. on safety incidents, in one place. These efforts have paid of f in the form of
measurable impr ovement in our lost-time incident r ate, which was down to 40.6 (2015: 45.5). T his outcome was
achieved mainly as the result of an increased focus on safety at unit level and intensified country-level activity , especially
in Finland and Sweden.

Unfortunately one fatal accident occurred in the company in 2016. In J anuary, one maintenance work er in Rakvere,
Estonia, lost his life and another was injur ed in an ammonia-r elated incident. The incident was investiga ted thor oughly
and measures were taken to impr ove ammonia handling, especially in maintenance work acr oss the Group .

HKScan will continue pr omoting a common and harmonized he alth and safety appr oach during 2017, focusing
especially on selected common activities and the spr ead of good pr actices and examples across all units.

An intensified ef fort was also made to manage and decr ease both shor t and long-term absenteeism. Despite this, the
overall absenteeism rate of 6.3% (2015: 6.0%) showed no impr ovement on the pr evious year. Significant steps forwar d
were taken, however, in mapping and managing risk cases to r educe the risk of work disability , especially in Finland.

EXAMPLE OF INITIA TIVES RELATED TO EMPLOYEE WELLBEING:

The Finnish Institute of Occupa tional He alth took par t in the planning of the new poultry pr oduction plant in
Rauma. The new plant will adopt modern work pr ocesses complying with the la test occupa tional he alth
standar ds, ther eby of fering personnel significantly impr oved safety and er gonomic conditions.

ONE HKSCAN PERFORMANCE CULTURE - EMPLOYEE
ENGAGEMENT
Late in 2014, HKScan carried out its first Gr oup-wide employee engagement survey . As a result, 1 300 impr ovement
actions, either a t company or te am level, were identified and implemented.

During autumn 2016, HKScan carried out its second Gr oup-wide employee engagement survey . The response rate was
again high, standing a t 83.9 per cent. This showed a gratifying level of inter est and commitment to continuously
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develop and impr ove our or ganization. Based on the r esults, our People Power¨ inde x* in 2016 was again
A+/Satisfactory +.

Since the 2014 survey, we have placed a special focus on impr oving communica tion and te am-level involvement. T he
efforts and actions have clearly paid of f, as the 2016 survey now rated these areas as significantly improved. Informa tion
flow had impr oved and the personnel had bet ter oppor tunities to par ticipa te and make suggestions. Our managerial
work was also regarded as a positive change driver in the Gr oup .

The results were reviewed thr oughout the or ganization and fur ther impr ovement actions ar e being planned to cr eate an
even bet ter HKScan.

*The PeoplePower¨ r ating is an overall metric (0Ð100) for employee engagement and its main benchmark s are commitment, le adership and

performance cultur e.

INVESTING IN LEADERSHIP
The HKScan Leadership Academy was launched in 2015 and continued during 2016. T his Group-wide pr oject aims to
strengthen the capabilities and pr ofessional expertise of HKScan leaders and specialists.
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RESPONSIBLESOURCING

Transparent, efficient and r esponsible sour cing is a cornerstone of HKScanÕs social responsibility ef forts and the result of
ongoing, consistent work. W e provide consumers with pr oducts tha t can be traced all the way from farm to fork.

LOCAL PRODUCTION SUPPORTS A WELL-MANA GED SUPPLY
CHAIN
HKScan primarily uses local meat sourced from long-term contr act producers or HKScanÕs own farms. All products sold
under the HK¨, K ariniemen¨ and Scan¨ br ands are produced 100% fr om domestic me at. HKScan co-operates closely
with its pr oducers, who ar e offered advisory services related to issues such as feeding, animal welfar e, production
facility planning and business pr ofitability .

CASE

Responsibility is closely monitor ed among our contr act pr oducers. F or example, HKScanÕs Finnish pig contr act
farms ar e par t of the ÔLaatuvastuuÕ Quality Assur ance pr ogr amme, which is based on a he alth classifica tion
register (Sik ava) maintained by Animal He alth ETT, and is appr oved as a na tional quality system by the F innish
Food Safety Authority E vir a. All the quality-assur ed farms tak e measures beyond legal r equir ements to ensur e
high standar ds of animal he alth and safety . The farms ar e audited by a veterinarian r oughly once every quar ter .
Most of our F innish ca ttle farms ar e alr eady par t of a corr esponding he alth classifica tion r egister (ÒNaseva Ó).

Our aim is to guar antee consumers the ste ady, cost-effective flow of pr oducts in all our pr oduction countries. Close and
open communica tion between sales, the supply chain and animal pr ocurement, as well as efficient utiliza tion of
forecasts, are critical factors in balancing supply and demand and maintaining business pr ofitability and delivery
security.
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SUPPLY CHAIN RESPONSIBILITY CONTINUOUSL Y EVALUATED
The food industry uses lar ge amounts of me at and other r aw materials, energy, water, packaging ma terials and a variety
of services. The procurement te am thus has a significant impact on the sustainability , costs and efficiency of the
Group . HKScanÕs suppliers are evaluated regularly for pr oduct safety , quality, environmental performance, ethical
business practice and other sour cing pr ocess criteria.

HKScan uses a supplier evaluation pr ocess to collate informa tion concerning sour ced raw materials, products and
services. Social responsibility is among the issues char ted in this pr ocess. Suppliers are additionally r equir ed to commit
to HKScanÕs ethical principles by signing the HKScan Supplier Guidelines.

HKScan uses imported me at to supplement its of fering in pr oduct ca tegories wher e locally pr oduced me at is not
available in sufficient quantities. Impor ted me at accounts for a few per cent of the Gr oupÕs needs. The origin and quality
of impor ted me at is closely monitor ed. We co-oper ate only with slaughterhouses which have been audited to ensur e
compliance with quality standar ds.

RESPONSIBLE SOY AND PALM OIL
The production of soy and palm oil potentially has significant envir onmental and social impacts in the local pr oduction
environment. As one of Nor thern EuropeÕs major meat producers, HKScanÕs commitment to using r esponsibly
produced r aw materials is a token of significant pr ogr ess in preventing adverse impacts. T o suppor t the sustainable use
of soy and palm oil, we ar e a member of the Roundtable on R esponsible Soy (RTRS) as well as the Roundtable on
Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO).

Soy is used in animal feed for its good pr otein composition. HKScan is commit ted to using 100% r esponsibly pr oduced
soy by the end of 2018. Sweden alr eady achieved this goal in 2015. In Denmark, r esponsibly pr oduced soy accounted
for 20 per cent of soyme al consumption in 2016. F inland will r each the goal in 2017, and Estonia by the end of 2018.

HKScan is reducing the use of soy in its chick en feed, for e xample, by using alterna tive high-pr otein feed gr own in
Nordic conditions. Mor eover, food industry by-pr oducts, such as barley pr otein feed, can be utilized in pig feed, in
which we also increasingly utilize local r aw materials such as legumes and rapeseed (Read mor e: HKScan Agri
magazine, only in Swedish). HKScan and its feed partners are continuously cooper ating to develop and pr omote the
use of domestic pr otein sour ces.

In 2016, HKScanÕs indirect soy footprint (animal feed) was 146 thousand tonnes, and its dir ect soy footprint (pr oducts)
was 0.4 thousand tonnes.

WWF conducted a survey on the use of r esponsibly pr oduced soy in animal feed in 2016. T he repor t covered meat, egg
and milk pr oducers in133 Eur ope an companies, and the r esults were presented in the WWF Soy Scorecard. HKScan
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Sweden achieved the highest scor e within the me at production gr oup with 22 points, the maximum being 24. HKScan
Group took thir d place with 14 points.

HKScan uses only small amounts of palm oil in its pr oduction, but the company ende avours to ensure it is responsibly
produced. HKScan is a supply chain associate member of the R oundtable on Sustainable P alm Oil, and its pur chase
volumes are relatively small. During 2016, the company examined the use of palm oil in its pr oducts together with its
suppliers in or der to define the e xact amount of r esponsibly pr oduced palm oil tha t is used. Most of the palm oil used in
HKScanÕs products has already been cer tified, and the per centage will be incr eased during 2017. T he target is to only
use RSPO certified palm oil, the palm oil is also substituted with other oils lik e rapeseed oil.
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ANIMAL HEAL TH AND WELFARE

Animal he alth and welfar e are fundamental priorities for HKScan and its contr act producers. We rank among EuropeÕs
and the worldÕs top performers in r elated interna tional evalua tions. We are proud of our long tr ack record as a
responsible oper ator and we ar e commit ted to continually impr oving our performance. W e welcome and par ticipa te in
all dialogue concerning animal welfar e in order to fur ther impr ove our performance in this field.

ANIMAL WELF ARE STARTS WITH GOOD PRODUC TION
CONDITIONS AND PRODUCER KNOW -HOW
HKScanÕs animal sourcing is based on long-term contr act production or own pr oduction and close collabor ation with
our pr oducers (Read mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish). To ensure the best service and r esponsible
production in all our mark et areas, the structure of the Animal Sour cing and Producer Services organization was
renewed in spring 2016. With the new oper ating model, local and r egional know-how and competence can be applied
more effectively to impr ove our pr oducer collabor ation and pr oducer services.

We offer our pr oducers tr aining and advice in ma tters such as animal feed planning, animal he alth care and the design
of new pr oduction facilities. Animal welfar e is prioritized in all our oper ations. For example, the open stable models we
offer our pr oducers pr omote he althy living conditions for the animals and good working conditions for farm work ers.
We also provide consulta tion services to pr oducers in the design and construction of livestock facilities and in the star t-
up of pr oduction. In F inland, we of fer specific models for ca ttle, pig and poultry pr oduction. In Sweden we r ecently
began planning a new standar d model for sow pig farms tha t incorpor ates the best tried-and-tested solutions applied
in Finland and Sweden.

Our policy on tail docking of fers a good e xample of our animal welfar e efforts. In Finland and Sweden, for e xample, pig
tails are not dock ed because tail biting is e xceptionally r are thanks to the effort we invest in animal care and the upk eep
of favourable living conditions. Our pig pens ar e more spacious than requir ed by EU regula tions and ther e is plenty of
room for pigs to move about in the pens. T he pens normally stay cle an because the floor he ating and ventila tion are
designed in such a way as to steer the animals to urina te and defeca te only in a certain area of the pen. Ma terials like
straw, hay, wood chips, sawdust and pe at provide stimuli for the animals, along with various chew toys, such as wood
block s, balls and ropes.
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PRODUCER WELLNESS IS ALSO OUR PRIORITY
The wellness of our contr act producers is instrumental to good animal welfar e. We organize seminars offering our
producers new , relevant informa tion and an e asy way to network with colle agues. In January 2016, our contr act
producers fr om Finland and Sweden convened for the first time on a pr oducer cruise.

In autumn 2016, we launched various wellbeing events for our contr act producers. The first was a wellness day for
poultry pr oducers. The theme was also highlighted in special wellness clinics of fered in conjunction with our pr oducer
seminars; at these clinics, HKScanÕs occupational he alth nurse and occupa tional he alth manager answer ed questions
from pr oducers concerning their he alth. The participants also had the oppor tunity to check their blood pr essure and
blood sugar levels. T he wellness clinics were well-attended, indica ting tha t health is a topic of personal inter est to our
producers.

HKScan upholds a tradition of pr esenting Producer of the Year awards in Finland, Sweden and Denmark. The
nomina tion criteria include e xcellence in animal welfar e, motivation for continual impr ovement, and good collabor ation
with HKScan. The Finnish producers of the ye ar are presented on HKScan AgriÕs YouTube channel (in Finnish only). The
winners in Sweden are featured in the Swedish edition of the HKScan Agri magazine.

FOCUS ON PROPER ANIMAL HANDLING
One of our focus ar eas in 2016 was the proper handling of livestock. In la te 2015, we initia ted cooper ation with an
animal behaviour and handling specialist who audited all HKScan cattle slaughterhouses in F inland and Estonia during
2016.The audits cover ed pr e-slaughter animal handling pr actices, conditions a t the slaughterhouses and their plans for
impr oving animal welfar e. Similar audits have been out also at HKScanÕs other slaughterhouses, which engaged the
services of external animal behaviour e xperts specializing in pigs, ca ttle, poultry and sheep .

During autumn HKScanÕs animal transporters and slaughterhouse employees wer e provided with follow-up tr aining on
cattle handling in F inland. The courses were taught by the Austr alian animal handling e xpert Sophie Atkinson, who
enlightened the par ticipants on low-str ess handling of cattle by reinfor cing their instinctive behaviour pa tterns.

Animal tr ansporter training is par t of our continuous impr ovement ef forts. Transports are regularly monitor ed by
authorities and veterinarians. T he low-stress and correct handling of animals during tr ansportation is impor tant to
ensure animal welfare, employee safety and high-quality me at.

The new piglet tr ansport vehicles adopted in F inland e arly this year are designed to pr omote good animal welfar e and
healthy conditions by employing the la test solutions in the industry , which also offer impr oved biosecurity .

Animal welfar e audits are performed r egularly by authorities and other e xperts as an integral part of HKScanÕs routine.
Authorized veterinarians ar e present at all our pr oduction facilities on a daily basis, and our oper ations are subjected to
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continuous internal and e xternal audits. In 2016, surveillance camer as were installed at our slaughterhouses in F inland
and Estonia, and additional tr aining on animal handling was arr anged for the personnel.

ANIMAL HEAL TH IS OUR TOP PRIORITY
Resistance to antibiotics and the we akening ef fectiveness of antibiotics in the tr eatment of dise ases is a global concern.
The most effective way to pr event antibiotic r esistance is to use antibiotics only in the tr eatment of diagnosed dise ases,
both in animals and human beings. In domestic animal pr oduction, all me asures taken in the dif ferent phases of the
animal pr oduction chain have a dir ect impact on animal welfar e and health.

Farms owned by HKScan or by its contr act producers do not use antibiotics pr eventively or to pr omote animal gr owth.
All usage of antibiotics is car efully monitor ed: they are administer ed only when pr escribed by a veterinarian to tr eat sick
animals. The use of hormones is pr ohibited.

In all of HKScanÕs production countries, the use of antibiotics in the tr eatment of animals is at a significantly lower level
than in other Eur ope an countries on aver age. Our me asures to promote animal welfar e and prevent animal dise ases
have yielded good r esults. Our goal is to maintain the low usage level of antibiotics and to achieve even bet ter results Ð
without endangering the welfar e of our animals.

Read mor e in our Corpor ate Responsibility F act Sheets

HIGH BIOSECURITY
We actively monitor the incidence of infectious animal dise ases and their potential impacts on the animal pr oduction
chain. Our pr oducers, pr oduction advisors and veterinarians mak e every possible ef fort to prevent diseases from
spreading. The quality and hygiene pr actices we apply on our home mark ets have proven to be very successful in the
prevention of salmonella, for e xample. When African swine fever (ASF) was detected widely in wild boars in Estonia and
South Europe, we successfully pr evented its spr ead to pig farms in Estonia (Read mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in
Swedish). ASF has not been detected in Finland or Sweden.

High pa thogenic avian flu (H5N8) was detected in 2016 in wild bir ds in HKScanÕs production countries. T hanks to the
effective pr otective me asures undertaken by the authorities in these countries, the spr ead of avian flu was prevented.
Avian flu has not spread to any of HKScanÕs poultry farms.
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ENVIRONMENT AL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental r esponsibility is a high priority both for HKScan and its stak eholders. The expectations of stakeholders as
well as increasingly stringent envir onmental r egula tions requir e continuous pr ogr ess and environmental risk
management. Our Gr oup-wide envir onmental policy defines harmonized ways of working for the benefit of the
environment.

We continually me asure our environmental impacts and work to mitiga te them. Our envir onmental actions focus on
energy efficiency, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, water consumption, wastewa ter, material ef ficiency and waste
management.

We also co-oper ate with our pr oducers to continually impr ove our envir onmental performance. T he environmental
impacts of our farms r elated to biodiversity and or ganic pr oduction ar e also discussed in this repor t.
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY

By working actively to incr ease energy efficiency, HKScan strives to improve its long-term cost ef ficiency and decr ease
its environmental footprint. Impr oved ener gy efficiency is also an impor tant par t of our commitment to r educing GHG
emissions.

In 2016, the Group continued its ongoing ener gy efficiency pr oject launched in 2015 (R ead mor e: HKScan Agri
magazine, only in Swedish). The target is to decr ease HKScanÕs energy usage by 10 per cent fr om the 2014 level by
2017 (inde xed to net sales).

TARGET FOLLOW -UP
In 2016 HKScanÕs overall energy efficiency decr eased by 1.2 per cent compar ed to 2014 due to a r eduction in net sales
and the acquisition of a fr eezer and storage company in Forssa, Finland.

Our total ener gy consumption declined by five per cent fr om 2014 to 2016, and by ten per cent fr om 2012 to 2016 (see
graph). HKScanÕs total energy consumption has decr eased faster than its energy consumption inde xed to net sales due
to a decline in Gr oup net sales.
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SYSTEMATIC ENERGY EFFICIENCY WORK
In compliance with the EU Ener gy Efficiency Dir ective (EED), and in order to identify new ener gy saving targets,
HKScanÕs plants in Skara, Linkšping and Kristianstad in Sweden, �winouj�cie in P oland and Forssa in Finland conducted
energy reviews in 2016. In total, nine pr oduction plants have conducted ener gy reviews, and they will continue in 2017
at other plants. The reviews yielded many findings tha t need attention in the futur e. The Skara plant in Sweden is now
ISO 50 001 certified. Together with the two plants in Halmstad, HKScan Gr oup now has thr ee sites certified under ISO
50 001.

One aim of the ener gy efficiency pr oject is to me asure energy and water consumption a t plant level so as to tr ack the
use of resources and identify any devia tions. A web app has been deployed to monitor ener gy and water consumption,
enabling the da ta to be followed up also a t Group-level. The tool will be adopted thr oughout the Gr oup in 2017.

PERSONNEL ENGAGEMENT
Every employee a t HKScan is in a position to influence ener gy consumption a t their workplace. HKScan recently
organized an internal competition, LetÕs save energy, urging the personnel to r eflect on their personal consumption of
energy. Workshops were arranged and ide as collected at each plant. The competition pr oduced an amazing r esult of
over 1 000 energy saving ide as. Team �winouj�cie fr om Poland was chosen as the winner , and were commended by the
jury for making an Òexemplary ef fort in providing detailed descriptions of ener gy-saving ide as and commitment to
environmental issues.ÓThe best ide as were shared among HKScan plants.

EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. In Finland, sever al actions have been tak en to a ttain our ener gy ef ficiency tar gets. In the ener gy r eview
conducted a t the F orssa pr oduction plant, sever al areas of impr ovement wer e pinpointed. V arious ener gy
reduction investments have been implemented during 2016, including the installa tion of new ammonia
condensers and compr essors.

2. HKScan Finland was among the signa tories of the na tional Ener gy Ef ficiency Agr eements (EEA) in 2011Ð2016,
and has agr eed to par ticipa te in the new period of agr eements covering 2017Ð2025. T he tar get for 2017Ð2025
is an 18 per cent r eduction compar ed to 2015. T he agr eement is par t of the F innish Clima te and Ener gy Str ategy
and it suppor ts the implementa tion of the EU Ener gy Ef ficiency Dir ective (EED).

3. A he at pump for wastewa ter he at recovery and a new wa ter boiler for centr al he ating wer e installed a t the
Rakver e plant in Estonia. T his modifica tion of fers potential for saving ar ound 10 per cent in na tur al gas
consumption star ting fr om 2017.

4. The Vinderup plant in Denmark has achieved a two per cent electricity saving by adding a new compr essor to
the e xisting high pr essure system. T he surplus he at is also used in other applica tions in the slaughterhouse. T he
ventila tion has been upgr aded in the slaughter ar ea, saving appr oxima tely 10 000 eur os per ye ar. LED lights
installed a t both the V inderup and Sk ovsgaar d plants ar e saving about 224 MWh per ye ar.

5. The tr ansition to LED lights continued a t all pr oduction plants in Sweden. Envir onmental and ener gy tr aining
was of fer ed a t the Sk ara and Halmstad plants.
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GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS

Greenhouse gas emissions contribute to global warming, se a level rise, desertification and incr easing incidence of
extreme weather conditions, such as storms and he avy rains. HKScan therefore recognizes the impor tance of
contributing to GHG emission r eductions and commit ting to global and na tional tar gets as defined under the P aris
Agreement.

In order to understand and quantify our emission sour ces and to monitor our carbon footprint, HKScan is disclosing its
greenhouse gas emissions in compliance with scope 1 (dir ect) and 2 (indir ect) emissions of the Greenhouse gas
protocol.

HKScan has disclosed its greenhouse gas emissions since 2014. In 2015, emissions wer e reduced by 37 per cent fr om
the 2014 level and in 2016 fur ther impr ovements led to a r eduction of 53 per cent compar ed to 2014.
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In total, HKScanÕs GHG emissions decreased by 53 per cent or 127 thousand tonnes fr om 2014 to 2016. T he total
emissions for the entir e Group amounted to 112 thousand tonnes of C O2e in 2016. About half of the decr ease is

attributable to the switch to hydr oelectricity in Sweden and P oland, and the combined use of bio- and hydr oelectric
power in F inland. Increased energy efficiency and the use of r enewable ener gy sources has contributed to the
mitiga tion of clima te impacts, as well as lowered emission factors for the Nor dic and Estonian residual electricity mix es.
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GHG MITIGA TION IN 2016
HKScan Finland has moved over to using 100% renewable electricity a t all its production sites and of fices in Finland. By
choosing fully r enewable Finnish bio- and hydr opower , HKScan FinlandÕs CO2 emissions were reduced by 57 per cent

compar ed to the pr evious year. Overall emissions were reduced by ne arly 30 000 tons of CO2e. HKScanÕs acquisition of

a freezer and storage company in Forssa, Finland incr eased electricity consumption to a level corr esponding to the
overall electricity saving achieved a t HKScan, resulting in no change to the total volume of electricity consumed fr om
2015 to 2016.

GHG emissions caused by heating declined by 750 tons of CO2e. The decline is due to a r educed need for he ating.

Emissions from transports and travel were of the same order as in 2014, and emissions fr om freezing were halved.

See our website for mor e informa tion (to be upda ted by the end of Mar ch).

Scopes 1 and 2 cover less than 10 per cent of the total gr eenhouse gas emissions of me at production fr om farm to fork
(i.e. HKScan operations). Scope 3 (i.e. activities in the value chain prior to and af ter HKScan operations) covers mor e
than 90 per cent. Animal primary pr oduction is the significantly gr eatest source of emissions in scope 3. In or der to
assess its products fr om a lifecycle perspective (and par t of scope 3), HKScan uses Lifecycle analysis (LCA) to measure
the various envir onmental aspects of our pr oducts.

CARBON OFFSETTING
HKScan Finland has decided to of fset its remaining Scope 1 and Scope 2 C O2 emissions for 2016 and become one of

the first food companies in the Nor dic region to of fset the emissions of its pr oduction sites. Of fsetting is done by
financing emission r eduction pr ojects via carbon cr edits. These projects reduce the amount of C O2 emissions from the

atmospher e in amounts corr esponding to the volume of emissions pr oduced by our plants during 2016. By choosing
to compensa te for our emissions, HKScan Finland is contributing to clima te change mitiga tion and is taking gr owing
responsibility for pr omoting sustainability . Offsetting our emissions is a key step in fighting clima te change, alongside
which we also take a variety of actions to enhance ener gy efficiency, utilize renewable ener gy sources as well as mitigate
emissions in our value chain.

GHG TARGET REACHED IN SWEDEN
HKScan Sweden reached its clima te target already in 2015 by achieving a 72 per cent r eduction in GHG emissions. T he
preliminary tar get was to reduce emissions by 50 per cent fr om 2003 to 2020. In or der to k eep impr oving, Sweden has
set a new target to be r eached at the latest by 2030: a reduction of 95 per cent (Scope 1 and 2 emissions and inbound
transportation and business tr avel in Scope 3) compar ed to 2003.
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EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. The SŠkna farm in Estonia cover ed its slurry tank s with plastic to decr ease emissions into ambient air . The
plastic cover r educes methane and ammonia emissions as well as odours. All slurry tank s on other farms in
Rakver e are cover ed with LEC A (lightweight e xpanded clay aggr ega te) floa ting covers.

2. HKScan Sweden is par t of the Haga Initia tive and par ticipa tes actively in the clima te network. Mor e
informa tion on the network is available a t: ht tp://hagainitia tivet.se/en/ .

3. The Halmstad plant in Sweden conducted a pilot study on flue gas cle aning in spring 2016. It r eve aled tha t
tr eatment with activa ted carbon was the most ef fective cle aning method, potentially r educing annual
consumption of na tur al gas by 87 per cent and 638 tonnes of C O2. Activa ted carbon will be installed during

2017.
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WATER USE AND WASTEWATER

WATER USE
The Nordic countries enjoy fr esh water in abundance. L ocal shortages were noted, however , in parts of Eastern Sweden
during 2016, but so far HKScan has not been af fected dir ectly. The availability of cle an freshwater is a global issue, as
the total volume of global wa ter resources is limited. HKScan monitors its consumption of fr eshwater to be as ef ficient
as possible while mitiga ting all risk s related to food safety .

HKScan has reduced its wa ter consumption by 13 per cent during the last five ye ars. To assess potential for fur ther
savings, a Total Plant Assessment (TPA) audit was performed in Link šping, Sweden. T he purpose of the TPA is to reduce
and optimize wa ter consumption, ener gy consumption, waste and usage of cle aning chemicals. Several impr ovement
targets were identified for fur ther evaluation and implementa tion.
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EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. To reduce wa ter consumption, the Mikk eli plant in F inland r eplaced the spr ay nozzles in its cooling cabinets
with smaller ones. Optimized timing has also r educed wa ter volumes.

2. The Jelgava pr oduction plant in La tvia modified the wa ter cooling system link ed to its smoking ovens by
lowering the temper atur e and shor tening the cooling time, thus r educing wa ter consumption by 10 per cent.

3. The Skovsgaar d plant in Denmark has r educed its wa ter consumption by 5-10 per cent. Additionally , HKScan
Denmark is par ticipa ting in the ÒDRIPÓ pr oject (Danish par tnership for R esour ce and wa ter ef ficient Industrial
food Production ), which focuses on optimizing the use of drinking wa ter . Two DRIP sub-pr ojects have been

initia ted so far , saving 320 m 3 wa ter per day .

4. During the r ebuild of the stables a t the Kristianstad slaughterhouse, Sweden, new taps for drinking wa ter and
new showers for cooling the air temper atur e wer e installed to r educe wa ter consumption.
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WASTEWATER
In 2016 HKScanÕs wastewater levels have been r elatively stable. Thanks to HKScanÕs control pr ogr amme, only a
few deviations from envir onmental permit levels wer e detected a t an early stage. The detected devia tions resulted in
immedia te investiga tions and impr ovement me asures. HKScan is continuously working to r educe its wastewater
emission levels to ensur e that they remain clearly below those r equir ed under envir onmental permits.

EXAMPLE FROM OUR SITES

The wastewa ter tr eatment pr ocess was impr oved a t the Tabasalu plant in Estonia, wher e a new aer ation system
was developed for the flota tion pr ocess.
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MATERIAL EFFICIENCY AND W ASTE

Material ef ficiency and waste management cover various issues such as ef ficient use of animal r aw material, reduced
usage of packaging ma terials and minimized pr oduction-r elated food waste and food waste in gener al. Efficient use of
materials has a positive environmental impact in the form of mitiga ting clima te change and r educing ener gy and water
consumption. Mor eover, material ef ficiency contributes to maintaining biodiversity .

BIOTECH
The GroupÕs Biotech business line continued its ef forts to optimize the usage of animal-based r aw materials by
channelling side str eams into higher value added applica tions and by r educing ma terials going to waste.

EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. In line with new legisla tion in F inland, in 2016 the Outok umpu plant began tr ansferring manur e, stomach and
gut contents for biogas pr oduction inste ad of depositing this waste to landfills. T he aim of such impr ovements is
to move towar ds a cir cular economy by ef ficiently harnessing animal-based r aw ma terials and side str eams and
reducing the amount of waste.

2. The Rakver e plant in Estonia incr eased the volume of animal by-pr oducts deliver ed for biogas pr oduction.

3. The Link šping plant in Sweden intr oduced a new pr ocess for boiling ca ttle bones. T he bones ar e now sold for
food industry use on the e xpor t mark et inste ad of going to waste.
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PACKAGING MA TERIAL
HKScan has worked to fur ther pr olong the shelf life of its pr oducts by launching various new pack aging techniques. A
prolonged shelf life r educes food waste by incr easing the pr obability of the food being consumed befor e its expiry
date.

EXAMPLE FROM OUR SITES

HKScanÕs Danish plants ar e running a pr oject to decr ease pack aging ma terials. One of its k ey aims is to avoid
repacking due to underweight por tioning, mistak es, overpr oduction, etc.

FOOD W ASTE
Production-r elated food waste is an impor tant focus area because this ÔwasteÕ has potential value. Reducing waste is
also crucial for driving envir onmentally sound and r esponsible pr oduction.

EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. The Rakver e plant in Estonia decr eased pr oduction-r ela ted food waste by 10 per cent thank s to tr aining,
impr oved pr oduction lines and other investments.

2. In Sweden, HKScanÕs cooper ation continues with the Ò Matmissionen Ó social supermark et. In 2016, HKScan
SwedenÕs contribution was 8 000 kg of food pr oducts.

3. The Vantaa pr oduction plant in F inland dona ted ba tches of food to a pr oject or ganized by the City of V antaa
called ÒA shared tableÓ. The aim of the pr oject was to collect surplus food in a centr al loca tion enabling it to be
distributed ef ficiently as food aid to the needy . HKScanÕs contributions have been spor adic, however , as the
companyÕs ultima te aim is to pr event all waste.
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4. In autumn 2016 HKScan F inland par ticipa ted in ÒWastage weekÓ or ganized by the C onsumersÕ Union of
Finland. T he aim of the event is to encour age the whole food chain to r educe food waste and incr ease food
appr ecia tion.

WASTE
All our pr oduction plants adher e to a common waste hier archy: our top priority is to r educe waste, followed by r euse,
recycling, ener gy recovery and landfill as the last option.

During 2016 HKScan implemented a new waste management system in F inland. Our aim is to impr ove recycling and
increase co-operation between plants Ð also across national bor ders Ð by sharing information on successful
impr ovement actions. With the new set-up , we can more easily follow and manage waste handling a t dif ferent levels.

EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. In 2016, HKScan F inland signed a contr act with the Rinki Oy service company in or der to manage its sta tutory
extendedn pr oducer r esponsibility (ERP), which stipula tes tha t companies ar e obliga ted to manage their
pr oduct-r ela ted pack aging waste beyond just their own oper ations, for e xample in r etail. Over 5 000 companies
have signed a contr act with Rinki. Under the contr act, pr oducer r esponsibility for pack aging is tr ansferr ed fr om
HKScan to Rinki and other r ela ted or ganiza tions, which together arr ange collection and r ecycling of the
pack aging ma terial.

2. A new waste sta tion and new pr ocedur es for waste management wer e implemented a t the Link šping plant in
Sweden.
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HKScan repor ted all its waste volumes ca tegorized per tr eatment method for the first time in 2016. No comparison to
previous years is therefore available. Landfill waste has been r educed by 94 per cent over the last five ye ars, mainly
because organic waste is now either harnessed for biogas pr oduction or r e-used in new end-use ar eas identified by the
companyÕs Biotech business.
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CHEMICAL MANA GEMENT
Cleaning chemicals account for the lar gest volume of chemicals used a t HKScan. We are engaged in an ongoing ef fort
to decr ease the amount of chemicals we use and to substitute them with mor e environmentally sound options. HKScan
applies a system which closely r egisters the chemicals we use and their envir onmental and he alth effects.

EXAMPLES FROM OUR SITES

1. Finnish r egula tion VNA856/2012 was implemented a t HKScan Finland during 2016. T he regula tion
intr oduces tougher safety r equir ements for chemical handling and stor age. The regula tion has impr oved safety
both for the personnel and the envir onment by stipula ting risk evalua tions and action plans.

2. The chemical stor age unit has been r ebuilt a t the Link šping plant in Sweden. T he use of sever al chemicals has
been discontinued. A T otal Plant Assessment was conducted a t the site, also covering the use of chemicals.
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ENVIRONMENT AL WORK AT FARMS

A meat product Õs overall environmental impact tr aces back, for the most par t, to farm level. We at HKScan have
therefore started evaluating how we as a pur chaser can contribute to the sustainability of animal primary pr oduction.
Our commitment to r esponsible soy is a good e xample. During 2016 HKScan highlighted envir onmental issues and
best pr actices in its communica tions with its contr act producers, for instance in pr oducer magazines and newslet ters.
An environmental prize for primary pr oducers was launched in Sweden a t the end of 2016 to encour age producers to
share their envir onmental success stories.

HKScanÕs advisory services for producers focused on feed ef ficiency and optimal use of feed r esources at farm level,
with the goal of r educing envir onmental impacts. W e have recently impr oved the ef ficiency of our liquid by-pr oduct
transports by interlinking tr ansports, which has reduced truck tr ansport distances by 140 000 km per ye ar (which equals
3.5 times the globeÕs circumference).

BIODIVERSITY
Agricultur e and animal pr oduction have a major impact on biodiversity , the extent varying between dif ferent regions
and agricultur al practices.

Grazing cattle and sheep play a k ey role in the ecosystems of the semi-na tural pastures that we have in Sweden and
Finland, which ar e rich in biodiversity . Cattle and sheep have contributed to shaping our open landscapes for hundr eds
of years. Approximately 40 dif ferent plant and insect species can be found on one squar e meter of semi-natural pasture.
Most of the pastur es in Sweden and Finland are not semi-natural, however: these lower -biodiversity or cultiva ted
pastures nevertheless contribute to carbon sequestr ation.
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To save biodiversity and mitiga te adverse environmental and social impacts, HKScan is commit ted to using r esponsible
produced soy thr oughout its pr oduction chain, in animal feed and food pr oducts by ye ar 2018.

ORGANIC PRODUC TION
The guiding principles of or ganic pr oduction include the sustainable usage of na tural resources such as energy, land
and water, as well as biodiversity and high standar ds of animal welfar e. Organic pr oduction is driven by consumer
demand, and this is the str ongest driver for incr easing volumes of or ganic pr oducts thr oughout the value chain.

In Sweden, demand for or ganic pr oducts has witnessed extraordinary gr owth in r ecent years. We at HKScan are
constantly working to evolve with mark et demand. HKScan pur chases a considerable amount of organic meat in
Sweden. We anticipa te that interest in organic pork will incr ease slightly in coming ye ars.

HKScan has significantly increased sales of EU organic poultry in Denmark during 2016. C onsumers especially
appr eciate the animal welfare criteria fulfilled by or ganic poultry , including factors such as lar ger space and outdoor
access.
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GOALS AND IMPRO VEMENTS

GOALS IMPROVEMENTS IN THE LONG
TERM

Economic r esponsibility

¥ Achievement of financial tar gets for HKScan
and its stakeholders

¥ Investments, production management and
employment security

¥ Significant dir ect and indir ect tax footprint

¥ Improved sour cing of pr oduction animals,
materials and services

¥ Improved pr ofitability , cash flow and
productivity of primary pr oduction

¥ Strong balance sheet and impr oved net
gearing

¥ New poultry pr oduction plant investment in
Rauma, Finland

¥ Progr ess of cross-border primary pr oduction
collabor ation gr oups targeting systema tic
impr ovement of best pr actices and economic
performance

¥ Ongoing work to pr ovide pr oducer services
suppor ting primary pr oducersÕ
competitiveness

Social r esponsibility

Responsible pr oducts

¥ Continuous impr ovement of Food safety and
quality systems (ISO/FSSC 22000, BRC, IFS,
ISO 9001)

¥ Control of micr obiological, chemical and
physical risks, maintenance and contr ol of
salmonella-fr ee status

¥ Production of safe, tasty and nutritionally
balanced pr oducts

¥ Brand pr omises of selected br ands: only
domestic me at used

¥ Traceability fr om farm to fork: HKScanÕs own
farms and contr act producers, impor ted me at
origina ting fr om audited slaughterhouses

¥ Clear and transparent pr oduct informa tion

¥ All pr oduction plants ar e third-par ty certified
according to interna tional food safety
management standar ds

¥ First harmonized Gr oup-wide food safety
guidelines

¥ HKScanÕs meat supplier appr oval process in
use

¥ Wide assortment of pr oducts suppor ting
cardiac health: ÒSydŠnmerkkiÓ (Heart label)
products in Finland and ÒNyckelhŒlÓ ( Key
hole) pr oducts in Sweden

¥ Combined pr oducts with vegetables and
meat

¥ Special concepts: r apeseed-fed pork
(Rypsiporsas¨ in F inland, Rapsgris¨ in
Sweden, Omega-3 pork for e xpor t), corn-fed
chicken (Majs Plus kylling in Denmark) and
organic pr oducts thr oughout the Gr oup

¥ Iodized salt in use from the beginning of 2016
(Finland)

¥ Continuous r eduction of salt, phospha te,
nitrite

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016
Corpor ate responsibility / C orpor ate responsibility a t HKScan / Goals
and impr ovements

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 63



GOALS IMPROVEMENTS IN THE LONG
TERM

¥ HK¨, Kariniemen¨, Scan¨: me at of domestic
origin

¥ Meat raw material from HKScanÕs home
market (contract producers or own farms)

Personnel

¥ Continuous impr ovement and harmoniza tion
of employee wellbeing and workplace safety
processes

¥ Promotion of equality and diversity

¥ Competence development

¥ Lost time incident r ate down by ne arly 18 per
cent from 2015

¥ Performance Dialogue r ate impr oved
significantly especially among blue collar
employees

¥ Group-wide Employee Engagement Survey
conducted with impr oved response rate of
83.9 per cent

¥ Common Gr oup-wide people master da ta
solution pr oject started and on-going

¥ HKScan Leadership Academy pr ogr amme 2
deployed

Responsible supply chain

¥ Primary pr oduction based on long-term
contract production or on HKScanÕs own farms

¥ Extended supplier and subcontr actor
evaluation and assessment process

¥ All meat-supplying slaughterhouses ar e
audited; me at sourced only fr om audited
slaughterhouses

¥ Management of ethical risk s

¥ Collabor ation and advising services pr ovided
to contr act producers

¥ Group-wide supplier and sub-contr actor
evaluation and appr oval process update

¥ All sub-contr actors and meat suppliers
evaluated and audited

¥ All meat sourcing only fr om audited me at
slaughterhouses

¥ HKScan Group's Supplier Guidelines

¥ Evaluation of suppliers fr om CSR (Corpor ate
Social Responsibility) perspective ongoing

¥ Development of na tional plans for
responsible soy , high scores in WWF soy
scorecard

¥ Mapping of palm oil content in food pr oducts

¥ Membership in the R oundtable on
Responsible Soy (RTRS) and responsible soy
commitment

¥ Membership in the R oundtable on
Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO)

Animal he alth and welfar e

¥ Common indica tors and me asures in use, as
well as sharing of best pr actices across the
Group

¥ Animal he alth and welfar e impr ovements
throughout the value chain
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GOALS IMPROVEMENTS IN THE LONG
TERM

¥ Retain very low usage of antibiotics and other
medica tion, which is to be subject to
continuous monitoring and strict contr ol

¥ Proactive assessment and management of
animal disease risks

¥ Ensuring compliance in our own oper ations
through audits of animal welfar e in
slaughtering oper ations

¥ Raised employee skills in low str ess animal
handling

¥ Investment in slaughterhouses: impr oved
animal welfare

¥ Video surveillance installa tion in
slaughterhouses in Finland and Estonia

¥ Use of antibiotics in primary pr oduction
registered and contr olled

¥ Cross-border collabor ation to assess and
mitiga te risks related to animal dise ases at
HKScanÕs home markets

¥ African swine fever (ASF) risk management in
Estonia

¥ ASF not detected in Finland and Sweden

Envir onment

¥ Improved ener gy efficiency (reducing ener gy
usage by 10 per cent in r elation to net sales
from 2014 to 2017) and r eduction of GHG
emissions

¥ Reduced wa ter use, wastewater effluents
levels always below envir onmental permit
levels

¥ Improved waste management and r ecycling

¥ Reduction of wastage in pr oduction and food
waste through pack aging solutions

¥ Efficient use of r aw materials by using the
whole carcass

¥ Reduced and fully contr olled use of chemicals

¥ Assess environmental impact in animal supply
chain

¥ Energy efficiency pr oject: ener gy efficiency
decreased 1.2 per cent in 2014-2016 in
relation to net sales, ener gy reviews,
impr oved me asuring, efficiency investments
and increased use of renewable ener gy

¥ GHG emission disclosur e (GHG protocol,
Scope 1 and 2) 53 per cent r eduction since
2014

¥ Reduced wa ter use by 13 per cent 2012Ð2016

¥ Wastewater effluent tr eatment was relatively
stable and impr oved compar ed to 2015

¥ New measurement of waste disposal method
and impr oved recycling, mor e material to
biogas

¥ Production-r elated wastage r eduction
through pr ocess improvements, and food
waste reduction by pack aging solutions and
the Social Supermarket in Sweden

¥ Further optimized utiliza tion of by-pr oducts
and biomass (in the Biotech business line)

¥ Improved risk management of chemicals

¥ Environmental communica tion to contr act
producers

¥ Environmental prize to primary pr oducer in
Sweden
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STAKEHOLDERS

HKScan aims to actively engage in tr ansparent stakeholder collabor ation in all its oper ations. Open communica tion and
dialogue ensur e that we are constantly aware of our stakeholdersÕ expectations, and are able to pr ovide them with
relevant and up-to-da te informa tion about our activities.
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Our long-term collabor ation with our k ey stakeholders Ð consumers, customers, producers, business par tners,
authorities, and r esearch institutes Ð has deepened HKScanÕs view of the companyÕs most impor tant sustainability
themes.

These themes are present in our daily inter actions with various stakeholders. Examples of our stak eholder inter actions
in 2016 are listed in the following:

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 2016
CONSUMERS
Consumers are among HKScanÕs most impor tant stakeholders Ð they are the ones who ultima tely decide which pr oducts
end up in their shopping bask et. Consumer needs also have the biggest impact on our pr oduct of fering and R&D.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Quality and sustainability of pr oducts, pr oduct of fering, nutrition and he alth aspects, vegetarian tr ends

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ Increased transparency with Chicken Patrol, Finland
� To increase openness and transparency, Kariniemen continued its Chick en Patrol pr oject in

cooper ation with consumers.
� New Chicken Patrol videos wer e published on K ariniemenÕs YouTube channel and its website

¥ OKRA agricultur al exhibition, F inland
� The origin of me at and the HK¨ Me at School were the main topics of inter est at HKScanÕs stand at

the OKRA agricultur al exhibition. T he chefs in attendance also shared tips on how to barbecue a
perfect ste ak and plan a summer menu.

¥ Domestic me at week in schools, Finland
� HKScan participa ted in a communica tion pr oject focusing on the origin of me at as well as

promoting sustainably pr oduced domestic me at in public food deba te
� During this theme week dedica ted to domestic me at, HKScan distributed r elated te aching materials

to schools in Finland. The theme week took place in November 2016, giving schoolchildr en a
chance to learn about the pr oduction and journey of domestic me at from farm to fork.

¥ Blogs, social media
� facebook.dk/r osepoultry
� http://www .hkscanagri.fi/k otitilalta-blogi/
� http://www .hkscanagri.se/
� https://www .facebook.com/hk scansweden/
� https://www .facebook.com/R akvereLK/
� https://www .instagram.com/Rakvere_lk/
� https://www .facebook.com/tallegg/

¥ FarmerÕs Dinner, Sweden (Read mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish)
� Around 100 people par ticipa ted in HKScanÕs FarmerÕs Dinner in Sweden. The event was organized

on a farm where delicious me als were prepared from high-quality ingr edients. The guests had the
oppor tunity to view the farmÕs operations first-hand and see the animals in their na tural
environment.

¥ ÒMeat of the futur eÓ, Sweden
� Framtidens kšt t, ÒMeat of the futur eÓ is HKScan SwedenÕs digital communica tion channel.

Framtidensk ott.se offers an oppor tunity for all to le arn about and shar e themes and discussions
around and about me at.

� Introduction: https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=dfWRoAEoTSI
� Meat and health: https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=4awdz_tGOF0
� Climate: https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=JeSu5gqjaQA
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¥ Traditional Christmas tr ade in gr ocery stores, Sweden
� HKScan employees and management a ttended in person to sell HKScan products in gr ocery stores

during the Christmas se ason.

CUSTOMERS
HKScanÕs customers include r etailers, food services and the food industry in the Nor dic countries, C entral Europe, and
Asia. Close cooper ation, knowledge sharing, and joint development pr ojects are impor tant for the gr owth of both
HKScan and its customers.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Product assor tment, pr oduct safety , supply chain and its tr ansparency, common development pr ojects, price

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ HKScan meat producers wer e involved in the r etailer KeskoÕs campaign, Tuot tajille kiitos or ÒThanks to
producersÓ, Finland

� One of FinlandÕs major retailers, K-group , paid an extra commission dir ectly to me at producers. The
commission was included in the pr oduct price. T he campaign star ted in 2015 with Christmas hams.

� The campaign aimed to incr ease recognition of F innish food pr oduction and the Finnish food
industry .

¥ Collabor ation with Restaurant AG, Sweden
� HKScan continued its long-term, e xtensive collabor ation with the Restaurant AG by supplying high-

quality Swedish beef.
¥ Collabor ation established with K otipizza, Finland

� HKScan Finland initia ted collabor ation with the K otipizza chain. Kotipizza now uses HK Rypsiporsas¨
ham chips on its ham pizzas. The product has been developed in line with K otipizzaÕs wishes.

¥ ÒPork AcademyÓ, Sweden (Read mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish)
� HKScan Sweden promoted the pork pr oduction chain among its AfH customers by of fering them

training as part of the ÔGris academyÕ.

PRODUCERS
HKScan depends on seamless cooper ation with our contract producers to ensur e the availability and quality of me at
raw material for our pr oducts. Producers also play an impor tant role in ensuring the wellbeing of animals and pr oduct
safety.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Long-lasting contr actual business relationships, pr oducer advisory services as well as other services, fair prices,
continuity of me at production.

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ Networking cruise for F innish and Swedish contr act producers
� The first ever networking cruise was or ganized for HKScan contr act producers in January 2016. The

cruise offered par ticipants a chance to network with pr oducers fr om neighbouring countries.
¥ Producer awar ds, Finland, Sweden and Denmark

� HKScan selected and awarded the best pr oducers of 2016
� Finland: Poultry pr oducer: https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=ZKI8BCfLyi4
� Finland: Beef pr oducer: https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=ifBsYbQRAlk
� Finland: Pork pr oducer: https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=isx6q-phwL4
� Sweden: Lamm producer: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish
� Sweden: Beef producer: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish
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� Sweden: Pork pr oducer: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish
¥ Kotitilalta pr oducer magazine, F inland

� https://www .hkscanagri.fi/tuot tajalehti/
¥ HKScan Agri producer magazine Sweden

� http://www .hkscanagri.se/aktuellt/hk scan-agri-tidning/
¥ OKRA agricultur al exhibition, F inland

� HKScan met its producers at the agricultur al exhibition
� https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=Frr-8SdgGWA

¥ Bull auction, Finland
� https://www .youtube.com/wa tch?v=ZqNB4yVuEC0

EMPLOYEES
The know-how and commitment of our employees is crucial to HKScanÕ s success. Personal development oppor tunities,
unified ways of working and a str ong business cultur e will ensure good employee engagement into the futur e.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Continuity of employment, fair compensa tion, appr eciation of work and equality , personal development oppor tunities,
occupa tional safety

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ 'Let's save energy', ener gy saving campaign for the personnel
¥ Employee survey

� HKScan organized an employee engagement survey in the autumn of 2016.
¥ The continuous impr ovement pr ogr amme ongoing
¥ Open house for families of personnel in Denmark

� The families of HKScanÕs employees were invited to the Sk ovsgaard pr oduction facility in Denmark.
They were introduced to the pr oduction, pack aging and war ehousing of Rose¨ br anded pr oducts.

OWNERS, INVESTORS, FINANCIERS
To ensure the continuity of its oper ations, HKScan relies on its owners, investors and financiers, who in turn e xpect
profitable, value-adding business oper ations and return on investment (dividends).

Impor tant sustainability themes

Profitability , profit, success and continuity of r esponsible oper ations, dividend

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ General meeting
¥ Investor and financier meetings

PARTNERS
HKScan develops its oper ations through shared expertise and long-term cooper ation with subcontr actors and
suppliers, par tners, local communities, as well as r esearch and educa tional institutions.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Animal he alth and wellbeing, public he alth and nutrition, engaging youth, occupa tional he alth and safety,
environmental questions
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Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ Collabor ation pr oject on animal feed with Hankkija and Schothorst F eed Research Institute, Finland
� A new pig feed concept was launched as a r esult of collabor ation between HKScan, Hankkija, and

the Schothorst Feed Research Institute. The feeding solution (Opti-P ekoni) ensures animal wellbeing
while facilita ting everyday farm oper ations and reducing e xpenses.

¥ Innokampus collabor ation and the worldÕs biggest mass innova tion day , Finland
� http://www2.hk scan.com/por tal/english/hk scan/news_releases/?id=2083
� http://www2.hk scan.com/por tal/english/hk scan/news_releases/?id=2096

¥ Tekes research collabor ation on he althy nutrition of army conscripts, F inland
� HKScan participa ted in a research project funded by T ekes (Finnish Funding Agency for Innova tion).

The project aimed a t developing new nutrition solutions for army conscripts as well as ways to
promote he althy food choices in the military .

¥ Haga Initiativet, Sweden
� The Haga Initiative is a network of companies tha t works to reduce carbon emissions. It highlights

climate issues by showing tha t ambitious clima te strategies create business advantages and
impr ove profitability .

¥ Almedalen, Sweden
� Almedalen week in July is an annual event on the isle of Gotland, Sweden (R ead mor e: HKScan Agri

magazine, only in Swedish). During the event, topical political and social issues ar e discussed. It is
organized by the Swedish parliamentary par ties. In 2016, HKScan organized a seminar and event
under the theme "C attle and clima te".

¥ Veterinary students wer e introduced to poultry pr oduction, F inland
� The Finnish poultry associa tions (Siipikarjaliit to, Broileryhdistys) together with HKScan F inland

offered all veterinary students a t the Helsinki University a chance to visit a poultry farm and a
slaughterhouse. The three-day visits were organized in November and December .

¥ GŒrd och djur collabor ation, Sweden
� Collabor ation focusing on animal he alth and wellbeing (R ead mor e: HKScan Agri magazine, only in

Swedish)
¥ ELLO i Lammhult collabor ation, Sweden

� The objective of this collabor ation is to of fer local slaughterhouse services to beef farms (R ead
more: HKScan Agri magazine, only in Swedish).

¥ Collabor ation with the Na tional Institute for He alth and Welfare in designing the R auma production plant,
Finland

� http://www2.hk scan.com/por tal/english/hk scan/news_releases/?id=2147
¥ Collabor ation with stak eholders: Soy commitment, F inland

� http://www2.hk scan.com/por tal/english/hk scan/news_releases/?id=2047
¥ Collabor ation with animal behaviour e xpert Sophie Atkinson, F inland

� http://www2.hk scan.com/por tal/english/hk scan/news_releases/?id=2045

AUTHORITIES
Close collabor ation with na tional governments and local authorities ensur es uninterrupted oper ations and smooth
processing of licences.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Animal he alth and wellbeing, public he alth and nutrition, pr oduct safety , environmental topics

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ Environmental permit for R aumaÕs production plant, F inland
� http://www2.hk scan.com/por tal/english/hk scan/news_releases/?id=2057

¥ Collabor ation with authorities
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� Everyday collabor ation at HKScanÕs contract farms, slaughterhouses, and pr oduction plants
� Work pr eventing the spr ead of African swine fever in Estonia, F inland, and Sweden
� Work pr eventing the spr ead of avian flu in Denmark, F inland, and Sweden

MEDIA AND OPINION LEADERS
Media, politicians, inter est groups, and non-governmental or ganizations have a significant impact on the development,
regula tions, and image of the industry Ð also interna tionally . Open and honest communica tion is crucial for maintaining
good r elationships.

Impor tant sustainability themes

Animal he alth and wellbeing, public he alth and nutrition, envir onmental topics

Engagement e xamples 2016

¥ Almedalen, Sweden (see above)
¥ Haga Initiativet, Sweden (see above)
¥ ÒAbout me atÓ (Lihasta) project, Finland

� http://www .lihasta.fi/
¥ Professional PR work throughout the Gr oup , for example a pr ess event about investments in the Outok umpu

production plant, F inland:
� HKScan has expanded the barn a t its beef slaughterhouse, upgr aded its pr e-slaughter animal

handling facilities, and fully r enewed the beef cut ting unit. T he wastewater treatment system and
carcass chilling facilities have also been modernized. R ecording video surveillance camer as have
been installed in all ar eas critical to the animal welfar e.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016

¥ Net sales were EUR 1872.9 (1 917.1) million
¥ EBIT was EUR 9.7 (9.6) million. Compar able EBIT was EUR 13.2 (21.5) million, and the corresponding EBIT

margin was 0.7 (1.1) per cent.
¥ Cash flow befor e debt service was EUR 23.7 (32.2) million.
¥ Compar able pr ofit befor e taxes was EUR 4.4 (14.1) million.
¥ EPS was EUR -0.10 (0.01).
¥ Net financial e xpenses were EUR -8.7 (-9.1) million.
¥ Net debt was EUR 137.2 (144.0) million.
¥ Outlook for 2017: HKScan aims to r each the compar able oper ating pr ofit (EBIT) of the year 2016.
¥ The BoardÕs proposal for dividend is EUR 0.16 (0.14) per shar e.

GROUP OVERVIEW
In 2016, the GroupÕs net sales decreased compar ed to 2015 and all the other mark et areas, except Finland, wer e
behind the pr evious year. The GroupÕs comparable EBIT was lower than in the previous year. The biggest decline in
EBIT was in market area Sweden, due to we ak sales performance, especially in the pr ocessed category . Performance in
Sweden was also impacted by the higher pur chase prices and the scarcity of beef on the mark et. In Finland, full-ye ar
EBIT remained behind the pr evious year due to the we ak first half of the year. EBIT in the Baltics showed a slight
impr ovement. Mark et area Denmark made still loss, but it continued performing well on the domestic r etail market, and
challenges in e xpor ts continued.

Animal raw material prices in F inland and the Baltics wer e at a level slightly below 2015. In Sweden, the prices of animal
raw material, beef in par ticular, continued incr easing. A shortage of beef continued in Sweden and also in F inland to
some extent thr oughout the whole r epor ting period. An oversupply of pork posed challenges on the F innish market.
Thanks to successful actions to mitiga te the pig oversupply in the F innish meat value chain, pork inventories wer e
successfully lowered towar ds the end of the ye ar to a level below the pr evious year. Vegetarian and vegan food wer e
discussed widely in 2016, but the over all level of me at consumption r emained stable thr oughout the ye ar.

The total mark et in Sweden and Denmark gr ew in value. In Finland, wher e the total mark et in value had declined
throughout the first thr ee quarters of the year, yet showed gr owth in the four th quar ter. The Baltic market declined in
value. Fierce price competition continued on all mark ets, especially in retail. Despite the mark et decline in F inland and
the Baltics, inventories wer e successfully kept in balance. In Denmark, the domestic mark et grew and HKScan increased
its market share in value.

During 2016, F inland successfully maintained or incr eased its market share in value, depending on ca tegory . Away from
home sales grew in Finland at a faster pace than the mark et in value, but in Sweden the gr owth rate was slower. In
expor t, price levels impr oved fr om the pr evious year. HKScan opened a sales office in Hong Kong in January.

The GroupÕs investment in a new poultry pr oduction facility in R auma, Finland, pr oceeded well in 2016. R elated to the
launch of the new pr oduction facility , HKScan initiated statutory negotia tions at its Eura plant, Finland in December . The
expansion investment of the Gr oupÕs Polish bacon plant was also making good he adway.

In December , HKScan announced the results of its internal investiga tion into its Baltic business. The proven viola tions of
Code of C onduct and the principles of good governance led to the termina tion of the managerial and employment
contracts of four persons fr om the local management.
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REVIEW BY MARKET AREA

NET SALES AND EBIT BY MARKET AREA

(EUR million)

NET SALES 2016 2015

Sweden 804.4 841.9

Finland 806.5 801.6

Denmark 173.2 175.9

Baltics 161.3 173.6

Between segments -72.4 -76.0

Group total 1 872.9 1 917.1

EBIT

Sweden 12.9 21.1

Finland 14.6 4.9

Denmark -9.5 -9.3

Baltics 6.4 5.4

Between segments - -

Segments total 24.4 22.1

Group administr ation costs -14.7 -12.5

Group total 9.7 9.6

The division of segments is based on the Gr oupÕs organization and the r epor ting to the Boar d of Dir ectors and
Management. Management monitors the pr ofitability of business oper ations by mark et area. The GroupÕs primary
segments are geogr aphical segments: Sweden, F inland, Denmark and the Baltics.

MARKET AREA SWEDEN
In Sweden, net sales were EUR 804.4 (841.9) million and compar able EBIT was EUR 14.5 (21.6) million.

Net sales in 2016 declined fr om 2015, mainly due to the shor tage of beef r aw material and declined sales of pr ocessed
food, including cold cuts. In the four th quar ter, both net sales and compar able EBIT decreased.

A shortage of Swedish pork and beef during spring and summer r esulted in incr eased animal raw material prices. As a
result of that HKScan succeeded to increase sales prices. However, they did not fully compensa te for higher r aw
material prices and sales volume decline on a full ye ar basis. The amount of impor ted me at increased on the mark et
and priva te label gr owth continued in all ca tegories in Sweden. T he total mark et grew in value, but HKScan lost some of
its market share.
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Consumer demand for food incr eased in gener al with a focus on or ganic pr oducts, as well as on health, wellbeing and
vegetarian tr ends. HKScan responded to this by launching sever al Scan¨-br anded novelties containing both me at and
vegetables. Sustainability r elated communica tions activities under the ÒFramtidens Kšt tÓ (Meat of the Future) concept
were successfully undertaken according to tar gets.

MARKET AREA FINLAND
In Finland, net sales were EUR 806.5 (801.6) million and compar able EBIT was EUR 14.8 (16.3) million.

Net sales increased slightly fr om 2015, but compar able EBIT decreased. Sales prices declined in Finland, but thank s to
the impr oved pr oduct mix and volumes, the ye ar-on-year increase seen in comparable EBIT in the third quar ter
continued also in the four th quar ter. HKScan successfully increased its market share towards the end of the ye ar.
Christmas season sales were bet ter than in the pr evious year.

The total mark et grew in value in the four th quar ter after a long decline tha t began back in e arly 2015. The impr oved
situation was suppor ted by slowly str engthened consumer confidence. T he convenience food and poultry ca tegories in
particular showed positive development, with both volume and value impr oving during the whole of 2016. P ork
inventories wer e successfully lowered to a level below the pr evious year. Animal pur chase prices in the four th quar ter
were somewhat higher than in the pr evious quar ters. For the whole ye ar 2016, the prices wer e slightly below the level
of 2015.

HK Maakarit¨ artisan sausages gained loyal consumers and new variants wer e launched under the concept. Also the
launch of new bacon variants had a positive star t, expanding the pr oduct r ange from classical products to new ar eas. In
poultry , the Kariniemen KanaSet¨ products wer e the best-selling novelty during 2016.

The GroupÕs investment pr oject in the new poultry pr oduction plant in R auma proceeded accor ding to schedule.

MARKET AREA DENMARK
In Denmark, net sales were EUR 173.2 (175.9) million and compar able EBIT was EUR -9.1 (-9.3) million.

On the Danish mark et, overall consumer demand for poultry r emained positive. T he sales trend in fr esh products was
positive, le ading to higher volumes, impr oved mar gins, and gained mark et shares.

The market situation in e xpor ts was fierce throughout the ye ar, and DenmarkÕs performance in these mark ets was
negatively affected both as r egards price and volumes. Towards the year-end, its performance was fur ther impacted by
the closure of key Asian markets due to an outbr eak of avian flu in Denmark during November .

HKScanÕs investments in the Rose¨ br and have brought positive r esults, i.e. improved mark et share and br and
awareness.

MARKET AREA BALTICS
In the Baltics, net sales were EUR 161.3 (173.6) million and compar able EBIT was EUR 6.4 (5.4) million.

Net sales decreased in 2016, but compar able EBIT improved fr om the pr evious year throughout 2016. F or
JanuaryÐDecember the change in the fair value of biological assets amounted to EUR 0.8 (0.0) million.

New trends in meat consumption nega tively affected tr aditional pr ocessed meat categories such as sausages. In market
area Baltics, sales prices and volumes declined, but primary pr oduction r elated costs as well as other costs decreased
and compensa ted for the impact of declined net sales.

For the Baltic business, 2016 mark ed a year of recovery after the nega tive impacts caused by African Swine Fever (ASF)
from 2015 onwar ds. Disease-related risks prevailed, but actions to mitiga te the spread to HKScan farms were managed
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successfully. The pork business star ted showing signs of r ecovery, and reduced zoning in November enabled HKScan
to regain its pr evious sales and meat balance. Poultry consumption k ept gr owing, but sales prices wer e very low. In the
four th quar ter, the expor t business picked up thank s to a more favourable pr oduct mix and impr oved pork prices.

HKScan continued to harness the synergies of its br and and pr oduct por tfolio between the Baltic mark ets. Strong
branded sales were to a large extent a consequence of successful concept launches during the autumn. P articularly the
new Rakvere¨ 50/50 me atballs, containing both me at and vegetables, and Tallegg¨ chick en product novelties wer e
well received by consumers.

INVESTMENTS
The GroupÕs net investments in 2016 came to EUR 97.6 (49.6) million. Their br eakdown by mark et area was as follows:

(EUR million)

2016 2015

Sweden 19.8 13.7

Finland 64.0 19.9

Denmark 3.1 5.4

Baltics 10.8 10.6

Total 97.6 49.6

FINANCING
The GroupÕs interest-bearing debt a t the year-end stood a t EUR 144.1 (153.8) million. Net debt was EUR 137.2 (144.0)
million and the net ge aring ratio 33.5 (33.8) per cent.

The GroupÕs liquidity was good. C ommit ted credit facilities a t 31 December stood a t EUR 100.0 (100.0) million, and
were entirely undr awn. The EUR 200.0 million commer cial paper pr ogr amme had been dr awn to the amount of EUR 7.0
(27.0) million.

Net financial e xpenses were EUR -2.2 (-2.2) million in the last quarter and EUR -8.7 (-9.1) million in 2016.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development in HKScan Gr oup is targeted a t developing new pr oducts and concepts and making
impr ovements to pr oducts tha t are already on the mark et. A total of EUR 6.6 (5.1) million was spent on R&D in 2016,
equal to 0.4 (0.3) per cent of net sales.

The development of common innova tion pla tforms and pr ocesses continued in 2016, and syner gistic cross-border
oppor tunities received incr eased attention. Cr eating new gr owth areas is the GroupÕs key priority going forwar d.

HKScan is continuously building its R&D network in or der to suppor t the implementa tion of the Gr oup strategy. During
2016, several new partnerships and joint pr ojects were established with collabor ators such as universities, research
organizations, suppliers and other priva te organizations.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
HKScan has defined its priority ar eas in corpor ate responsibility as economic r esponsibility , social responsibility , animal
welfare and the envir onment.

In 2016, HKScan carried out its second employee engagement survey . The results confirmed tha t the impr ovement
actions taken on the basis of the pr evious survey (in 2014) have brought r esults in terms of bet ter informa tion flow and
increased oppor tunities for involvement and taking initia tive. Overall awareness of values and targets have
strengthened. Towards the end of the ye ar, new impr ovement plans wer e made, and the actions will be initia ted during
2017. These include workplace/personnel safety impr ovements, which wer e in focus across the Group during 2016.

The construction of HKScanÕs new poultry pr oduction facility in R auma started in Finland. The plant is scheduled for
completion a t the end of 2017. F rom the very earliest stages of planning the pr oject, special a ttention has been
addr essed to securing animal welfar e, biosecurity r elated to animal dise ases, food safety and product quality , as well as
employee wellbeing and safety aspects. T he investment will also impr ove environmental ef ficiency over all, and enable
utilization of side-str eams for biotech pr oducts. Additionally , the new facility will have a significant dir ect and indir ect
employment impact.

In Finland, investment in the Outok umpu beef slaughterhouse and pr oduction facility mark ed a significant
impr ovement in oper ational ef ficiency, ergonomics, envir onmental ef ficiency and animal welfar e. Also the renewal of
barn facilities a t the Kristianstad slaughterhouse in Sweden br ought impr ovements in animal welfar e.

The Group work ed in cooper ation with animal behaviour e xperts, and all slaughterhouses wer e audited for animal
welfare. The audits kicked of f many impr ovements at the slaughterhouses pr emises, starting with impr oved conditions
for the fr ee movement of animals. Additionally , in Finland, tr aining of the slaughterhouse personnel, drivers and
producers was organized to enhance their understanding of na tural cattle behaviour and to help them tak e this into
account in their animal handling pr ocedur es.

The Group r etained its good sta tus regarding animal dise ases both in its contr act production and in its own primary
production. In all HKScan countries, the use of antibiotics in the tr eatment of animals is significantly lower than in other
Europe an countries on aver age. Neither farms owned by HKScan nor its contr act farmers use antibiotics pr eventively or
to pr omote animal gr owth. In addition, the use of hormones as gr owth pr omoters is fully pr ohibited. Good animal car e
and contr ol of animal dise ases has led to good r esults in preventing outbr eaks. Prevention of the spr ead of African
Swine Fever (ASF) on pig farms was one of the main me asures undertaken at HKScan farms in the Baltics. In Finland and
Sweden, HKScan has also worked diligently to pr event the spr ead of the dise ase. A new animal disease threat that has
emerged r ecently is high pa thogenic avian flu (H5N8), which has been found in wild bir ds in countries in which the
Group oper ates.

A clinical study under taken by Helsinki University showed tha t Rypsiporsas¨ me at (rape seed pork) contains four times
more polyunsaturated omega 3 fa ts than normal pork me at. Healthy lifestyles and responsibly pr oduced, pur e food ar e
emerging tr ends also in Asia, which is the worldÕs largest pork mark et. HKScan answered to this tr end by launching
expor ts of Rypsiporsas¨ me at to Hong Kong.

HKScan is a member of the Round Table on Responsible Soy (RTRS) and the Roundtable on Sustainable P alm Oil
(RSPO). The Group is commit ted to using only 100 per cent r esponsible soy in animal feed and as an ingr edient by the
end of 2018. In Sweden, this commitment was alr eady fulfilled in 2015. HKScan finalized its survey of the Gr oupÕs palm
oil usage in 2016. Palm oil is used only in very small amounts in the Gr oupÕs products and subcontr acting. The target is
to ensure that all palm oil used by HKScan is responsibly pr oduced. The Group is also looking into the option of using
alternative vegetable oils inste ad of palm oil.

HKScan is making on ongoing ef fort to monitor and r educe the envir onmental impacts of its oper ations. These impacts
are currently associated with ener gy efficiency and gr eenhouse gas emissions, wastewater, use of water, use of
chemicals and tr eatment of waste. The Group launched an ener gy efficiency pr oject in 2015, which continued in 2016
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on multiple fr onts. The target is to decr ease the GroupÕs overall consumption of ener gy by 10 per cent fr om the 2014
level by 2017 (inde xed to net sales). These efforts included an ener gy saving competition among personnel, which
yielded over 1 000 ener gy-saving ide as.

HKScan operates in countries wher e responsible pr actices are widely embr aced, automa tically bringing us a number of
valuable strengths in global comparison. T hese include high standar ds of hygiene, he althy animals, clean soil, as well as
rich and cle an water reserves. In 2016, HKScan participa ted in a number of cooper ation pr ojects and studies focusing
on the envir onmental impacts of me at production and their mitiga tion.

ANNU AL GENERAL MEETING AND BOARD OF DIRECTORSÕ
AUTHORIZATIONS
The Annual Gener al Meeting of HKScan Corpor ation was held on 13 April 2016 in Helsinki. T he resolutions of the A GM,
including authoriza tions given to the Boar d, are repor ted in full in a stock r elease the same day.

The AGM resolved tha t a dividend of EUR 0.14 be paid for 2015. All the Boar d members: Teija Andersen, Niels Borup ,
Tero HemmilŠ, Mikko Nikula, Henrik Treschow and Pirjo VŠliaho, as well as both deputy Boar d members: Per Nilsson
and Marko Onnela wer e re-elected for a fur ther term of of fice. At the or ganizational meeting, the Boar d re-elected
Mikko Nikula as Chairman and Niels Borup as Vice Chairman. Tero HemmilŠ resigned fr om the Company's Boar d on 11
May 2016.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy , an audit firm char tered by the C entral Chamber of C ommer ce, with APA Jouko Malinen as
the main auditor , was elected as the actual auditor until the close of the ne xt Annual Gener al Meeting.

In April 2016, the Boar d exercised the authoriza tions given by the A GM in conjunction to the dir ected share issue
according to the Gr oupÕs share based incentive plan 2013, payment of the r ewards for the performance period
2013Ð2015.

CHANGES IN THE SENIOR MANA GEMENT
On 27 May, HKScan announced that Jari Latvanen had been appointed as HKScanÕs new President and CEO. He began
in the position on 31 October 2016. His pr edecessor, Mr Hannu Kottonen, had lef t the company on 20 J anuary 2016.
During the interim period, Aki Laiho , deputy CEO and C OO, assumed the position of CEO .

In June, Anders Jeppesen Jensen, Gener al Manager at HKScan Denmark left the company and Gšr an Holm was named
acting Gener al Manager of HKScan Denmark on top of his duties as EVP Consumer Business, Scandinavia.

On 2 November , HKScan announced that Jyrki Karlsson had been appointed as the new Ex ecutive Vice President,
Consumer Business, Finland and Baltics. Samuli Eskola, his predecessor, left the company on 1 November .

On 2 November , HKScan announced that Anu Mankki had been appointed as the new EVP , HR. Her predecessor Sari
Suono left the company in the end of September . Ms Mankki assumed her position on 2 J anuary 2017.

Effective as of 19 December 2016, Anne Mer e, Chief Marketing Of ficer (CMO) of HKScan, took over as the new EVP
Consumer Business Baltics. She also retained her r ole as Group CMO . Consequently , Jyrki Karlsson was appointed as
EVP responsible for C onsumer Business Finland.

After the repor ting period, on 8 F ebruary 2017, HKScan informed on r enewing its Gr oup Leadership Team.
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GROUP LEADERSHIP TEAM
As of 8 February 2017, HKScanÕs Group Leadership Team comprises the following members: J ari Latvanen, President
and CEO; Sofia HylŽen Toresson, EVP Market Area Sweden (assuming her post on 2 May 2017); Jyrki K arlsson, EVP for
Market Area Finland; Svend Schou Bor ch, EVP Market Area Denmark; Anne Mer e, EVP Market Area Baltics; Jukka
Nikkinen, EVP Market Area International & Biotech; Heli Ar antola, EVP Categories and C oncepts (assuming her post on
2 May 2017); Aki Laiho, EVP Operations; Anu Mankki, EVP HR; Tuomo Valkonen, CFO; and Markk u Suvanto, EVP Legal.

SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS
SHARES
HKScan GroupÕs registered and fully paid-up shar e capital at the beginning and end of 2016 was EUR 66 820 528. The
total number of shar es issued was 55 026 522, and it was divided into two shar e series as follows: A Shares, 49 626 522
(90.19% of the total number of shar es) and K Shares 5 400 000 (9.81%). The A Shares are quoted on the Nasdaq
Helsinki Ltd. The K Shares are held by LSO Osuuskunta (4 735 000 shares) and LantmŠnnen ek.fšr. (665 000 shares) and
are not listed.

According to the Ar ticles of Association, each A Share conveys one vote, and e ach K Share 20 votes. Each share gives
equal entitlement to a dividend. T he shares have no nominal value.

HKScanÕs market capitalization at the end of the ye ar stood at EUR 172.3 (205.6) million based on the closing price of
the last trading day of the period. T he Series A shares had a market value of EUR 155.1 (185.1) million, and the unlisted
Series K shares EUR 17.2 (20.6) million correspondingly .

In 2016, a total of 13 313 324 of the companyÕs shares, with a total value of EUR 42 427 708, were traded. The highest
price quoted was EUR 3.89 and the lowest EUR 2.89. The average price was EUR 3.18. At the end of 2016, the closing
price was EUR 3.19.

SHAREHOLDERS
At the end of 2016, the shar eholder r egister maintained by Eur oclear Finland Ltd included 13 226 (12 558)
shareholders. Nominee-r egistered and for eign shareholders held 12.6 (24.9) per cent of the company's shar es.

NOTIFICATIONS OF CHANGES IN HOLDINGS
On 21 December 2016, Sveriges Djurbšnder ek. fšr notified tha t the total amount of HKScan C orpor ation shares
owned by them had decr eased below the thr eshold of ten (10) per cent and the shar e of voting rights had decr eased
below five (5) per cent. On 21 December 2016, Sveriges Djurbšnder owned 3 615 000 HKScan A-shares and 0 K-
shares, and 3 615 000 voting rights.

On 21 December 2016, LantmŠnnen ek.fšr notified tha t the total amount of HKScan C orpor ation shares owned by them
had exceeded the thr eshold of five (5) per cent and the shar e of voting rights had e xceeded the thr eshold of ten (10)
per cent. On 21 December 2016, LantmŠnnen owned 2 619 750 HKScan A-shares and 665 000 K-shares, and in total
15 919 750 voting rights.

TREASURY SHARES
At the beginning the financial ye ar 2016, HKScan held 1 053 734 treasury A shares. On 8 April 2016, in total 44 885
treasury shares were gratuitous tr ansferred to the par ticipants of the shar e based incentive plan 2013 accor ding to its
terms.

At the end of 2016 the Gr oup had 1 008 849 treasury A shares, and they had a market value of EUR 3.2 million and
accounted for 1.83% of all shar es and 0.64% of all votes.
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SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEME
Incentive plan 2016 for the Gr oup key personnel was published the stock e xchange release dated on 18 December
2015. The plan covers one performance period, ye ar 2016. The potential r eward from the performance period will be
based on the HKScan GroupÕs Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amor tization (EBITDA) and Earnings
per Share (EPS).

Rewards from the performance period will be paid par tly in the CompanyÕs A series shares and partly in cash as follows:
50 per cent pay-out in 2017 and 50 per cent pay out in 2018. T he cash propor tion is intended to cover tax es and tax-
related costs arising fr om the r ewards to the key personnel. No r eward will be paid, if the k ey employeeÕs employment
or service ends befor e reward payment. The plan was preliminary dir ected to 37 people. T he rewards to be paid on
basis of the performance period ar e a maximum appr oximate total of 366 000 HKScan Corpor ation series A shares and
cash payment corr esponding to the value of such shar es.

SHAREHOLDING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE PRESIDENT AND
CEO
At the end of 2016, members of the Boar d of Dir ectors and the companyÕs President and CEO and his deputy , as well as
their related par ties owned a total of 49 144 A Shares, corresponding to 0.09 per cent of the total number of shar es and
0.03 per cent of the votes.
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OWNERSHIP BREAKDOWN BY AMOUNT OF SHARES ON 31 DECEMBER
2016

Number of shar es held Shareholders Shareholders, % Shares Shares, % Votes Votes,%

1Ð100 3 262 24.66 166 575 0.30 166 575 0.11

101Ð500 5 054 38.21 1 450 446 2.64 1 450 446 0.92

501Ð1 000 2 228 16.85 1 740 216 3.16 1 740 216 1.10

1 001Ð5 000 2 225 16.82 4 970 254 9.03 4 970 254 3.15

5 001Ð10 000 254 1.92 1 805 497 3.28 1 805 497 1.15

10 001Ð50 000 154 1.16 3 152 874 5.73 3 152 874 2.00

50 001Ð100 000 23 0.17 1 606 935 2.92 1 606 935 1.02

100 001Ð500 000 13 0.10 3 234 071 5.88 3 234 071 2.05

500 001Ð 13 0.10 36 102 144 65.61 126 067 144 79.98

Total 13 226 100.00 54 229 012 98.55 144 194 012 91.48

of which nominee r egistered 8 6 819 442 12.39 6 819 442 4.33

Waiting list 1 665 000 1.21 13 300 000 8.44

General account 132 510 0.24 132 510 0.08

Number of shar es issued 55 026 522 100.00 157 626 522 100.00
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SHARE CAPITAL BY SHARE SERIES ON 31 DECEMBER 2016

Share series Shares Share of equity , % Share of votes, %

A shares 49 626 522 90.19 31.48

K shares 5 400 000 9.81 68.52

Total 55 026 522 100 100

OWNERSHIP BREAKDOWN BY SECTOR ON 31 DECEMBER 2016

Share of owners,
%

Share of shar es,
%

Share of votes,
%

Corpor ates 3.69 44.32 72.55

Finance and insurance companies 0.14 1.41 4.75

Public entities 0.05 6.97 2.44

Households 95.34 23.68 8.27

Non-pr ofit or ganizations 0.54 3.06 1.07

Domestic sectors, total 99.77 79.44 89.07

Abroad 0.23 6.71 2.41

All sectors, total 100.00 86.16 91.48

General account 0.24 0.08
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20 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS ON 31 DECEMBER 2016

A shares K shares
Of total

shares, %
Of total

votes, %

1 LSO Osuuskunta 14 458 884 4 735 000 34.88 69.25

2 Sveriges Djurbšnder Ek. F šr. 3 615 000 0 6.57 2.29

3 Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company 1 192 806 0 2.17 0.76

4 Elo Pension Company 1 142 830 0 2.08 0.73

5 HKScan Corpor ation 1 008 849 0 1.83 0.64

6 Tiiviste-Group O Y 1 000 000 0 1.82 0.63

7
The Central Union of Agricultur al Producers and
Forest Owners (MTK) 836 414 0 1.52 0.53

8 Apteekkien ElŠkekassa 752 500 0 1.37 0.48

9 Hisinger -JŠgerskišld Eva 560 000 0 1.02 0.36

10 Petter and Mar git Forsstršm«s Founda tion 510 500 0 0.93 0.32

11 The State Pension Fund 500 000 0 0.91 0.32

12 Hallqvist AB 405 000 0 0.74 0.26

13 Nordea Life Assurance Finland Ltd. 400 000 0 0.73 0.25

14 Sijoitusrahasto Taaleritehdas Arvo Markk a Osake 350 000 0 0.64 0.22

15 Suhonen Jyrki 220 312 0 0.40 0.14

16 Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company 218 298 0 0.40 0.14

17 Gripenber g Jarl Estate 169 000 0 0.31 0.11

18 K. Hartwall Invest Oy Ab 163 300 0 0.30 0.10

19 Ollik ainen Pekka 122 000 0 0.22 0.08

20 Ab 2011 Fruitgum C ompany Oy 120 000 0 0.22 0.08

Other shar eholders, total 21 880 829 0 40.94 22.31

All shar es, total 49 626 522 5 400 000 100.00 100.00

Source: Euroclear Finland
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PERSONNEL
In 2016, HKScan had an average of 7 319 (7 437) personnel.
The average number of employees in e ach market area was as follows:

2016 2015

Sweden 2 162 2 176

Finland 2 912 2 840

Denmark 686 726

Baltics 1 560 1 696

Total 7 319 7 437

SHORT-TERM RISKS AND UNCERTAINTY FACTORS
The most significant uncer tainty factors in the HKScan GroupÕs business are related to sales and raw material prices, as
well as management of global and local me at balances.

The risks include various une xpected actions potentially tak en by authorities or pr essure groups, which may cause
restrictions to the business or vola tility in demand.

In the food industryÕs raw material supply , the risks of animal diseases, such as the African Swine Fewer (ASF) currently in
Estonia, or any international or r egional food scandals impacting the over all consumption outlook cannot be fully
excluded.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HKScanÕs Audit Commit tee has compiled a separ ate Corpor ate Governance Statement for the Gr oup . The statement
will be published as par t of the online Annual R epor t 2016 on the companyÕs web site www.hkscan.com on week 10/
2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 13 January 2017, HKScan lowered its outlook for 2016.

On 19 January 2017, HKScan announced that it had acquir ed the remaining 50% of Paimion Teurastamo (Paimio
Slaughterhouse). HKScan Finland had acquir ed a 50% holding in the company in summer 2015.

On 8 February 2017, HKScan informed on r enewing its Gr oup Leadership Team and simultaneously initia ting a review
of its oper ating model.

On 8 February 2017, HKScan informed about plans to embark on a par tial re-organization of its oper ations as part of the
review of its oper ating model. T he potential impacts on personnel of the planned oper ating model r enewal and
planned ef ficiency upgr ades will be assessed in Group-wide sta tutory negotia tions.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2017
HKScan aims to reach the compar able oper ating pr ofit (EBIT) of the year 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORSÕ PROPOSAL ON DISTRIBUTION OF
PROFIT
The parent companyÕs distributable equity stands a t EUR 307.9 million including the r eserve for invested unr estricted
equity , which holds EUR 143.2 million. The Board of Dir ectors recommends tha t the company pay a dividend of EUR
0.16 per share for 2016, i.e. a total of appr oximately EUR 8.6 million.

There have been no ma terial changes in the companyÕs financial standing since the end of the ye ar under review. The
company maintains good liquidity and the r ecommended distribution of dividend will not in the Boar dÕs estimation
compr omise the companyÕs solvency.

ANNU AL GENERAL MEETING 2017
HKScan Corpor ationÕs Annual General Meeting 2017 will be held star ting at 10 am on 6 April 2017 a t Logomo , Turku. To
be eligible to a ttend the Annual Gener al Meeting, shar eholders should r egister by 27 Mar ch 2017 in HKScan
Corpor ationÕs shareholder r egister maintained by Eur oclear Finland Ltd. Notice to the Annual Gener al Meeting will be
published a t a later date.
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KEY FIGURES

Financial indica tors 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Net sales, EUR million 1 872.9 1 917.1 1 988.7 2 113.2 2 159.4

Oper ating pr ofit/loss (EBIT), EUR million 9.7 9.6 55.5 11.7 27.3

% of net sales 0.5 0.5 2.8 0.6 1.3

Oper ating pr ofit/loss e xcluding non-r ecurring items, EUR million 13.2 21.5 12.4 11.2 20.9

% of net sales 0.7 1.1 0.6 0.5 1.0

Profit/loss befor e taxes, EUR million 0.9 2.2 51.2 6.7 12.4

% of net sales 0.0 0.1 2.6 0.3 0.6

Return on equity (ROE), %* -0.9 0.4 13.4 2.4 4.3

Return on capital employed befor e taxes (ROCE), %* 2.1 2.3 9.7 4.0 5.8

Equity ratio , %* 47.9 50.9 51.5 37.1 33.1

Net ge aring ratio , %* 33.5 33.8 31.8 82.0 109.2

Gross investments, EUR million* 97.6 49.6 48.7 42.2 76.6

% of net sales* 5.2 2.6 2.4 2.0 3.5

R&D expenses, EUR million* 6.6 5.1 3.7 3.2 10.5

% of net sales* 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.5

Employees, average 7 319 7 437 7 662 7 774 7 836

Per shar e data 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Earnings per share (EPS), undiluted, EUR -0.10 0.01 1.05 0.16 0.30

Earnings per share (EPS), diluted, EUR -0.10 0.01 1.05 0.16 0.30

Equity per share, EUR 7.31 7.63 8.09 7.41 7.31

Dividend paid per shar e, EUR 0.16** 0.14 0.49 0.10 0.10

Dividend payout r atio , undiluted, % -160.4** 2 378.9 46.7 62.1 33.2

Dividend payout r atio , diluted, % -160.4** 2 378.9 46.7 62.1 33.2

Effective dividend yield, % 5.0** 3.7 15.0 2.7 2.8

Price-to-e arnings ratio (P/E)

undiluted -32.0 647.4 3.1 23.3 12.1

diluted -32.0 647.4 3.1 23.3 12.1

Lowest trading price, EUR 2.89 3.24 3.12 3.29 3.17

Highest tr ading price, EUR 3.89 6.26 4.49 4.28 6.40

Middle price during the period, EUR 3.19 5.07 3.74 3.70 4.34
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Share price at the end of the ye ar, EUR 3.19 3.81 3.27 3.76 3.63

Market capitalisation, EUR million 172.3 205.6 176.5 202.9 195.9

Trading volume (1 000) 13 313 17 321 13 990 7 670 9 084

% of the average volume 24.7 32.1 25.9 14.2 16.7

Adjusted number of outstanding shar es (1 000)

average during financial period 54 006 53 973 53 973 53 973 54 556

at the end of financial period 54 018 53 973 53 973 53 973 53 973

fully diluted 54 018 53 973 53 973 53 973 53 973

* Soko�—w's accounting treatment changed in 2013. C ompar able figur es from 2012 are not available.

** Based on the Boar d of Dir ectors' pr oposal.
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CALCULATION OF FINANCIAL INDIC ATORS

Profit

Return on
equity (%)

x 100

Total equity (aver age)

Profit befor e tax + interest and other financial e xpenses

Return on
capital
employed

x 100

(ROCE)
befor e tax
(%)

Balance sheet total Ð non-interest-bearing liabilities (aver age)

Total equity

Equity ratio
(%)

x 100

Balance sheet total Ð advances received

Interest-bearing liabilities

Gearing ratio
(%)

x 100

Total equity

Net inter est-bearing liabilities

Net ge aring
ratio (%)

x 100

Total equity

Profit for the period a ttributable to equity holders of the par ent

Earnings per
share

Average number of outstanding shar es during period
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Equity attributable to holders of the par ent

Equity per
share

Number of outstanding shar es at end of period

Dividend distribution

Dividend per
share

Number of outstanding shar es at end of period

Dividend per shar e

Dividend
payout r atio
(%)

x 100

Earnings per share

Dividend per shar e

Effective
dividend
yield (%)

x 100

Closing price on the last tr ading day of the financial ye ar

Closing price on the last tr ading day of the financial ye ar

P/E ratio

Earnings per share

Market
capitalization

The number of outstanding shar es at the end of period x the closing price on the last
trading day of the financial ye ar

Cash flow
befor e debt
service

Cash flow befor e financing activities and financial items

Employee
numbers

Average of workfor ce figur es calculated at the end of calendar months

Items
affecting
compar ability

One-time char ges, which are not related to the normal continuing oper ations and
materially affect company's finance. Examples of such e xpenses are: capacity
adjustment (r estructuring), r edundancy , legal costs relating to r estructuring or similar ,
one-time e xpenses related to ef ficiency / r eorganization pr ogr ammes,significant
compensa tions or penalties paid out due to legal ver dict or set tlement, tr ansaction
fees / expenses related to business acquisitions (consulta tion, advisory , legal, due
diligence, r egistration etc.) and gains/losses of business disposals.

Compar able
EBIT

Oper ating pr ofit Ð items affecting compar ability
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLID ATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR
1 JANUARY Ð 31 DECEMBER

(EUR million)

Note 2016 2015

Net sales 1. 1 872.9 1 917.1

Other oper ating income 2. 11.4 15.1

Materials and services 3. -1 305.7 -1 344.8

Employee benefits e xpenses 4. -326.6 -319.3

Depreciation and amor tization 5. -55.0 -64.7

Other oper ating e xpenses 6. -187.5 -193.9

EBIT 10. 9.7 9.6

Financial income 7. 2.3 2.1

Financial expenses 7. -11.1 -11.2

Share of associates' and joint ventur es' results -0.1 1.7

Profit/loss befor e tax es 0.9 2.2

Income tax 8. -4.4 -0.3

Profit/loss for the period -3.6 1.9

Profit/loss for the period a ttributable to:

Equity holders of the par ent -5.4 0.3

Non-contr olling inter ests 1.8 1.6

Total -3.6 1.9
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Earnings per share calculated on pr ofit attributable to equity holders of the par ent:

EPS, undiluted, continuing oper ations, EUR/share 9. -0.10 0.01

EPS, diluted, continuing oper ations, EUR/share 9. -0.10 0.01

The notes 1Ð30 form an integral part of the consolida ted financial sta tements.
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CONSOLID ATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
1 JANUARY Ð 31 DECEMBER

(EUR million)

2016 2015

Profit/loss for the period -3.6 1.9

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (after taxes):

Items that may be subsequently r eclassified to pr ofit or loss

Exchange dif ferences on translating for eign oper ations -4.1 2.6

Cash flow hedging 2.5 0.3

Items that will not be r eclassified to pr ofit or loss

Actuarial gains or losses -2.9 -1.5

Total other compr ehensive income -4.4 1.4

Total compr ehensive income for the period -8.0 3.3

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Equity holders of the par ent -9.8 1.7

Non-contr olling inter ests 1.8 1.6

Total -8.0 3.3

The notes 1Ð30 form an integral part of the consolida ted financial sta tements.
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CONSOLID ATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31
DECEMBER

(EUR million)

Note 31 Dec. 2016 31 Dec. 2015

Intangible assets 11. 66.0 69.1

Goodwill 12., 14. 77.0 78.2

Tangible assets 13. 401.7 361.8

Shares in associates and joint ventur es 15. 22.2 23.3

Trade and other r eceivables 16. 4.7 5.3

Available-for -sale investments 16. 12.8 13.3

Deferred tax asset 17. 23.8 29.7

Non-curr ent assets 608.1 580.7

Inventories 18. 116.1 124.2

Trade and other r eceivables 19. 123.7 122.9

Income tax receivable 19. 0.2 0.0

Cash and bank 20. 6.6 9.5

Curr ent assets 246.6 256.6

Assets 854.8 837.3

Share capital 21. 66.8 66.8

Share premium r eserve 21. 72.9 72.9

Treasury shares 21. -0.0 -0.0

Fair value reserve and other r eserves 21. 143.9 141.3

Translation dif ferences 21. -5.3 -3.7

Retained e arnings 21. 116.5 134.7

Equity attributable to equity holders of the par ent 394.8 412.0

Non-contr olling inter ests 14.9 13.8

Equity 409.7 425.8
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Deferred tax liability 17. 17.0 20.2

Non-curr ent inter est-bearing liabilities 24. 126.9 117.2

Non-curr ent non-inter est-bearing liabilities 24. 0.1 0.3

Non-curr ent pr ovisions 23. 0.1 0.1

Pension obliga tions 22. 22.7 18.8

Non-curr ent liabilities 166.7 156.6

Current inter est-bearing liabilities 24. 17.2 36.6

Trade and other payables 24. 259.2 217.1

Income tax liability 24. 0.3 0.9

Current pr ovisions 23. 1.6 0.4

Curr ent liabilities 278.4 255.0

Equity and liabilities 854.8 837.3

The notes 1Ð30 form an integral part of the consolida ted financial sta tements.
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CONSOLID ATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(EUR million)

2016 2015

Profit/L oss for the period -3.6 1.8

Adjustments 62.0 76.3

Cash flow befor e change in net working capital 58.4 78.1

Change in net working capital 26.9 0.8

Other changes -5.6 -3.0

Interest paid -9.8 -10.0

Other financial e xpenses paid -4.7 -8.4

Interest received 2.0 2.1

Other financial income r eceived 4.4 6.8

Dividends r eceived 1.3 1.0

Income taxes paid -2.0 -0.6

Cash flow fr om oper ating activities (A) 70.9 66.8

Total investments -56.6 -51.2

Total sales of assets 2.4 13.5

Acquisition of subsidiary , net of cash acquired - -5.4

Disposal of subsidiary , net of cash 0.1 0.0

Loan receivables, borr owings and r epayments 0.2 1.3

Cash flow fr om investing activities (B) -53.9 -41.8

Increase in other reserves 0.0 0.1

Proceed fr om external borr owings 57.6 62.8

Repayment of e xternal borr owings -69.1 -67.2

Payment of finance le ase liabilities -0.7 -

Dividends paid -8.2 -26.7

Cash flow fr om financing activities (C) -20.6 -31.0

Net cash flow (A+B+C) -3.5 -6.0
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Cash and cash equivalents, end balance 6.6 9.5

Cash and cash equivalents, opening balance 9.5 16.4

Effect of changes in e xchange rates 0.7 -1.0

Change -3.5 -6.0

The notes 1Ð30 form an integral part of the consolida ted financial sta tements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
CONSOLID ATED EQUITY

(EUR million)

Share

capital

Share

pr emium

reserve

Revalua tion

reserve

Reserve for

invested

unr estricted

equity

(RIUE)

Other

reserves

Transla tion

dif fer ences

Treasury

shares

Retained

earnings

Equity

holders

of

the

par ent

Non-

con-

tr olling

inter ests Total

EQUITY AT 1
Jan. 2016 66.8 72.9 -12.4 143.5 10.2 -3.7 -0.0 134.7 412.0 13.8 425.8

Result for the
financial period - - - - - - - -5.4 -5.4 1.8 -3.6

Other
compr ehensive
income (+) /
expense (Ð)

Translation
dif ferences - - - - - -4.1 - - -4.1 - -4.1

Cash flow
hedging - - 2.5 - - - - - 2.5 - 2.5

Actuarial
gains or losses - - - - - - - -2.9 -2.9 - -2.9

Total
compr ehensive
income for the
period - - 2.5 - - -4.1 - -8.3 -9.8 1.8 -8.0

Acquisition of
subsidiary - - - - 0.0 - - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1

Direct
recognitions - - - - 0.0 2.5 - -2.5 0.0 - 0.0

Transfers
between items - - - - - - - -7.6 -7.6 -0.7 -8.2

Dividend
distribution 66.8 72.9 -9.9 143.5 10.3 -5.3 -0.0 116.5 394.8 14.9 409.7

EQUITY AT 31
Dec. 2016 66.8 72.9 -9.9 143.5 10.3 -5.3 -0.0 116.5 394.8 14.9 409.7
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EQUITY AT 1
Jan. 2015 66.8 72.9 -12.7 143.5 10.1 -6.3 -0.0 162.2 436.5 8.7 445.2

Result for the
financial period - - - - - - - 0.3 0.3 1.6 1.9

Other
compr ehensive
income (+) /
expense (Ð)

Translation
dif ferences - - - - - 2.6 - - 2.6 - 2.6

Cash flow
hedging - - 0.3 - - - - - 0.3 - 0.3

Actuarial
gains or losses - - - - - - - -1.5 -1.5 - -1.5

Total
compr ehensive
income for the
period - - 0.3 - - 2.6 - -1.2 1.7 1.6 3.3

Acquisition of
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 3.8 3.8

Direct
recognitions - - - - 0.1 - - 0.2 0.3 - 0.3

Transfers
between items 0.0 - - - -0.0 - - -0.0 -0.0 - -0.0

Dividend
distribution - - - - - - - -26.4 -26.4 -0.3 -26.7

EQUITY AT 31
Dec. 2015 66.8 72.9 -12.4 143.5 10.2 -3.7 -0.0 134.7 412.0 13.8 425.8

The notes 1Ð30 form an integral part of the consolida ted financial sta tements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
2016

BASIC INFORMA TION ABOUT THE ENTITY
HKScan Corpor ation is a Finnish public limited company established under the law of F inland. The company is
domiciled in T urku.

HKScan Corpor ation and its subsidiaries (together Ôthe GroupÕ) produce, sell and mark et high-quality and r esponsibly-
produced pork, beef, poultry and lamb pr oducts, pr ocessed meats and convenience foods under str ong br and names.
Its customers are the retail, away-from-home and e xpor t sectors.

The Group is active in Finland, Sweden, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland, Denmark, the UK, Russia, Germany and China.
HKScan Corpor ationÕs A share has been quoted on Nasdaq Helsinki since 1997.

HKScan Corpor ation is a subsidiary of LSO Osuuskunta and par t of the LSO Osuuskunta Group . LSO Osuuskunta is
domiciled in T urku.

The Board of Dir ectors of HKScan Corpor ation appr oved the publica tion of these financial sta tements at its meeting on
27 February 2017. Under the F innish Companies Act, shareholders may appr ove or reject the financial sta tements at the
Annual Gener al Meeting held subsequent to their publica tion. The Annual Gener al Meeting can also modify the
financial statements.

A copy of the HKScan GroupÕs consolidated financial sta tements is available on the companyÕs website at
www.hkscan.com or in the par ent companyÕs head office at Lemmink Šisenkatu 48, FI-20520 Turku, Finland. The LSO
Osuuskunta GroupÕs consolidated financial sta tements are also available at the same addr ess.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the pr eparation of these consolida ted financial sta tements are set out
below . These policies have consistently been applied to all the ye ars presented, unless otherwise sta ted.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolida ted financial sta tements have been pr epared in compliance with the Interna tional Financial Repor ting
Standards (IFRS) and the IAS standards and SIC and IFRIC interpretations effective on 31 December 2016. ÔInternational
Financial Repor ting StandardsÕ refers, in the Finnish Accounting Act and in the pr ovisions given ther eupon, to the
standards appr oved for applica tion within the EU accor ding to the pr ocedur e as established in EU Regula tion (EC) No.
1606/2002 and the interpr etations ther eof. The notes to the financial sta tements also conform to F innish accounting
and corpor ate legisla tion supplementing IFRS r equir ements.

The consolida ted financial sta tements have been pr epared under the historical cost convention e xcept for some
financial instruments and biological assets, which have been me asured at fair value.

The accounting policies in r espect of subsidiaries have been changed to corr espond to those of the par ent company if
requir ed.
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The preparation of financial sta tements in conformity with IFRS r equir es the use of certain critical accounting estima tes.
It also requir es management to e xercise its judgement in the pr ocess of applying the Gr oupÕs accounting policies. T he
areas involving a higher degr ee of judgement or comple xity, or areas where assumptions and estima tes are significant
to the consolida ted financial sta tements are disclosed in the accounting policies under critical accounting estima tes and
judgements.

Unless otherwise stated, the informa tion in the consolida ted financial sta tements is given in millions of eur os.
Consequently , some totals may not agr ee with the sum of their constituent par ts.

The consolida ted financial sta tements have been pr epared in compliance with the same accounting policies as in 2015.

NEW AND AMENDED S TAND ARDS ADOPTED BY THE GROUP
There have been no new standar ds, amendments or interpr etations, which are effective for the financial ye ar beginning
on 1 January 2016 that affect GroupÕs accounting policies or any of the disclosur es.

COMPARABILITY WITH PREVIOUS YEARS
The years 2016 and 2015 are compar able with e ach other. GroupÕs joint ventur e company in Poland (Soko�—w) has been
consolida ted pr opor tionately in accordance with the ownership inter est line by line until 31.12.2012 and af ter that with
the equity method. Some figur es in five-year historical da ta are not available due to change in accounting tr eatment.

CONSOLID ATION SUBSIDIARIES
The consolida ted financial sta tements include the accounts of the par ent company HKScan Corpor ation and its
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Gr oup e xercises control. The Group contr ols an entity when the
Group is exposed to , or has rights to , variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to af fect
those returns through its power over the entity . Subsidiaries are fully consolida ted fr om the da te on which contr ol is
transferred to the Gr oup . They are deconsolida ted fr om the da te that contr ol ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combina tions. The consider ation tr ansferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets tr ansferred, the liabilities incurr ed to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity inter ests issued by the Group . The consider ation tr ansferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability r esulting fr om a contingent consider ation arr angement. Identifiable assets acquir ed and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combina tion are measured initially a t their fair values at the acquisition da te.
The Group r ecognizes any non-contr olling inter est in the acquir ee on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either a t fair
value or at the non-contr olling inter estÕs propor tionate share of the recognized amounts of acquir eeÕs identifiable net
assets.

Recorded goodwill is originally the sum of consider ation tr ansferred, inter est of non-contr olling shar eholders in the
acquiree and pr eviously held inter est in the acquir ee minus the fair value of the acquir ed net assets. If the consideration
is smaller than the fair value of the subsidiaryÕs acquired net assets, the dif ference is recognized thr ough pr ofit or loss.

Subsidiaries acquir ed are consolida ted fr om the da te the Group acquir es a controlling inter est in them. All intr agroup
transactions, receivables and liabilities and intr agroup pr ofit distribution have been elimina ted upon pr eparation of the
consolida ted financial sta tements.

A previous shareholding in a stagger ed acquisition is me asured at the fair value and any pr ofit or loss derived fr om this
is recorded in the income sta tement as either pr ofit or loss. When the Gr oup loses contr ol in a subsidiary , the remaining
investment is me asured at the fair value of the da te of the expiry of contr ol and the dif ference derived fr om this is
recognized thr ough pr ofit and loss.
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Distribution of pr ofit for the period between holders of the par ent and non-contr olling inter ests is presented in the
separate income sta tement and the distribution of compr ehensive income between holders of the par ent and non-
controlling inter ests is presented in the sta tement of compr ehensive income. C ompr ehensive income is alloca ted to the
parent company shar eholders and non-contr olling inter ests, even if this should mean that the share held by non-
controlling inter ests becomes nega tive. The share of equity owing to non-contr olling inter ests is presented as a
separate item on the balance sheet under equity . Changes in the parent companyÕs shareholding in a subsidiary , which
do not le ad to loss of contr ol, are treated as equity-r elated tr ansactions. The dif ference between fair value of any
consider ation paid and the r elevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is r ecorded in
equity . Gains or losses on disposals to non-contr olling inter ests are also recorded in equity .

When the Group ce ases to have control any retained inter est in the entity is remeasured to its fair value a t the date
when contr ol is lost, with the change in carrying amount r ecognized in pr ofit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the r etained inter est as an associate, joint ventur e or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts pr eviously recognized in other compr ehensive income in r espect of tha t entity are
accounted for as if the Gr oup had dir ectly disposed of the r elated assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognized in other compr ehensive income ar e reclassified to pr ofit or loss.

ASSOCIATES
Associates are companies over which the Gr oup e xercises a significant influence which usually arises when the Gr oup
holds 20-50 per cent of a companyÕs voting rights. Associa tes have been consolida ted using the equity method. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially r ecognized a t cost, and the carrying amount is incr eased or decr eased to
recognize the investor Õs share of the pr ofit or loss of the investee af ter the da te of acquisition. If the Gr oupÕs share of the
losses of an associate exceeds the investment Õs carrying amount, the investment is r ecognized as having no value and,
unless the Group is commit ted to meeting the obliga tions of associates, no losses exceeding the carrying amount ar e
consolida ted. Investments in associates include the goodwill arising on their acquisition. Dividends r eceived fr om
associates have been elimina ted in the consolida ted financial sta tements. The associates mentioned below in Note 29,
ÔRelated Party TransactionsÕ have been consolidated into the consolida ted financial sta tements. Share of associatesÕ
results is presented below EBIT.

The GroupÕs share in associatesÕ changes recognized in other items of compr ehensive income ar e recognized in the
GroupÕs other items of compr ehensive income. The GroupÕs associates have not had any such items during the
2015Ð2016 financial periods.

JOINT VENTURES
A joint ventur e is a company in which the Gr oup e xercises joint contr ol with another par ty. Joint ventur es are
consolida ted using the equity method.

More detailed informa tion about holdings in Gr oup companies and associa tes and joint ventur es is presented in Note
29, ÔRelated par ty transactionsÕ.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
The items included in the financial sta tements of the Gr oup companies ar e valued in the curr ency of the main oper ating
environment for tha t company (functional curr ency). The consolida ted financial sta tements are presented in eur os, the
parent companyÕs functional and r epor ting curr ency.

The assets and liabilities of for eign subsidiaries and the for eign joint ventur e are translated into eur os at the closing
exchange rates confirmed by the Eur ope an Central Bank on the balance sheet da te. The income sta tements are
translated into eur os using the average rate for the period. A tr anslation dif ference arises from translating the r esult for
the period and the compr ehensive result at dif ferent rates in the income sta tement and compr ehensive income
statement and the balance sheet. T he dif ference is recognized under equity . The change in the tr anslation dif ference is
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recognized in other compr ehensive income. The translation dif ferences arising from elimina ting the acquisition cost of
foreign subsidiaries and the joint ventur e and from the tr anslation of equity items accrued af ter the acquisition ar e
recognized in tr anslation dif ferences in the GroupÕs equity and the change is r ecognized in items of compr ehensive
income.

Group companies r ecognize tr ansactions in foreign curr encies at the rate prevailing on the day of the tr ansaction. Trade
receivables, trade payables and loan r eceivables denoted in for eign curr encies and foreign curr ency bank accounts
have been tr anslated into the oper ational curr ency at the exchange rates quoted on the balance sheet da te. Exchange
rate gains and losses on loans denoted in for eign curr encies are included in financial income and e xpenses below EBIT,
except for gains and losses arising fr om loans designa ted as hedges for net investments made in for eign units and
which perform ef fectively. These gains and losses are recognized under tr anslation dif ferences in equity . As a rule,
exchange rate gains and losses related to business oper ations are included in the corr esponding items above EBIT .

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Proper ty, plant and equipment have been me asured at cost less accumulated depr eciation and any impairment.
Depreciation of assets is made on a straight-line basis over the e xpected useful life. No depr eciation is made on land.

The expected useful lives ar e as follows:

Buildings and structur es 25Ð50 years

Building machinery and equipment 8Ð12.5 years

Machinery and equipment 2Ð10 years

The residual value and useful life of assets are reviewed in e ach financial statement and if necessary adjusted to r eflect
changes taking place in e xpected useful life.

Depreciation on pr oper ty, plant and equipment ends when an item is classified as being for sale. Gains and losses
arising on the disposal and discontinua tion and assignment of pr oper ty, plant and equipment ar e included either in
other oper ating income or e xpenses.

Maintenance and r epair costs arising fr om normal we ar and tear are recognized as an expense when they occur . Major
refurbishment and impr ovement investments ar e capitalised and depr eciated over the r emaining useful life of the main
asset to which they relate.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government gr ants, such as grants from the State or the EU relating to PPE acquisitions, have been r ecognized as
deductions in the carrying amounts of PPE when r eceipt of the gr ants and the GroupÕs eligibility for them is r easonably
certain. The grants are recognized as income in the form of lower depr eciations over the useful life of the item. Gr ants
received in r eimbursement of e xpenses incurred are recognized as income in the income sta tement a t the same time as
the costs relating to the object of the gr ant are recognized as an expense. Grants of this kind are repor ted under other
oper ating income.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
GOODWILL
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries or business oper ations and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over GroupÕs interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-contr olling inter est in the acquir ee.
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquir ed in a business combina tion is alloca ted to e ach of the cash-
gener ating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit fr om the synergies of the combina tion. Each
unit or gr oup of units to which the goodwill is alloca ted represents the lowest level within the entity a t which the
goodwill is monitor ed for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitor ed at the segment level.

Goodwill impairment r eviews are under taken annually or mor e frequently if events or changes in cir cumstances indica te
a potential impairment. T he carrying value of goodwill is compar ed to the r ecoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is r ecognized immedia tely as an expense and is
not subsequently r eversed.

Goodwill and other intangible items tha t have an unlimited useful life ar e not subject to r egular depr eciation, being
instead tested yearly for impairment. F or this reason, goodwill is alloca ted to CGUs or , in the case of an associate,
included in the acquisition cost of the associa te concerned. Goodwill is me asured according to the historical cost
convention less impairments. Impairment losses ar e recognized in the income sta tement. Impairment losses r ecognized
in respect of goodwill ar e not reversed. See, ÔImpairmentÕ and ÔImpairment testingÕ.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Research and development costs ar e charged as incurr ed and are included in other oper ating e xpenses in the income
statement.

OTHER INTANGIBLE RIGHTS AND ASSETS
An intangible asset is r ecognized on the balance sheet only if its acquisition cost can be r eliably determined and it is
likely that the company will r eap the expected economic benefit of the asset. Intangible rights include tr ademarks and
patents, while items such as software licenses are included in other intangible assets. P atents and software licenses are
recognized on the balance sheet a t cost and are depr eciated on a straight-line basis during their useful life, which varies
from five to 10 ye ars. No depr eciation is made on intangible assets with an unlimited useful life.

Brands have been estima ted to have an unlimited useful life. T he good r ecognition of the br ands and analyses
performed suppor t the view of management tha t the br ands will affect cash flow gener ation for an indetermina te
period of time.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Intangible assets tha t have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not r eady to use are not subject to amor tisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets tha t are subject to amor tisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in cir cumstances indica te that the carrying amount may not be r ecoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset Õs carrying amount e xceeds its recoverable amount. T he recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset Õs fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped a t the lowest levels for which ther e are largely independent cash inflows (cash-
gener ating units). Prior impairments of nonfinancial assets (other than goodwill) ar e reviewed for possible r eversal at
each repor ting da te.

See ÔCritical accounting estimates and judgementsÕ and ÔGoodwillÕ.

INVENTORIES
Raw materials are measured at weighted aver age cost. The cost of finished goods and work in pr ogr ess comprises raw
materials, dir ect labor costs, other dir ect costs and a systematically alloca ted pr opor tion of variable and fix ed
production overhe ads. In determining the acquisition cost, standar d cost accounting is applied and standar d costs are
reviewed r egularly and changed if necessary . Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the or dinary course of
business, less the costs of completion and selling e xpenses.
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Inventories are shown net of a reserve for obsolete and slow-moving inventories. A r eserve is established and a
corresponding char ge is taken to pr ofit and loss in the period in which the loss occurs based upon an assessment of
technological obsolescence and r elated factors.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Biological assets, which in the case of the HKScan Group me an living animals, are recognized on the balance sheet a t
fair values less estimated sales-related expenses. The GroupÕs live slaughter animals are measured at market price.
Animals pr oducing slaughter animals (sows, boars, br eeding hens) have been me asured at cost, less an expense
corresponding to a r eduction in use value caused by ageing. T here is no available market price for pr oductive animals.

Biological assets are included in inventories on the balance sheet and changes in the fair value ar e included in ma terial
costs in the income sta tement.

LEASES
THE GROUP AS LESSEE
Leases applying to pr oper ty, plant and equipment wher e the Group assumes a substantial par t of the risks and benefits
of ownership ar e classified as finance leases. Items acquired under finance le asing are recognized on the balance sheet
at the fair value of the asset leased at the commencement of the le ase or at the pr esent value of minimum le ase
payments, whichever is the lower . Assets acquired under finance le asing are subject to depr eciation within the useful
life of the asset or the le ase period, whichever is the shor ter. Lease payments are divided into finance e xpenses and
debt amor tisation during the le ase period so as to pr oduce a constant periodic r ate of inter est on the remaining
balance of the liability for e ach period. Variable rents are recognized as expenses in the period during which they ar e
gener ated. Leasing commitments ar e included in financial liabilities.

Leases where the lessor retains a substantial par t of the risks and benefit of ownership ar e treated as other le ases. Other
oper ating le ase payments are treated as rentals and charged to the income sta tement on a str aight-line basis over the
lease term.

When a lease includes land and building elements, the classifica tion of e ach element as a finance lease or an operating
lease is assessed separately. When it is necessary in order to classify and account for a le ase of land and buildings, the
minimum le ase payments (including any lump-sum up fr ont payments) are allocated in pr opor tion to the r elative fair
values of the leasehold inter ests in the land element and building element of the le ase at the inception of the le ase.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR
The GroupÕs leased assets whose risks and rewards of ownership have essentially been tr ansferred to the lessee are
treated as finance leases and recognized as receivables on the balance sheet. Receivables are initially r ecognized a t
their pr esent value. Financing income fr om finance le ases is recognized during the term of the le ase so as to achieve a
constant rate of return on the outstanding net investment over the term of le ase.

Other assets leased under other oper ating le asing agreements are included in pr oper ty, plant and equipment on the
balance sheet. They are depr eciated over their useful lives in the same way as corr esponding pr oper ty, plant and
equipment in the companyÕs own use are. Rental income is r ecognized in the income sta tement on a str aight-line basis
over the le ase term.

ARRANGEMENTS THAT MAY INCLUDE A LEASE AGREEMENT
When an arrangement enters into for ce, the Group uses its factual content to determine whether the arr angement is a
lease agreement or whether it includes one. A le ase agreement e xists if the following conditions ar e met: The fulfilment
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of the arrangement depends on the use of a specific asset or assets, and the arr angement pr oduces a right to use tha t
asset.

If the arrangement includes a le ase agreement, the agr eement will be governed by the pr ovisions of IAS 17. Other
factors in the arrangement will be governed by the pr ovisions of regula ting IFRS standards.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PENSION OBLIGATIONS
Pension plans are classified as defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans. In defined contribution plans, the
Group mak es fixed payments to a separ ate entity . The Group is under no legal or actual obliga tion to mak e additional
payments in the event tha t the entity collecting pension payments is unable to meet its obliga tions to pay the pension
benefits in question. Any pension plan tha t does not meet these criteria is a defined benefit plan.

Statutory pension cover for F innish Group companies has been arr anged thr ough pension insur ance. Pension plans in
respect of companies outside F inland have been made in accor dance with local pr actice.

In defined contribution plans, such as the F innish employment pension scheme (T yEL) and the Swedish ITP-plan,
pension plan contributions ar e recognized in the income sta tement during the financial period in which they ar e
incurred.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit tha t an employee will r eceive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or mor e factors such as age, years of service and compensa tion.

The liability r ecognized in the balance sheet in r espect of defined benefit pension plans is the pr esent value of the
defined benefit obliga tion at the end of the r epor ting period less the fair value of plan assets. T he defined benefit
obliga tion is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the pr ojected unit cr edit method. T he present value of
the defined benefit obliga tion is determined by discounting the estima ted futur e cash outflows using inter est rates of
high-quality corpor ate bonds tha t are denomina ted in the curr ency in which the benefits will be paid, and tha t have
terms to ma turity appr oximating to the terms of the r elated pension obliga tion. In countries wher e there is no deep
market in such bonds, the mark et rates on government bonds ar e used.

The service cost of the defined benefit plan, r ecognized in the income sta tement in employee benefit e xpense, except
where included in the cost of an asset, r eflects the incr ease in the defined benefit obliga tion resulting fr om employee
service in the current year, curtailments and set tlements.

Past-service costs are recognized immedia tely in income sta tement.

The net inter est cost is calculated by applying the discount r ate to the net balance of the defined benefit obliga tion and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit e xpense in the income sta tement.

Actuarial gains and losses arising fr om experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions ar e charged or
credited to equity in other compr ehensive income in the period in which they arise.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Based on IFRS2, the fair value of share based incentives is determined a t grant date and the fair value is expensed until
vesting. If the share reward is paid as a combina tion of shares and cash, the fair value determina tion is divided into
equity-set tled and cash-set tled por tions. The equity-set tled por tion is book ed into equity and cash-set tled into
liabilities. The fair value of equity-set tled por tion is the fair value of C ompany share at grant date deducted with
expected dividends to be paid befor e reward payment. Furthermor e, the share purchase and ownership r equir ement in
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performance period is tak en into account by deducting the estima ted financing costs of the shar e purchases from the
fair value. The fair value of cash settled por tion is recalculated on e ach repor ting da te until r eward payment.

PROVISIONS
A provision is recognized when the Gr oup has a legal or actual obliga tion as the result of a past event, it is likely that the
payment obliga tion will be r ealised and the magnitude of the obliga tion can be r eliably estima ted.

A restructuring pr ovision is made when the Gr oup has compiled a detailed r estructuring plan and launched its
implementa tion or announced the plan. No pr ovision is made for e xpenses relating to the Gr oupÕs continuing
oper ations.

A provision for envir onmental obliga tions is made when the Gr oup has an obliga tion, based on envir onmental
legislation and the Gr oupÕs environmental r esponsibility policies, which r elates to site decommissioning, r epairing
environmental damage or moving equipment fr om one place to another .

TAXES AND DEFERRED TAXES BASED ON TAXABLE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD
The income tax e xpense in the income sta tement consists of tax based on taxable income and deferr ed tax. Taxes are
recognized in the income sta tement, e xcept when r elated to items r ecognized dir ectly in equity or the sta tement of
compr ehensive income, in which event the tax is also r ecognized in the said items. T ax based on taxable income in the
financial period is calcula ted fr om taxable income on the basis of the tax law of the domicile of e ach company. Taxes are
adjusted with any tax es relating to pr evious financial periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated on all tempor ary differences in bookk eeping and taxa tion using the tax
rate valid at the balance sheet da te or expected da te the tax is paid. The most significant tempor ary differences arise
from measurement to fair value of deriva tive instruments, defined benefit pension plans, unclaimed tax losses and
measurements to fair value in connection with acquisitions. No deferr ed tax is recognized on non-deductible goodwill.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the tax r ates which have been enacted or which in pr actice have been adopted by
the repor ting da te.

The deferr ed tax liability r elating to the r etained e arnings of the Baltic Gr oup companies has not been r ecognized, as
the assets are used to safeguard the for eign companiesÕ own investment needs. The parent company has contr ol over
the dividend distribution policy of the Baltic subsidiaries, and ther e are no plans to distribute said e arnings within the
foreseeable futur e.

RECOGNITION POLICIES
Net sales is presented as revenue from the sales of pr oducts and services me asured at fair value and adjusted for
indir ect taxes, discounts and tr anslation dif ferences resulting fr om sales in foreign curr encies.

GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES PROVIDED
Revenue from the sale of goods is r ecognized when the significant risk s and benefits of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer . Revenue from service pr ovision is recognized in the financial period in which the service is
performed.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS
Non-curr ent assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be r ecovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly pr obable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

Discontinued oper ation is a material par t of the Group tha t has been disposed of or classified as held for sale. P rofit
from discontinued oper ations is disclosed as a separate item in the other compr ehensive income sta tement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL ASSETS
The GroupÕs financial assets are classified into the following ca tegories: financial assets recognized a t fair value through
profit or loss, held-to-ma turity investments, loans and other r eceivables and available-for -sale financial assets. The
classification is based on the purpose of the acquisition of the financial asset and tak es place in conjunction with the
original acquisition. T ransaction costs are included in the original carrying amount of financial assets in the case of items
not me asured at fair value through pr ofit or loss. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the
settlement da te, except for deriva tives and spot tr ansactions, which are recognized accor ding to the tr ansaction date.
The transaction date is the date on which the Gr oup commits itself to pur chase or sell a financial instrument. The
settlement da te is the date on which a financial asset is deliver ed to another par ty or corr espondingly when a financial
asset is received. Financial assets are derecognized fr om the balance sheet when the Gr oupÕs contractual right to the
cash flows has expired or when the risk s and rewards of ownership have to a significant degr ee been tr ansferred
outside the Gr oup .

The category of financial assets r ecognized a t fair value through pr ofit or loss comprises financial assets acquir ed to be
held for tr ading or designa ted as such at inception (applica tion of fair value option). T he category can be changed only
in rare special circumstances. The latter gr oup includes financial assets tha t are administer ed on the basis of fair value or
financial asset items involving one or mor e embedded deriva tives that significantly change the cash flows of the
contract, in which case the whole compound instrument is me asured at fair value. Financial assets held for tr ading
purposes have mainly been acquir ed to obtain a gain fr om shor t term changes in mark et prices. Deriva tives that do not
satisfy hedge accounting ar e classified as financial assets or liabilities held for tr ading. Deriva tives held for tr ading as
well as financial assets maturing within 12 months ar e included in curr ent assets.

The items in the category of financial assets r ecognized a t fair value through pr ofit of loss are measured at fair value,
which is based on the mark et price quoted on the r epor ting da te. In assessing the fair values of non-traded deriva tives
and other financial instruments, the Gr oup uses gener ally adopted valua tion methods and estima ted discounted values
of futur e cash flows. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, whether r ealised or unr ealised, are recognized
through pr ofit or loss in the financial period in which they arise.

Investments held to ma turity are non-deriva tive financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments, tha t mature
on a given da te and that the Group positively intends to and is able to hold until ma turity . They are measured at
amortised cost using the ef fective inter est method and ar e included in non-curr ent assets. The Group did not have any
financial assets of this category during the financial period.

Loans and other r eceivables are non-deriva tive assets that have fixed or me asurable payments ar e not quoted on active
markets and not held for tr ading by the Gr oup or specifically classified as being available for sale a t inception. T hese
are, for example, tr ade receivables and some other r eceivables the Group has. They are measured on the basis of
amortised cost using the ef fective inter est method and ar e included on the balance sheet under curr ent or non-curr ent
assets as determined by their na ture, under the la tter if maturing in mor e than 12 months.
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Available-for -sale financial assets consist of assets not belonging to deriva tive assets, which have been specifically
classified in this category or which have not been classified in another ca tegory . They are included in non-curr ent
assets, except if they ar e to be held for less than 12 months fr om the r epor ting da te, in which case they are recorded
under curr ent assets. Available-for -sale financial assets can consist of shares and interest-bearing investments. They are
measured at fair value or, when the fair value cannot be r eliably determined, a t cost. The fair value of an investment is
determined on the basis of the bid price of the investment. If quoted prices ar e not available for available-for -sale
financial assets, the Group applies various valua tion techniques to me asure them. These include, for e xample, recent
transactions between independent par ties, discounted cash flows or other similar instrument valua tions. Informa tion
obtained fr om the mark et in gener al and minimal elements determined by the Gr oup itself ar e utilized.

Changes in the fair value of available-for -sale financial assets are recorded in other compr ehensive income and
repor ted in the fair value r eserve included in equity , Other reserves, taking into consider ation the tax impact. Changes
in fair value are transferred from equity to the income sta tement when the investment is sold or if it is subjected to
impairment and an impairment loss must be r ecognized on the investment. Inter est income on available-for -sale
investments are recognized in financial income using the ef fective inter est method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, demand deposits and other highly liquid shor t-term investments which ar e
easily exchangeable for a pr eviously known amount of cash assets and whose risk of a change in value is minimal. Items
classified in cash and cash equivalents have a maturity of less than thr ee months fr om the da te of acquisition. Cr edit
accounts relating to the Gr oup accounts ar e included in curr ent financial liabilities, and they ar e recognized as setof fs,
as the Group has an agreement-based legal right to set tle or otherwise elimina te the amount to be paid to the cr editor
in full or in par t.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
At each repor ting da te, the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of the impairment of financial asset
or a group of financial assets.

The Group r ecognizes an impairment loss for tr ade receivables if evidence e xists that the receivable cannot be
collected in full. Significant financial dif ficulties on the par t of a debtor , the likelihood of bankruptcy , payment default or
a payment delay e xceeding 90 days constitute evidence of the impairment of tr ade receivables. The impairment loss
recognized in the income sta tement is the dif ference measured between the carrying amount and the pr esent value of
estimated futur e cash flows of a receivable. If the amount of the impairment loss decr eases in a later period, and the
decrease can be objectively r elated to an event subsequent to impairment r ecognition, the r ecognized loss is reversed
through pr ofit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The GroupÕs financial liabilities ar e classified into the following ca tegories: financial liabilities r ecognized a t fair value
through pr ofit or loss and other financial liabilities a t amortised cost.

Financial liabilities r ecognized a t fair value through pr ofit or loss are initially and subsequently me asured at fair value
with the same principles as corr esponding financial assets. Deriva tive financial liabilities ar e included in this ca tegory .
Other financial liabilities ar e initially r ecognized a t fair value and tr ansaction costs are included in the original carrying
amount. Financial liabilities e xcept for deriva tive contr act liabilities ar e subsequently me asured at amortised cost using
the effective inter est method. F inancial liabilities ar e included in curr ent and non-curr ent liabilities. F inancial liabilities
are classified as current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer payment for a t least 12 months from the
repor ting da te.
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Borrowing costs dir ectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or manufactur e of a qualifying asset are capitalised
as a part of the cost of the said asset when it is lik ely that these will gener ate futur e economic benefits and when the
costs can be measured reliably . During the financial ye ars presented the Gr oup did not have any qualifying investments.

Other borr owing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they ar e incurred. Credit fees related to
loan commitments ar e recognized as tr ansaction costs in propor tion to the e xtent that it is probable tha t the total loan
commitment or a par t of it will be r aised. Credit fees are recognized on the balance sheet until the loan is r aised. In
connection with the dr awdown, the cr edit fee r elated to loan commitments is r ecognized as par t of the tr ansaction
costs. To the extent that it is probable tha t the loan commitment will not be r aised, the credit fee is recognized as a
prepaid e xpense in respect of the liquidity-r elated services and is accrued for the period of the loan commitment.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Derivative contr acts are initially accounted for a t fair value on the da te on which the Gr oup becomes a par ty to the
contract and subsequently continue to be me asured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from the me asurement at fair
value are treated in the income sta tement in the manner determined by the purpose of the deriva tive. The impacts on
profit or loss arising fr om changes in the value of deriva tive contr acts to which hedge accounting applies and which ar e
effective hedges ar e presented in a manner consistent with the hedged item. When deriva tive contr acts are entered
into , the Group tr eats the deriva tives as either fair value hedges for r eceivables, liabilities or fix ed commitments or , in
the case of interest rate risk, as cash flow hedges, cash flow hedges of a highly pr obable for ecast transaction, hedges of
net investment in a for eign unit or deriva tives that do not sa tisfy the criteria for applying hedge accounting. T he Group
documents the hedge accounting a t the beginning of the r elationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, as well as the objectives of the Gr oupÕs risk management and the hedging str ategy applied. When initia ting
the hedge and ther eafter when publishing all financial sta tements, the Gr oup documents and assesses the ef fectiveness
of the hedging r elationships by e xamining the ability of the hedging instrument to nullify changes in the fair value of the
hedged item or changes in cash flows.

CASH FLOW HEDGING
A change in the fair value of the ef fective por tion of deriva tive instruments tha t satisfy the conditions for hedging cash
flow are recognized under other compr ehensive income and r epor ted in the hedging r eserve (included in Fair value
reserve and other r eserves). Gains and losses accrued from the hedging instrument ar e transferred to the income
statement when the hedged item af fects profit or loss. The ineffective por tion of the hedging instrument Õs profit or loss
is recognized as financial income or e xpenses (interest rate deriva tives) or other oper ating e xpenses (commodity
derivatives).

When a hedging instrument acquir ed to hedge cash flow ma tures or is sold, or when the criteria for hedge accounting
are no longer sa tisfied, the pr ofit or loss accrued fr om the hedging instrument r emains in equity until the for ecast
transaction is carried out. Never theless, if the forecast hedged tr ansaction is no longer e xpected to be r ealized the
profit or loss accrued in equity is r ecognized immedia tely in the income sta tement.

OTHER HEDGING INSTRUMENTS WHERE HEDGE ACCOUNTING IS NO T
APPLIED
Despite the fact tha t some hedging r elationships satisfy the GroupÕs risk management hedging criteria, hedge
accounting is not applied to them. Deriva tives hedging against curr ency risk fall into this category . In accordance with
the GroupÕs recognition policy , changes in the fair value of these instruments ar e recognized in other oper ating income
and expenses. On the balance sheet, deriva tives relating to curr ency-denomina ted tr ade receivables or tr ade payables
are presented in other curr ent receivables or liabilities.

Changes in the hedging r eserve are presented in Note 21. ÔNotes relating to equityÕ under ÔRevaluation reserveÕ.
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EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

Embedded deriva tives are included in such binding commer cial agreements that are denomina ted in a curr ency which
is not the oper ating curr ency of neither contr acting par ty and which is not gener ally used in the financial envir onment in
which the business tr ansaction is carried out. Such deriva tives are usually forward exchange contr acts. During the
financial years presented, the Gr oup did not have any embedded deriva tives.

EQUITY
All company shar es are repor ted as share capital. Any repurchase of its own shares by the company is deducted fr om
equity .

DIVIDEND
The dividend pr oposed to the Annual Gener al Meeting by the Boar d of Dir ectors is not deducted fr om distributable
equity until appr oved by the A GM.

EBIT
The concept of EBIT is not defined in IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group employs the following
definition: EBIT is the net sum arrived a t by adding other oper ating income to net sales, deducting fr om this pur chase
costs as well employee benefit e xpenses, depr eciation and impairment losses, if any , and other oper ating e xpenses. All
other income sta tement items ar e presented below EBIT.

Where necessary, major gains and losses on disposal, impairment and r ecognitions of discontinua tions, reorganisations
of oper ations or significant compensa tions or penalties paid out due to the legal ver dict or set tlement, r ecorded as
items affecting compar ability , as well as comparable EBIT may be presented separ ately in interim r epor ts and financial
statement bulletins.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the financial sta tements requir es management to mak e estimates and assumptions affecting the
content and to e xercise judgement in applying the accounting policies. T he most impor tant of these estima tes affect
the possible impairment of goodwill and other assets as well as pr ovisions. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates made in pr eparation of the financial sta tements are based on the best judgement of management on the
repor ting da te. The estimates are based on historical e xperience and assumptions r egarding the futur e seen as most
likely on the balance sheet da te. Such assumptions are related to the e xpected development of the Gr oupÕs financial
oper ating envir onment in terms of sales and cost levels. T he estimations and judgements ar e reviewed r egularly .

The most impor tant areas in which the estimations and judgement have been used ar e presented below .

The assumptions made by the management r egarding the taxable income of the Gr oup companies in the coming
repor ting periods ar e taken into account when estima ting the amount of r ecognized deferr ed tax assets.

MEASUREMENT TO FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS ACQUIRED IN BUSINESS
COMBINA TIONS
Where possible, Management has used available mark et values as the basis of determining the fair value of the net
assets acquired in a business combina tion. When this is not possible, me asurement is principally based on the historic
return from the asset item and its intended use in business oper ations. Measuring the intangible right a t fair value has
requir ed the Management to mak e estimations on the futur e cash flows. Valuations are based on discounted cash flows
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as well as estimated disposal and r epurchase prices and requir e Management`s estimates and assumptions about the
future use of assets and the effect on the companyÕs financial position. Changes in the emphasis and dir ection of
business oper ations may result in changes to the original me asurement in the futur e.

In addition, both intangible and tangible assets ar e reviewed for any indica tions of impairment on e ach repor ting da te
at the least.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING
The Group tests goodwill annually for possible impairment. T he recoverable amounts of cash gener ating units ar e
determined in calcula tions based on value in use. The preparation of these calcula tions requir es the use of estimates.
Although the assumptions used ar e appropria te according to the Management, the estima ted recoverable amounts
may dif fer substantially fr om those r ealized in futur e.

The assumptions used in the Impairment calcula tion involve judgement tha t the Management has used in estima ting
the development of dif ferent factors. The sensitivity analysis emphasizes that the factors related to r evenue gr owth are
the most centr al sources of uncertainty in the methods, assumptions and estima tes used in the calcula tions. This
sensitivity derives fr om the challenging estima tion of the futur e development of the pr eviously mentioned factors.

VALUATION OF INVENT ORIES
Management Õs principle is to r ecognize an impairment loss for slowly moving and outda ted inventories based on the
management Õs best possible estima te of possibly unusable inventories in the Gr oupÕs possession at the repor ting da te.
The Group has valuation policy for inventories which is appr oved by the Management. Management bases its estima tes
on systematic and continuous monitoring and evalua tions. Also biological assetsÕ fair value includes managementÕs
judgement.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRS NORMS
IASB has published the following new or r evised standards and interpr etations that the Group has not yet adopted. T he
Group will adopt these standar ds as of the effective da te of each of the standards, or if the ef fective da te is not the first
day of the repor ting period, as of the beginning of the ne xt repor ting period following the ef fective da te.

IFRS 9, ÔFinancial instrumentsÕ, addresses the classification, me asurement and r ecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. T he complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 tha t
relates to the classification and me asurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mix ed
measurement model and establishes thr ee primary me asurement categories for financial assets: amor tised cost, fair
value through OCI and fair value thr ough P&L. The basis of classification depends on the entityÕs business model and
the contr actual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments ar e requir ed to be
measured at fair value through pr ofit or loss with the irr evocable option a t inception to pr esent changes in fair value in
OCI not recycling. There is now a new expected cr edit losses model tha t replaces the incurr ed loss impairment model
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities ther e were no changes to classification and me asurement except for the
recognition of changes in own cr edit risk in other compr ehensive income, for liabilities designa ted at fair value through
profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the requir ements for hedge ef fectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge ef fectiveness
tests. It requir es an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument and for the Ôhedged r atioÕ
to be the same as the one management actually use for risk management purposes. C ontempor aneous documenta tion
is still requir ed but is dif ferent to tha t currently pr epared under IAS 39. The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or af ter 1 January 2018. The new standard will not have a ma terial ef fect on the Gr oupÕs financial
statements. The standard has been endorsed for applica tion in the EU.

IFRS 15, ÔRevenue from contr acts with customersÕ deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for
repor ting useful informa tion to users of financial sta tements about the na ture, amount, timing and uncer tainty of
revenue and cash flows arising fr om an entityÕs contracts with customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer
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obtains contr ol of a good or service and thus has the ability to dir ect the use and obtain the benefits fr om the good or
service. The standard replaces IAS 18 ÔRevenueÕ and IAS 11 ÔConstruction contr actsÕ and related interpr etations. The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or af ter 1 January 2018. The new standard will not have a ma terial
effect on the Gr oupÕs financial statements. The standard has been endorsed for applica tion in the EU.

IFRS 16, Leases will replace curr ent IAS 17 guidance r egarding le ase agreements. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the
recognition, me asurement, pr esentation and disclosur e of leases for both par ties to a contr act. IFRS 16 is effective from
1 January 2019. A company can choose to apply IFRS 16 befor e that date but only if it also applies IFRS 15. Accor ding
to IFRS 16 lessee is requir ed to r ecognize assets and liabilities for all le ases with a term of mor e than 12 months and
depr eciation of le ase assets separately from inter est on lease liabilities in the income sta tement. The new standard is
expected to have no significant impact on pr ofit befor e taxes. Assets and interest bearing liabilities ar e expected to
grow by EUR 30-40 million with curr ent lease agreements. Changes in le ase agreements may change this amount. T he
standard has not yet been endorsed for applica tion in the EU.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet ef fective that would be e xpected to have a ma terial
impact on the Gr oup .
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NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The GroupÕs operational activities ar e the responsibility of the Gr oupÕs CEO assisted by the Group Management
Team. The division into business segments is based on the r epor ts used by the Group Management T eam for the
allocation of r esources and assessment of performance.

The Group Management T eam monitors business performance by geogr aphical area. The geogr aphical
segments monitor ed are Finland, Sweden, Denmark and the Baltics.

All the geogr aphical segments manufactur e, sell and market meat products, pr ocessed meat products and
convenient foods.

The assets and liabilities of the segments ar e items that are either dir ectly or fairly alloca ted to the business of
the relevant segment. Segment assets include tangible and intangible assets, shar es in associates, inventories
and non-inter est bearing receivables. Segment liabilities include curr ent non-inter est bearing liabilities.
Unallocated items include financial and tax items and items common to the entir e Group .

Year 2016

Swedish

oper ations

Finnish

oper ations

Danish

oper ations

Baltic

oper ations

Business

segments,

total

Group

adminis-

tr ation

Elimina-

tions

Un-

alloca ted

Group

total

INCOME STATEMENT
INFORMA TION

External sales 778.2 790.7 149.5 154.5 1 872.9 - - - 1 872.9

Internal sales 26.1 15.8 23.7 6.8 72.4 - -72.4 - 0.0

Net sales 804.4 806.5 173.2 161.3 1 945.3 - -72.4 - 1 872.9

Segment EBIT 12.9 14.6 -9.5 6.4 24.4 -14.7 - - 9.7

Unallocated items - - - - - - - - -

EBIT 12.9 14.6 -9.5 6.4 24.4 -14.7 - - 9.7

Share of associates'
results -0.5 0.4 - - -0.1 - - - -0.1

Financial income and
expenses -8.7 -8.7

Income taxes -4.4 -4.4

Result for the period,
continuing oper ations -3.6
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BALANCE SHEET
INFORMA TION

Segment assets 240.5 346.0 84.2 137.2 807.9 47.9 -64.7 - 791.1

Shares in associates 4.3 14.0 3.7 - 22.0 0.1 - - 22.2

Unallocated assets - - - - - - - 41.5 41.5

Total assets 244.8 360.1 87.9 137.2 830.0 48.0 -64.7 41.5 854.8

Segment liabilities 100.0 155.3 17.9 19.7 293.0 10.2 -33.7 - 269.4

Unallocated liabilities - - - - - - - 175.7 175.7

Total liabilities 100.0 155.3 17.9 19.7 293.0 10.2 -33.7 175.7 445.1

OTHER INFORMATION

Sales, goods 777.5 786.0 149.5 154.3 1 867.3 - - - 1 867.3

Sales, services 0.7 4.7 - 0.2 5.6 - - - 5.6

Investments 19.8 60.3 3.1 10.8 94.0 3.6 - - 97.6

Depreciation and
amortisation -11.3 -24.6 -9.4 -8.9 -54.1 -0.4 - - -54.6

Impairment -0.4 - - - -0.4 - - - -0.4

Goodwill 31.4 19.8 3.6 22.2 77.0 - - - 77.0

Cash flow befor e debt
service 8.2 25.9 -0.8 6.7 40.1 -16.4 - - 23.7

Cash flow befor e debt
service r econcilia tion
Group total

Cash flow from oper ating
activities 70.9

Financial items (-) 6.9

Cash flow from investing
activities -53.9

Loan receivables
Borrowings and
repayments (-) -0.2

Cash flow befor e debt
service 23.7
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Year 2015

Swedish

oper ations

Finnish

oper ations

Danish

oper ations

Baltic

oper ations

Business

segments,

total

Group

adminis-

tr ation

Elimina-

tions

Un-

alloca ted

Group

total

INCOME STATEMENT
INFORMA TION

External sales 813.5 792.4 145.0 166.3 1 917.1 - - - 1 917.1

Internal sales 28.4 9.2 30.9 7.4 76.0 - -76.0 - 0.0

Net sales 841.9 801.6 175.9 173.6 1 993.1 - -76.0 - 1 917.1

Segment EBIT 21.1 4.9 -9.3 5.4 22.1 -12.5 - - 9.6

Unallocated items - - - - - - - - -

EBIT 21.1 4.9 -9.3 5.4 22.1 -12.5 - - 9.6

Share of associates'
results 0.1 0.4 1.2 - 1.7 - - - 1.7

Financial income and
expenses -9.1 -9.1

Income taxes -0.3 -0.3

Result for the period,
continuing oper ations 1.9

BALANCE SHEET
INFORMA TION

Segment assets 244.0 324.0 93.3 142.2 803.5 18.1 -55.9 - 765.7

Shares in associates 4.9 13.7 4.5 - 23.2 0.1 - - 23.3

Unallocated assets - - - - - - - 48.3 48.3

Total assets 248.9 337.7 97.8 142.2 826.6 18.3 -55.9 48.3 837.3

Segment liabilities 93.5 87.7 18.4 19.2 218.8 7.9 -7.6 - 219.2

Unallocated liabilities - - - - - - - 192.4 192.4

Total liabilities 93.5 87.7 18.4 19.2 218.8 7.9 -7.6 192.4 411.5
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OTHER INFORMATION

Sales, goods 812.8 786.0 145.0 166.0 1 909.7 - - - 1 909.7

Sales, services 0.7 6.4 - 0.2 7.3 - - - 7.3

Investments 13.7 18.2 5.4 10.6 47.9 1.7 - - 49.6

Depreciation and
amortisation -12.2 -22.3 -9.5 -8.9 -52.9 -0.4 - - -53.3

Impairment - -11.4 - - -11.4 - - - -11.4

Goodwill 32.6 19.8 3.6 22.2 78.2 - - - 78.2

Cash flow befor e debt
service 20.4 16.0 -2.1 8.0 42.2 -10.0 - - 32.2

Cash flow befor e debt
service r econcilia tion to
Group total

Cash flow from oper ating
activities 66.8

Financial items (-) 8.5

Cash flow from investing
activities -41.8

Loan receivables
Borrowings and
repayments (-) -1.3

Cash flow befor e debt
service 32.2

2. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2016 2015

Rental income 1.3 2.5

Gain on disposal of non-curr ent assets 1.0 1.4

Gains on sales of holdings - 1.1

Exchange rate gains related to for eign exchange deriva tives 1.4 1.2

Insurance compensa tion 0.1 0.9

Government gr ants 0.1 0.1

Other oper ating income 7.6 8.0

Other oper ating income 11.4 15.1

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016
Financials / Financial statements / Notes to the financial sta tements /
Notes to the income sta tement

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 115



3. MA TERIALS AND SERVICES

2016 2015

Purchases during the financial period -1 148.2 -1 184.2

Increase/decrease in inventories -4.2 0.9

Work performed for own use and capitalized 0.0 0.0

Materials and supplies -1 152.4 -1 183.2

External services -153.2 -161.5

Materials and services -1 305.7 -1 344.8
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4. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

2016 2015

Salaries and fees -254.8 -249.2

Share-based payments -0.0 -0.2

Pension expenses, defined contribution plans -28.6 -26.9

Pension expenses, defined benefit plans -1.7 -1.7

Total pension e xpenses -30.3 -28.6

Other social e xpenses -41.4 -41.3

Employee benefit e xpenses -326.6 -319.3

Managing dir ectors and their deputies -4.0 -2.7

Members of the Boar d of Dir ectors -0.3 -0.3

Management salaries, fees and benefits -4.3 -3.0

Average number of employees during financial ye ar

Clerical employees 1 269 1 234

Workers 6 050 6 203

Total 7 319 7 437

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Board of Dir ectors of HKScan Corpor ation appr oved on 19 December 2012 a shar e based incentive plan,
Performance Share Plan 2013, as a part of the incentive and commitment pr ogr amme for the Gr oup's key
employees. The Plan includes three one-year performance periods, the calendar ye ars 2013, 2014 and 2015,
from which the k ey employees can earn HKScan series A shares based on achieving the set tar gets. The Board of
Directors of the Company will decide on the performance criteria and their tar gets for a performance period a t
the beginning of e ach performance period. F urthermor e, the Plan includes one thr ee-year performance period,
calendar years 2013Ð2015. The prerequisite for r eceiving r eward on the basis of this performance period is tha t a
key employee pr eviously owns or acquir es the Company«s series A shares up to the number determined by the
Board of Dir ectors.

The potential r eward from the performance period 2015 will be based on the HKScan Gr oup«s Earnings per
Share (EPS) and Return on Capital Employed (ROCE).

The possible r ewards from the performance 2015 will be paid in 2018 par tly in the HKScan series A shares and
partly in cash. The cash propor tion is intended to cover tax es and tax-related costs arising fr om the r ewards to
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the key personnel. In gener al, no reward will be paid, if the k ey employee's employment or service ends befor e
reward payment.

From performance period 2013Ð2015 a total of 44 885 shar es were deliver ed to 17 par ticipants in spring 2016.
In addition a cash por tion was paid to cover tax es.

On 18 December 2015, HKScan announced tha t the Board of Dir ectors had appr oved a share based incentive
plan for the Gr oup's key personnel for the ye ar 2016. The new plan covers one performance period, ye ar 2016.
The potential r eward from the performance period will be based on the HKScan Gr oup«s Earnings Before
Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amor tization (EBITDA) and Earnings per Share (EPS).

Rewards from the performance period will be paid par tly in the CompanyÕs A series shares and partly in cash as
follows: 50 per cent pay-out in 2017 and 50 per cent pay out in 2018. T he cash propor tion is intended to cover
taxes and tax-related costs arising fr om the r ewards to the key personnel. No r eward will be paid, if the k ey
employeeÕs employment or service ends befor e reward payment.

The plan is dir ected to 37 people. T he rewards to be paid on basis of the performance period ar e a maximum
appr oximate total of 366 000 HKScan Corpor ation series A shares and cash payment corr esponding to the value
of such shares.

More specific informa tion of the performance shar e plan gr ants are presented in the tables below .
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SHARE BASED INCENTIVES DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD 1 JAN.
2016 Ð 31 DEC. 2016

Plan LTI Bridge Plan 2016
Performance Shar e Plan

2013
TOTAL

Instrument

Plan
2016Ð2018,

2017
delivery

Plan
2016Ð2018,

2018
delivery

Restricted
Stock

2013Ð2015
Performance
Period 2015 TOT/W A

Initial amount, pcs 366 000 366 000 121 000 451 000 1 304 000

Initial alloca tion da te
16 June

2016
16 June

2016 1 Feb. 2013 10 Feb. 2015 -

Vesting da te / payment appr oximately
31 Aug.

2017
31 March

2018 30 Apr . 2016 30 Apr . 2018 -

Maximum contr actual life, yrs 1.2 1.8 3.2 3.2 2.2

Remaining contr actual life, yrs 0.7 1.3 - 1.3 1.2

Vesting conditions

EBITDA
(70%),

EPS (30%),
Employment
precondition

EPS (70%),
ROCE-%

(30%),
Employment
precondition

Share
purchase

and
ownership

requir ement,
Employment
precondition

EPS (70%),
ROCE-%

(30%),
Employment
precondition

Number of persons a t the end of the
repor ting year 28 28 - 20

Payment method
Cash &
Equity

Cash &
Equity

Cash &
Equity

Cash &
Equity
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Changes during the period 2016

Plan
2016Ð2018,

2017
delivery

Plan
2016Ð2018,

2018
delivery

Restricted
Stock

2013Ð2015
Performance
Period 2015 Total

1 Jan. 2016

Outstanding a t the beginning of the
repor ting period, pcs 0 0 92 500 442 000 534 500

Changes during the period

Granted 273 000 273 000 0 0 546 000

Forfeited 12 000 12 000 0 20 268 32 268

Excercised 0 0 92 500 0 92 500

Expired 0 0 0 367 962 367 962

31 Dec. 2016

Outstanding a t the end of the period 261 000 261 000 0 53 770 575 770

The pricing of the shar e based incentives gr anted during the period was determined by the following inputs and
had the following ef fect:

Valua tion par ameters for instruments gr anted during period

Share price at grant, euros 3.10

Share price at repor ting period end, eur os 3.19

Maturity , years 1.5

Expected dividends (unless they ar e compensa ted), euros 0.00

Fair value at grant, euros 1 692 600

Fair value 31 Dec. 2016, eur os 0

Effect of shar e-based incentives on the r esult and financial position during the period

Expenses for the financial year, share-based payments, eur os 35 260

Expenses for the financial year, share-based payments, equity-set tled, eur os 24 646

Liabilities arising fr om share-based payments 31 Dec. 2016, eur os 62 696
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5. DEPRECIATION AND IMP AIRMENT

2016 2015

Depreciation accor ding to plan -54.6 -53.3

Impairment -0.4 -11.4

Total -55.0 -64.7

Group announced in October 2015 of a for thcoming gr een-field investment in a new poultry pr oduction facility
to be built in R auma, Finland. The investment will amount to EUR 80 million. T he investment r esulted in an
impairment of assets a t the current Eura facility amounting to EUR 11.4 million.
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6. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2016 2015

Rents/le ases -13.2 -16.1

Losses on disposal of non-curr ent assets -0.2 -1.1

R&D costs -6.6 -5.1

Non-statutory staf f costs -11.7 -12.3

Energy -35.4 -37.0

Maintenance -38.1 -39.6

Adver tising, mark eting and enter tainment costs -23.2 -21.5

Service, information management and of fice costs -25.5 -25.5

Other e xpenses -33.7 -35.8

Total other oper ating e xpenses -187.5 -193.9

AUDIT FEES

The GroupÕs audit fees paid to independent auditors ar e presented in the table below . The audit fees are in
respect of the audit of the annual accounts and legisla tive functions closely associa ted ther ewith. Other e xpert
services include tax consulting and advisory services in corpor ate arrangements.

2016 2015

Audit fees -0.6 -0.4

Tax consultation -0.0 0.0

Other fees -0.4 -0.1

Audit fees, total -1.0 -0.5

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016
Financials / Financial statements / Notes to the financial sta tements /
Notes to the income sta tement

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 122



7. FINANCIAL INC OME AND EXPENSES

Financial income 2016 2015

Dividend income 0.4 0.1

Interest income

Interest income fr om loans and r eceivables 1.9 2.0

Interest income fr om inter est derivatives - -

Other financial income 0.1 0.0

Total 2.3 2.1

Financial e xpenses

Interest expenses

Interest expenses from other liabilities a t amortised cost -5.9 -5.8

Interest expenses from inter est derivatives -3.9 -3.7

Other financial e xpenses

Ineffective por tion of inter est rate risk hedge - -0.0

Impairment losses on loan r eceivables - -

Other financial e xpenses -1.2 -1.3

Exchange gains and losses from loans and other r eceivables -0.1 -0.4

Total -11.1 -11.2

Total financial income and e xpenses -8.7 -9.1
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8. INC OME TAXES

Income tax es 2016 2015

Income tax on or dinary oper ations -1.4 -1.4

Tax for previous financial periods 0.1 -0.1

Change in deferr ed tax liabilities and assets -3.1 1.2

Income tax on or dinary oper ations -4.4 -0.3

Cumula tive tax r ate r econcilia tion

Accounting pr ofit/loss befor e taxes 0.9 2.2

Deferred tax at parent company's tax r ate -0.2 -0.4

Effect of dif ferent tax rates applied to for eign subsidiaries 0.7 -0.1

Share of associates' results -0.2 0.6

Tax-exempt income 0.2 -0.0

Non-deductible e xpenses -0.0 -0.3

Use of tax losses not recognised e arlier - 0.1

Unrecognised tax on the losses for the financial period -2.7 0.0

Tax for previous financial periods 0.1 -0.1

Adjustments concerning pr evious financial periods -2.2 -0.0

Effect of change in tax r ate -0.0 -0.0

Tax expenses in the income sta tement -4.4 -0.3
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2016 2015

Profit for the period a ttributable to equity holders of the par ent -5.4 0.3

Total -5.4 0.3

Weighted aver age number of shar es in thousands 54 006 53 973

Weighted aver age number of shar es adjusted for dilution ef fect 54 006 53 973

Undiluted e arnings per share (EUR/share) -0.10 0.01

Earnings per share adjusted for dilution ef fect (EUR/share) -0.10 0.01
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NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

10. ITEMS AFFECTING COMPARABILITY

2016 2015

Compar able EBIT 13.2 21.5

Impairment of assets, Finland* - -11.4

Termination of employment, Sweden** - -0.5

Termination of employment, Gr oup Management** -1.2 -

Termination of employment, Denmark** -0.5 -

Termination of employment, F inland** -0.3 -

Environmental pr ovision, Sweden*** -1.5 -

EBIT 9.7 9.6

* Included in the Income S tatement in the item ÓDepreciation and amor tizationÓ

** Included in the Income S tatement in the item ÓEmployee benefits e xpensesÓ

*** Included in the Income S tatement in the item ÓOther oper ating e xpensesÓ
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11. INT ANGIBLE ASSETS

2016 2015

Opening balance, cumula tive acq cost 95.1 94.4

Translation dif ferences -2.5 1.4

Additions 0.9 0.9

Additions, business acquisitions - 0.1

Disposals -0.0 -2.3

Reclassification between items 0.4 0.5

Closing balance, cumula tive acq cost 94.0 95.1

Opening balance, cumula tive depr eciations -26.1 -25.6

Translation dif ferences 0.2 -0.1

Accumula ted depr eciation on disposals and r eclassifications 0.0 2.2

Depreciation for the financial period -2.1 -2.6

Closing balance, cumula tive depr eciations -28.0 -26.1

Intangible assets on 31 Dec. 66.0 69.1

The trademarks included in the Swedish business oper ations, carrying amount EUR 57.1 (59.4) million, ar e tested
for impairment e ach year. The Group has estimated tha t their useful life is unlimited. T hese are well known
trademarks with long history and high business and pr ofitability impact and it is e xpected to be so also in the
future. Impairment test is made on segment level and it covers all segment Õs assets, see detailed description in
note 12. Remaining balance includes IT -software, other tr ademarks and connection fees.
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12. GOODWILL

2016 2015

Opening balance 78.2 75.4

Translation dif ferences -1.2 0.7

Additions, business acquisitions - 2.1

Disposals - -

Depreciation and impairment - -

Closing balance 77.0 78.2

ALLOCATION OF GOODWILL

All acquisitions r esulting in the Gr oup r ecognising goodwill have concerned the acquisition of net assets or
business by an individual CGU and goodwill has been alloca ted to said CGU separ ately in respect of each
acquisition. Goodwill has been alloca ted to a total of four CGUs.

Specifica tion of goodwill 2016 2015

Finland 19.8 19.8

Sweden 31.4 32.6

Denmark 3.6 3.6

Baltics 22.2 22.2

Total 77.0 78.2

IMPAIRMENT TESTING

The company tests for impairment e ach year. The key assumptions in testing ar e the growth pr ospects of the
business, cost trends and the discount r ate employed.

Management r eviews the business performance based on business segments and it has identified F inland,
Sweden, Denmark and Baltics as the main segments. Goodwill is monitor ed by the management a t the business
segment level.

In impairment testing all segment Õs assets are tested against the r ecoverable amounts in the futur e. The
recoverable amounts of the cash gener ating units ar e based on value-in-use calcula tions. The cash flow
estimates employed ar e based on financial plans adopted by management and the Boar d of Dir ectors and
spanning five ye ars. The plans are based on moder ate and cautious net sales gr owth under the assumption tha t
Group EBIT percent of four will be achieved in the for ecast period. The cash flow after the for ecast period is
extrapolated using a cautious gr owth factor (1.0 per cent). T he growth factors of the CGUs for the period
following the for ecast period do not e xceed the long-term historical gr owth of the CGUs.
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The interest rate has been defined as the weighted aver age cost of capital (W ACC). Calculation of the inter est
rate is based on mark et informa tion on companies oper ating in the same field (contr ol gr oup). In addition, the
risks in each market area have been taken into account in the calcula tion. The interest rates used are 4.7 (5.2) per
cent in Finland, 4.7 (5.1) per cent in Sweden, 4.7 (5.3) per cent in Denmark and 4.8 (5.5) per cent in the Baltic
countries. The WACC interest rates changed compar ed to prior ye ar mainly due to the decr ease in risk free
interest.

The sensitivity of each CGU to impairment is tested by varying the discount r ate, future cash flow befor e debt
service and the gr owth factor r eflecting pr ofitability development. Based on the sensitivity analyses conducted a
reasonably possible change in variables would not r esult in impairment in any of the CGUs.

Following table pr esents terminal cash flow befor e debt service tha t would r esult in asset values to equal
recoverable amounts of the CGUs all other variables unchanged.

2015
CFBDS

2016
CFBDS

br eakeven
terminal

CFBDS

Sweden 20.4 8.2 7.2

Finland 16.0 25.9 10.0

Denmark -2.1 -0.8 2.7

Baltics 8.0 6.7 4.5

As far as management is aware, reasonable changes in assumptions used in r espect of other factors do not
necessitate impairment for the goodwill of any cash-gener ating unit. Sudden and other than r easonably possible
changes in the business envir onment of cash gener ating units may r esult in an increase in capital costs or in a
situation wher e a cash-generating unit is for ced to assess clearly lower cash flows. Recognition of an impairment
loss is likely in such situations.

The annual impairment testing performed did not r esult in the recognition of impairment char ges in 2016 or
2015.
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13. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible assets 2016

Land and

wa ter

Buildings

and

structur es

Machinery

and

equipment

Other

pr oper ty ,

plant

and

equipment

Pre-

payments

and work

in

pr ogr ess Total

Opening balance, cumula tive acq cost 11.3 463.3 619.1 15.8 18.6 1 128.1

Translation dif ferences -0.1 -3.2 -6.3 0.0 -0.2 -9.8

Additions - 3.1 11.4 1.3 81.0 96.9

Additions, business acquisitions - - - - - -

Disposals -0.4 -2.2 -10.1 -0.9 -0.2 -13.7

Disposals, business disposals - - -5.6 - - -5.6

Other changes 0.0 - - - 0.0 0.0

Reclassification between items -0.0 5.3 18.8 0.5 -24.8 -0.2

Closing balance, cumula tive acq cost 10.8 466.4 627.3 16.8 74.3 1 195.6

Opening balance, cumula tive depr eciations -0.0 -278.9 -474.3 -13.1 - -766.3

Translation dif ferences - 2.6 5.0 -0.0 - 7.6

Accumula ted depr eciation on disposals and
reclassifications - 2.0 9.9 0.1 - 11.9

Accumula ted depr eciation on business disposals - 0.0 5.2 0.0 - 5.2

Depreciation for the financial period - -15.1 -36.3 -1.0 - -52.4

Impairment losses - - -0.0 - - -0.0

Impairment char ge reversals - - - - - 0.0

Other changes - - - - - -

Closing balance, cumula tive depr eciations -0.0 -289.5 -490.5 -14.0 - -793.9

Tangible assets on 31 Dec. 2016 10.8 176.9 136.8 2.8 74.3 401.7
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Tangible assets 2015

Land and

wa ter

Buildings

and

structur es

Machinery

and

equipment

Other

pr oper ty ,

plant

and

equipment

Pre-

payments

and work

in

pr ogr ess Total

Opening balance, cumula tive acq cost 10.0 441.4 595.0 14.6 20.7 1 081.6

Translation dif ferences 0.1 1.6 3.3 -0.0 0.2 5.1

Additions 1.1 8.7 9.1 1.6 28.2 48.7

Additions, business acquisitions 0.3 5.3 2.2 - - 7.8

Disposals -0.1 -5.2 -5.7 -0.6 -0.6 -12.1

Disposals, business disposals - - -11.8 -0.0 - -11.8

Other changes 0.0 4.9 4.3 0.1 0.1 9.3

Reclassification between items -0.1 6.6 22.7 0.2 -30.0 -0.6

Closing balance, cumula tive acq cost 11.3 463.3 619.1 15.8 18.6 1 128.1

Opening balance, cumula tive depr eciations -0.1 -253.2 -447.0 -11.6 - -711.9

Translation dif ferences -0.0 -1.4 -2.7 0.0 - -4.1

Accumula ted depr eciation on disposals and
reclassifications 0.1 2.0 4.7 -0.4 - 6.4

Accumula ted depr eciation on business disposals - 0.0 8.8 0.0 - 8.8

Depreciation for the financial period - -12.8 -36.9 -1.0 - -50.7

Impairment losses - -11.4 0.0 - - -11.4

Impairment char ge reversals - - - - - -

Other changes - -2.1 -1.2 -0.0 - -3.4

Closing balance, cumula tive depr eciations 0.0 -278.9 -474.3 -13.1 - -766.3

Tangible assets on 31 Dec. 2015 11.3 184.4 144.8 2.8 18.6 361.8

Other pr oper ty, plant and equipment include 1.2 (1.4) million eur os biological assets. These are animals
producing slaughter animals and they have been me asured at cost, less an expense corresponding to a
reduction in use value caused by ageing. T here is no available market price for pr oductive animals.
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14. BUSINESS COMBINA TIONS

There were no business combina tions in 2016.

On 2 July 2015 HKScan Finland Oy acquir ed a 50 per cent stake in Paimion Teurastamo Oy as part of its strategy
to boost pr ofitable gr owth. Following the de al Paimion Teurastamo Oy became a subsidiary of HKScan. Purchase
consider ation was EUR 5.9 million and it was paid in cash.

Specializing in beef slaughtering, P aimion Teurastamo oper ates in a Paimio-based facility commissioned in 2012.
The company is pr ofitable, accruing EUR 13.8 million in net sales in 2014. T he company has roughly 40
employees.

The deal suppor ts the Group's str ategic beef pr oject aiming to pr omote innova tion and a consumer -driven
offering development of beef in all its home mark ets. HKScan additionally has a beef slaughtering facility based
in Outok umpu. With two specialized beef slaughterhouses, livestock tr ansport distances are minimized, of fering
contract producers gr eater speed and fle xibility in pick -up schedules.

The assets and liabilities r ecognised as a r esult of the acquisition ar e as follows:

Note Fair value

Intangible assets 11. 0.1

Tangible assets 13. 7.8

Inventories 0.1

Trade receivables and other r eceivables 1.3

Cash 0.5

Total assets 9.7

Deferred tax liability 17. 1.0

Trade payables and other liabilities 1.2

Total liabilities 2.1

Net assets acquir ed 7.5

Goodwill fr om the acquisition:

Purchase consideration 5.9

Non-contr olling inter est's propor tionate share of the acquir ed entity's net identifiable assets 3.8

Acquir ed entity's net identifiable assets -7.5

Goodwill 2.1
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Goodwill amounting to EUR 2.1 million was r ecorded fr om the acquisition, and it is based on the e xpected
synergies. Goodwill will not be deductible for tax purposes.

There are no material acquisition-r elated costs in other oper ating e xpenses.

The acquired business contributed r evenues of EUR 7.7 million and EUR -0.1 million net pr ofit to the Gr oup's
financial year 2015. If the acquisition had occurr ed on 1 January 2015, the Group's r evenue would have been
EUR 7.2 million and net pr ofit EUR 0.1 million higher .
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15. SHARES IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

2016 2015

Opening balance 23.3 22.7

Translation dif ferences -0.2 0.1

Additions, business acquisitions - 0.8

Disposals, business disposals - -1.0

Other changes - -0.1

Closing balance 23.1 22.5

Share of associates' and joint ventur es' results -0.1 1.7

Dividend fr om associates and joint ventur es -0.9 -0.9

Shares in associa tes on 31 Dec. 22.2 23.3

Effect on the Gr oup's e arnings:

Associates -0.4 -3.6

Joint ventur es 0.3 5.3

Total -0.1 1.7

Book value in the Gr oup's balance sheet:

Associates 12.7 13.6

Joint ventur es 9.5 9.7

Total 22.2 23.3

Associated companies and joint ventur es consolida ted in the Gr oup financial sta tements are listed in note
29. The Group has no single ma terial associated companies or joint ventur es. The Group conducts
business through the associa tes and joint ventur es. The activities include slaughtering, cut ting, me at
processing, and the use of le asing, waste disposal, research and advisory services.

There are no contingent liabilities r elating to the Gr oupÕs interest in the associates and joint ventur es.
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FINANCIAL INS TRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2016

Assets and

liabilities a t

fair

value

thr ough

pr ofit and

loss:

classified

as

held for

tr ading

Loans and

receivables

Available-

for -sale

Deriva tives

used for

hedging

Other

financial

liabilities

at

amor tised

cost Total

Fair

value

Fair value

hier archy

Assets as per balance sheet

Non-curr ent trade and other
receivables - 4.7 - - - 4.7 - -

Available-for -sale investments - 0.0 12.8 - - 12.8 - -

Trade and other r eceivables * - 113.1 - - - 113.1 - -

Derivative financial instruments 0.1 - - - - 0.1 0.1 2

Cash and bank - 6.6 - - - 6.6 - -

Total 0.1 124.4 12.8 0.0 0.0 137.3 0.1 2

* Trade and other r eceivables balance sheet amount of EUR 123.7 million eur os includes deriva tive financial instruments amounting to EUR

0.1 million eur os and prepayments and other items tha t are not financial instruments amounting to EUR 10.5 million eur os.

Liabilities as per balance
sheet

Non-curr ent inter est-bearing
liabilities - - - - 126.9 126.9 - -

Non-curr ent non-inter est
bearing liabilities - - - - 0.1 0.1 - -

Current inter est-bearing
liabilities - - - - 17.2 17.2 - -

Derivative financial instruments * 0.4 - - 13.3 - 13.7 13.7 2

Trade and other payables * - - - - 245.3 245.3 - -

Total 0.4 0.0 0.0 13.3 389.5 403.2 13.7 2

* Trade and other payables balance sheet amount of EUR 259.2 million eur os includes deriva tive financial instruments amounting to EUR

13.7 million eur os and advance payments tha t are not financial instruments amounting to EUR 0.2 million eur os.
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FINANCIAL INS TRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2015

Assets and

liabilities a t

fair

value

thr ough

pr ofit and

loss:

classified

as

held for

tr ading

Loans and

receivables

Available-

for -sale

Deriva tives

used for

hedging

Other

financial

liabilities

at

amor tised

cost Total

Fair

value

Fair value

hier archy

Assets as per balance sheet

Non-curr ent trade and other
receivables - 5.3 - - - 5.3 - -

Available-for -sale investments - - 13.3 - - 13.3 - -

Trade and other r eceivables * - 113.6 - - - 113.6 - -

Derivative financial instruments 0.1 - - - - 0.1 0.1 2

Cash and bank - 9.5 - - - 9.5 - -

Total 0.1 128.5 13.3 0.0 0.0 141.8 0.1 2

* Trade and other r eceivables balance sheet amount of EUR 122.9 million eur os includes deriva tive financial instruments amounting to EUR

0.1 million eur os and prepayments and other items tha t are not financial instruments amounting to EUR 9.2 million eur os.

Liabilities as per balance
sheet

Non-curr ent inter est-bearing
liabilities - - - - 117.2 117.2 - -

Non-curr ent non-inter est
bearing liabilities - - - - 0.3 0.3 - -

Current inter est-bearing
liabilities - - - - 36.6 36.6 - -

Derivative financial instruments * 0.5 - - 16.9 - 17.4 17.4 2

Trade and other payables * - - - - 199.3 199.3 - -

Total 0.5 0.0 0.0 16.9 353.4 370.8 17.4 2

* Trade and other payables balance sheet amount of EUR 217.1 million eur os includes deriva tive financial instruments amounting to EUR

17.4 million eur os and advance payments tha t are not financial instruments amounting to EUR 0.5 million eur os.

The balance sheet values best corr espond to the amount of money which is the maximum amount of cr edit risk
in the event tha t counterpar ties are unable to fulfil their obliga tions associated with the financial instruments. F air
value of financial instruments other than those r ecorded a t fair value is close to balance sheet value and
therefore they are not separately disclosed.
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17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Specifica tion of deferr ed tax assets

1 Jan. 2016

Transla tion

dif fer ence

Recognized in

income sta tement

Recognized in

equity

Business

acquisition/

disposal 31 Dec. 2016

Pension benefits 3.6 -0.1 -0.0 1.2 - 4.7

Other timing dif ferences 2.4 -0.0 0.8 -0.0 - 3.2

Adopted losses 19.6 -0.0 -6.2 -0.4 - 12.9

Arising fr om hedge accounting 4.1 -0.0 -0.4 -0.6 - 3.1

Total 29.7 -0.2 -5.8 0.2 - 23.8

Specifica tion of deferr ed tax liabilities

1 Jan. 2016

Transla tion

dif fer ence

Recognized in

income sta tement

Recognized in

equity

Business

acquisition/

disposal 31 Dec. 2016

Depreciation dif ference 4.3 -0.0 -2.2 -0.0 - 2.1

Other timing dif ferences 0.8 -0.0 -0.0 - - 0.8

Arising fr om consolida tion 14.8 -0.5 -0.1 - - 14.2

Arising fr om hedge accounting 0.3 - -0.3 - - 0.0

Total 20.2 -0.5 -2.7 -0.0 - 17.0

Specifica tion of deferr ed tax assets

1 Jan. 2015

Transla tion

dif fer ence

Recognized in

income sta tement

Recognized in

equity

Business

acquisition/

disposal 31 Dec. 2015

Pension benefits 3.1 0.0 -0.0 0.4 - 3.6

Other timing dif ferences 3.1 0.0 -0.4 -0.4 - 2.4

Adopted losses 23.2 0.1 -0.8 -2.9 - 19.6

Arising fr om hedge accounting 4.1 - 0.0 -0.1 - 4.1

Total 33.6 0.1 -1.2 -2.9 - 29.7
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Specifica tion of deferr ed tax liabilities

1 Jan. 2015

Transla tion

dif fer ence

Recognized in

income sta tement

Recognized in

equity

Business

acquisition/

disposal 31 Dec. 2015

Depreciation dif ference 10.0 -0.0 -2.2 -3.5 0.0 4.3

Other timing dif ferences 0.9 0.0 -0.1 - - 0.8

Arising fr om consolida tion 13.7 0.3 -0.2 - 0.9 14.8

Arising fr om hedge accounting 0.3 - - - - 0.3

Total 24.9 0.3 -2.4 -3.5 1.0 20.2

Deferred tax liability has not been r ecognized in r espect of retained pr ofits of subsidiaries, amounting to EUR
23.5 (20.6) million, as the assets have been used to safeguar d the for eign companiesÕ own investment needs.

On 31 December 2016, the Gr oup had EUR 29.8 million of losses, on which no deferr ed tax receivable has been
recognized.

18. INVENT ORIES

2016 2015

Materials and supplies 61.5 71.5

Unfinished pr oducts 4.7 5.0

Finished pr oducts 42.0 40.1

Other inventories 0.3 0.4

Prepayments for inventories 0.9 1.1

Biological assets 6.7 6.2

Total inventories 116.1 124.2

Fair value hierarchy level of the biological assets is 2. T here were no transfers between any levels during the ye ar.
Fair value of live animals is derived fr om quoted mark et price for slaughter ed animals by using historical yield.
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19. TRADE AND O THER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

Trade receivables from associates 2.1 1.3

Loan receivables from associates 0.2 0.2

Other r eceivables from associates 0.0 0.0

Current receivables from associates 2.3 1.5

Trade receivables 99.6 103.5

Loan receivables 0.0 0.1

Other r eceivables 10.9 8.2

Current receivables from others 110.6 111.8

Current deriva tive receivables 0.1 0.1

Interest receivables 0.3 0.3

Other pr epayments and accrued income 10.5 9.1

Current pr epayments and accrued income 10.8 9.5

Trade and other r eceivables 123.7 122.9

Tax receivables (income tax es) 0.2 0.0

Total curr ent r eceivables 123.9 122.9
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AGE BREAKDOWN OF TRADE RECEIVABLES AND ITEMS RECOGNISED
AS IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2016

Impairment

losses Net 2016 2015

Impairment

losses Net 2015

Unmatured 94.1 0.0 94.1 98.2 0.0 98.2

Matured:

Under 30 days 6.9 0.0 6.9 6.6 0.0 6.6

30Ð60 days 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.3 0.0 0.3

61Ð90 days 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1

over 90 days* 1.0 -0.9 0.1 0.7 -1.1 -0.4

Total 102.7 -0.9 101.8 105.9 -1.1 104.8

* Comprise among other r eceivables to be set of f against payments for animals

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balance sheet values best corr espond to the amount of money which is the maximum amount of cr edit risk
in the event tha t counterpar ties are unable to fulfil their obliga tions associated with the financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents according to the cash flow sta tement ar e as follows:

2016 2015

Cash and bank 6.6 9.5

Short-term money mark et investments - -

Other financial instruments - -

Total cash and cash equivalents 6.6 9.5

There are no significant concentr ations of credit risk associated with cash and cash equivalents.
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21. NO TES RELATING TO EQUITY

The effects of changes in the number of outstanding shar es are presented below .

Number of

outstanding

shares

(1 000)

Share capital

(EUR million)

Share

pr emium

reserve

(EUR million)

RIUE

(EUR million)

Treasury

shares

(EUR

million)

Total

(EUR million)

1 Jan. 2015 53 973 66.8 72.9 143.5 -0.0 283.1

31 Dec. 2015 53 973 66.8 72.9 143.5 -0.0 283.1

1 Jan. 2016 53 973 66.8 72.9 143.5 -0.0 283.1

31 Dec. 2016 54 018 66.8 72.9 143.5 -0.0 283.1

The shares have no nominal value. All issued shar es have been paid up in full. T he companyÕs stock is divided
into Series A and K shares, which dif fer from each other in the manner set out in the Ar ticles of Association. Each
share gives equal entitlement to a dividend. K Shar es produce 20 votes and A Shar es 1 vote each. A Shares
number ed 49 626 522 and K Shares 5 400 000.

The equity r eserves are described below:

SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE

In share issues decided while the e arlier Finnish Companies Act (29.9.1978/734) was in for ce, payments in cash
or kind obtained on shar e subscription less tr ansaction costs were recognized under equity and the shar e
premium r eserve in accordance with the terms of the arr angements.

RESERVE FOR INVESTED UNRESTRICTED EQUITY

The reserve for invested unr estricted equity (RIUE) contains other investments of an equity na ture and share
issue price inasmuch as this is not recognized under equity pursuant to an e xpress decision to tha t effect.

TREASURY SHARES

At the beginning of the financial ye ar 2016, HKScan held 1 053 734 treasury A Shares. During the ye ar 44 885
HKScan Corpor ationÕs A shares owned by the Gr oup wer e gratuitously tr ansferred to the par ticipants of the
incentive plan. Af ter the tr ansfer, HKScan holds a total of 1 008 849 own shares . At the end of the ye ar, they had
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a market value of EUR 3.2 million and accounted for 1.83 per cent of all shar es and 0.64 per cent of all votes. T he
acquisition cost is pr esented in the balance sheet as a deduction fr om equity .

TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES

The translation dif ferences reserve includes exchange dif ferences arising on the tr anslation of for eign unitsÕ
financial statements as well as gains and losses arising on the hedging of net investments in for eign units when
hedge accounting r equir ements are satisfied.

REVALUATION RESERVE AND OTHER RESERVES

These reserves are for changes in the value of available-for -sale financial assets and changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments used in cash flow hedging. T he revaluation reserve includes EUR 0.6 million (EUR 0.6
million) other than hedging instrument r elated items. The following is an itemisa tion of events in the hedging
instruments r eserve during the financial period.

Hedging instruments r eserve 2016 2015

Fair value reserve and hedging instruments r eserve on 1 Jan. -13.0 -13.3

Amount r ecognized in equity in the financial period (ef fective por tion), inter est rate
derivatives 0.6 1.5

Amount r ecognized in equity in the financial period (ef fective por tion), commodity
derivatives 2.5 -1.1

Share of deferr ed tax asset of changes in period -0.6 -0.1

Fair value reserve and hedging instruments r eserve on 31 Dec. -10.5 -13.0

Gains/losses reclassified from other compr ehensive income to pr ofit or loss amounted to EUR -3.9 (-3.8) million
from inter est rate deriva tives and EUR -1.2 (-0.6) million from commodity deriva tives.

DIVIDENDS

Dividend of EUR 0.14 (0.49) per share, totaling EUR 7.6 (26.4) million, was distributed in 2016. Since the
repor ting da te, the Board of Dir ectors has proposed tha t dividend of EUR 0.16 per shar e, totaling EUR 8.6
million, be declar ed.

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016
Financials / Financial statements / Notes to the financial sta tements /
Notes to the balance sheet

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 142



22. PENSION OBLIGA TIONS

2016 2015

Pension liability/r eceivable in balance sheet

Defined benefit plans 21.6 17.6

Other long-term employee benefits 1.1 1.1

Pension liability (+)/r eceivable(-) in balance sheet 22.7 18.8

The GroupÕs defined benefit plans consist of the pension liability for the former CEO of the par ent company and
Swedish pension pr ogr am. The companyÕs pension commitment in r espect of the defined benefit r elating to
former CEO was EUR 2.8 million on 31 December 2016. T he remaining pension liability r elates to Swedish
pension pr ogr amme.

The defined benefit plan in Sweden is the ITP2 plan and it is based on final salary . HKScan has pension
founda tion in Sweden to secur e obliga tions relating to r etirement pensions for white-collar work ers in
accordance with the ITP2 plan. Only new white-collar employees born befor e or in 1979 have the possibility to
choose the ITP2 solution. Pension founda tion has employer and employee r epresentatives in the boar d. The
plan assets are invested in various funds in acoor dance with a distribution tha t is determined by the founda tion's
Board of Dir ectors. Swedish companies can secur e new pension obliga tions through pension insur ance,
balance-sheet pr ovisions or pension-fund contributions. A cr edit insur ance policy must be tak en out for the
value of the obliga tions. Special pension tax is applicable for pension plan in Sweden.

Summary of pr ovision for post-employment benefits, defined benefit plans 2016 2015

Obliga tions -104.5 -108.7

Fair value of plan assets 89.4 97.0

Special pension tax -3.7 -2.9

Net pr ovision for funded post-employment benefits -18.8 -14.6

Provision for unfunded post-employment benefits -2.8 -2.9

Total pr ovision for post-employment benefits, defined benefit plans -21.6 -17.6

Pension costs in the income sta tement 2016 2015

Current year service costs -1.0 -1.0

Interest costs -3.2 -3.4

Interest income 2.8 3.0

Special pension tax -0.3 -0.3

Pension costs for defined benefit plans -1.7 -1.7

Pension costs for defined contribution plans -26.1 -24.3

Total pension costs for the period -27.8 -26.0
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Pension cost in other compr ehensive income 2016 2015

Changes in actuarial assumptions -2.9 -1.6

Special pension tax -0.7 -0.4

Income tax effect 0.8 0.4

Total pension cost in other compr ehensive income af ter tax es -2.9 -1.5

The following informa tion is about the funded defined benefit plan the Gr oup has in Sweden:

Obliga tions 2016 2015

Obliga tions opening balance -108.7 -109.9

Current year service costs -1.0 -1.0

Interest costs -3.2 -3.4

Remeasurements:

Effect of changes in financial assumptions -1.2 -0.1

Effect of experience adjustments -0.2 2.0

Exchange rate translation 4.1 -2.4

Benefits paid 5.7 5.9

Obliga tions closing balance -104.5 -108.7

Fair value of plan assets 2016 2015

Plan assets opening balance 97.0 100.7

Interest income 2.8 3.0

Remeasurements (experience adjustments) -1.4 -3.5

Exchange rate translation -3.7 2.2

Settlement paid -5.1 -5.3

Plan assets closing balance 89.4 97.0

Assumptions applied for actuarial calcula tions, % 2016 2015

Discount r ate 2.25 3

Expected salary increase 2.25 2.25

Inflation 1.5 1.5

Personnel turnover r ate 4 4

Life expentancy DUS 14 -

Plan assets by ca tegory % 2016 2015

Interest funds 69 64

Equity instrument funds 30 35

Private equity funds 1 1
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Sensitivity analysis 2016, ef fect on obliga tion (+decr ease/-incr ease), EUR
million Change

Used
value Change

Discount r ate -0.50% 2.25% 0.50%

-7.6 -104.5 6.7

Salary increase -0.50% 2.25% 0.50%

1.1 -104.5 -1.3

Inflation -0.50% 1.50% 0.50%

6.0 -104.5 -6.6

Life expectancy -1 year
DUS

14 1 year

4.3 -104.5 -4.4

Average dur ation of the obliga tion is 14 years.

23. PRO VISIONS

1 Jan. 2016

Transla tion

dif fer ence

Incr ease in

pr ovisions

Exercised in

financial

period (-)

31 Dec.

2016

Non-curr ent pr ovisions 0.1 - - - 0.1

Current pr ovisions 0.4 0.0 1.5 -0.3 1.6

Total 0.4 0.0 1.5 -0.3 1.7

1 Jan. 2015

Transla tion

dif fer ence

Incr ease in

pr ovisions

Exercised in

financial

period (-)

31 Dec.

2015

Non-curr ent pr ovisions 0.1 - - - 0.1

Current pr ovisions 3.1 0.0 - -2.7 0.4

Total 3.1 0.0 0.0 -2.7 0.4
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24. LIABILITIES

2016 2015

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing

Bond 99.7 99.5

Bank loans 15.7 0.2

Pension loans 7.9 15.0

Other liabilities 3.7 2.5

Non-curr ent inter est-be aring liabilities 126.9 117.2

Non-inter est-bearing

Other liabilities 0.1 0.3

Non-curr ent non-inter est-be aring liabilities 0.1 0.3

Non-curr ent pr ovisions 0.1 0.1

Deferred tax liability 17.0 20.2

Pension obliga tions 22.7 18.8

Non-curr ent liabilities 166.7 156.6

CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Commer cial paper 7.0 27.0

Pension loans 7.1 7.1

Other liabilities 3.0 2.5

Curr ent inter est-be aring liabilities 17.2 36.6
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Advances received 0.2 0.5

Trade payables 158.7 108.7

Accruals and deferr ed income

- Short-term inter est payable 0.9 0.9

- Matched staff costs 55.8 53.9

- Other shor t-term accruals and deferr ed income 22.1 27.6

Derivatives 13.7 17.4

Other liabilities 7.9 8.1

Trade and other payables 259.2 217.1

Income tax liability 0.3 0.9

Current pr ovisions 1.6 0.4

Curr ent liabilities 278.4 255.0

Liabilities 445.1 411.5

Amounts of the Gr oupÕs interest-bearing liabilities and their contr actual re-pricing periods ar e as follows:

31 Dec. 2016 31 Dec. 2015

Under 6 months 29.2 31.9

6Ð12 months 8.8 11.4

1Ð5 years 106.1 110.5

Over 5 years 0.0 0.0

Total 144.1 153.8
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OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following financial assets ar e subject to of fsetting, enfor ceable master net ting arr angements and similar
agreements.

Rela ted amounts not set

of f in

the balance sheet

As at 31 Dec. 2016

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial assets

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial liabilities

set of f in the

balance sheet

Net amounts of

financial assets

pr esented in the

balance sheet

Financial

instruments

Cash

colla ter al

received Net amount

Interest rate deriva tives - - - - - -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 17.1 17.0 0.1 - - -

Electricity deriva tives 3.7 3.1 0.6 - - -

Trade receivables 0.6 - 0.6 - 0.2 0.4

Total 21.4 20.1 1.3 - 0.2 0.4

Rela ted amounts not set

of f in

the balance sheet

As at 31 Dec. 2015

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial assets

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial liabilities

set of f in the

balance sheet

Net amounts of

financial assets

pr esented in the

balance sheet

Financial

instruments

Cash

colla ter al

received Net amount

Interest rate deriva tives - - - - - -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 22.5 22.5 0.1 - - -

Electricity deriva tives - - - - - -

Trade receivables 0.5 - 0.5 - 0.2 0.3

Total 23.0 22.5 0.6 - 0.2 0.3
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(B) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following financial liabilities ar e subject to of fsetting, enfor ceable master net ting arr angements and similar
agreements.

Rela ted amounts not set

of f in

the balance sheet

As at 31 Dec. 2016

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial assets

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial liabilities

set of f in the

balance sheet

Net amounts of

financial assets

pr esented in the

balance sheet

Financial

instruments

Cash

colla ter al

received Net amount

Interest rate deriva tives 139.8 126.3 13.4 - - -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 20.7 20.4 0.3 - - -

Electricity deriva tives 3.2 2.7 0.5 - - -

Total 163.7 149.4 14.2 - - -

Rela ted amounts not set

of f in

the balance sheet

As at 31 Dec. 2015

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial assets

Gross amounts

of r ecognised

financial liabilities

set of f in the

balance sheet

Net amounts of

financial assets

pr esented in the

balance sheet

Financial

instruments

Cash

colla ter al

received Net amount

Interest rate deriva tives 142.6 128.5 14.0 - - -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 16.2 15.9 0.3 - - -

Electricity deriva tives 8.1 5.2 2.9 - - -

Total 166.9 149.6 17.2 - - -

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enfor ceable master net ting arr angements or similar
arrangements above, e ach agreement between the Gr oup and the counterpar ty allows for net set tlement of the
relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to set tle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election,
financial assets and liabilities will be set tled on a gr oss basis, however, each party to the master net ting
agreement or similar agr eement will have the option to set tle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of
default of the other par ty. Per the terms of e ach agreement, an event of default includes failur e by a party to
make payment when due; failur e by a party to perform any obliga tion requir ed by the agr eement (other than
payment) if such failur e is not remedied within periods of 30 to 60 days af ter notice of such failur e is given to the
party; or bankruptcy .
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANA GEMENT
The duty of Gr oup Treasury in the HKScan Group is to ensur e cost-effective funding and financial risk management for
Group companies and to a ttend to r elations with financiers. The treasury policy appr oved by the Boar d pr ovides the
principles for financial risk management in the Gr oup . The policy is supplemented by separ ate guidelines and
instructions, as well as approval practices.

Financial risks mean unfavourable movements taking place in the financial mark ets that may erode accrual of the
companyÕs result or reduce cash flows. Financial risk management aims to use financial me ans to hedge the companyÕs
intended e arnings performance and equity and to safeguar d the GroupÕs liquidity in all cir cumstances and market
conditions.

External funding of the Gr oupÕs operations and financial risk management is centr alised to Group Treasury operating
under the Gr oup Treasurer. Group Treasury identifies and assesses the risks and acquires the instruments requir ed for
hedging against the risk s, in close co-oper ation with the oper ational units.

Risk management may employ various instruments, such as curr ency forwards and options, inter est-rate or curr ency
swaps, foreign curr ency loans and commodity deriva tives. Derivatives are used for the sole purpose of hedging, not for
speculation. Funding of the Gr oupÕs subsidiaries is managed mainly thr ough the par ent company . The subsidiaries may
not accept new e xternal funding, nor may they give guar antees or pledges without the permission of the Gr oup
Treasury in the parent company .

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The GroupÕs domestic mark et consists of Finland, Sweden, Denmark and Baltic countries. T he company pr oduces, sells
and markets pork, beef, poultry and lamb pr oducts, pr ocessed meats and convenience foods to r etail, food service,
industry and e xpor t sectors.

Transaction risk arises when the Group companies engage in for eign curr ency denomina ted impor t and expor t both
outside and within the Gr oup . The aim of tr ansaction risk management is to hedge the Gr oupÕs business against foreign
exchange rate movements and allow the business units time to r eact and adapt to fluctua tions in exchange rates.
Foreign exchange risk exposures, which include sales, pur chases and financing related contr actual cash flows (balance
sheet items and commit ted cash flows), as well as highly probable for ecasted cash flows, are hedged thr ough forwar d
contracts made with the par ent company . The business units repor t their risk exposures and hedging levels to Gr oup
Treasury on a regular basis.

The subsidiaries must hedge balance sheet items in full amount and commit ted cash flows from 50 to 100 per cent. In
addition, for ecasted, highly pr obable cash flows ar e hedged 0 - 50 per cent for up to 12 months into the futur e. Group
Treasury can use currency forwards, options and swaps as hedging instruments. T reasury targets to hedge fully its
significant for eign exchange risk exposures.

Translation risk arises from the consolida tion of equity into the basic curr ency in subsidiaries whose oper ational
currency is not the eur o. The largest foreign curr ency denomina ted equities of the Gr oup companies ar e in Swedish
krona and Danish krone. Fluctuations of exchange rates affect the amount of consolida ted equity , and translation
dif ferences are generated in connection with the consolida tion of equity in accounting. Gr oup Treasury identifies and
manages foreign exchange tr anslation risks according to Treasury Policy. HKScan Group is not hedging tr anslation risk
currently.

The equities of the Gr oupÕs non-euro-denomina ted subsidiaries and associa tes are presented in the following table in
million eur os.
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2016 2015

Currency Exposure Exposure

SEK 104.6 121.7

PLN 5.1 4.3

DKK 9.5 23.8

The parent companyÕs functional curr ency is euro. Net position of assets and liabilities denomina ted in the most
significant for eign curr encies translated into eur o at the exchange rates of the repor ting da te:

2016 2015

USD JPY SEK GBP USD JPY SEK GBP

Net position befor e hedging 4.4 1.8 11.8 2.2 2.2 1.1 21.9 2.8

Hedging -2.1 -1.1 -10.4 -1.8 -1.6 -1.0 -26.6 -1.4

Open position 2.4 0.7 1.4 0.4 0.6 0.0 -4.7 1.4

The following table analyses the str engthening or we akening of the eur o against the US dollar , Japanese yen,
Swedish krona and British pound sterling, all other factors r emaining unchanged. T he movements r epresent
average volatility over the past 12 months. Sensitivity analysis is based on assets and liabilities denomina ted in
foreign curr encies at the repor ting da te. The effects of currency derivatives, which of fset the effects of changes in
exchange rates, are also taken into account in sensitivity analysis. Net investments in for eign units and the
instruments used to hedge these have been e xcluded fr om sensitivity analysis.

In respect of the for eign curr encies, the effect would mainly be due to changes in the e xchange rates applicable
to for eign curr ency denomina ted tr ade receivables and payables.

2016 2015

USD JPY SEK GBP USD JPY SEK GBP

Movement (+/-), % 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

Effect on pr ofit befor e taxes 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.4 0.1

The following assumptions wer e used in calculating sensitivity to curr ency risks:

Forecast future cash flows have not been tak en into account in the calcula tion but financial instruments such as
forward contr acts used to cover these positions ar e included in the analysis.

The calculation and estima tes of reasonably possible changes in e xchange rates are based on the assumption of
ordinary mark et and business conditions.
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INTEREST RATE RISK

The GroupÕs main exposure to inter est rate risk arises through inter est-bearing liabilities. T he goal of inter est rate risk
management is to r educe the fluctua tion of inter est expenses in the income sta tement, minimize debt servicing costs
and impr ove the pr edictability . The GroupÕs short-term money mark et investments expose it to cash flow inter est rate
risk, but the impact is not significant as these investments ar e targeted to k eep in minimum. Gr oup r evenues and
oper ative cash flows are mainly independent of fluctua tions in market rates.

Interest rate risk is measured by the ef fect of inter est rate movements on the total for ecasted debt por tfolio . The
relevant measurement horizons ar e selected in accor dance with the r olling business str ategy planning and possible
major investment pr ogr ammes.

To manage inter est rate risks, Group borr owings are spread across fixed and variable inter est instruments. The company
may borr ow at fixed or variable inter est rates and use interest rate deriva tives to achieve a result that is in line with the
Treasury policy. The goal of the policy is to k eep the fix ed inter est term of the loans between 12 and 48 months. On the
balance sheet da te the fixed inter est term was 32 months.

The Group monitors and analyses its inter est rate risk position on a r egular basis. The Group has determined sensitivity
limits for inter est rate movements. The sensitivity of net financial e xpenses on the balance sheet da te to an increase/
decrease of one per cent in inter est rates, all other things being equal, was appr oximately EUR 0.7 (0.7) million befor e
taxes over the next 12 months. The sensitivity analysis was prepared based on the amounts and ma turities of inter est-
bearing liabilities and inter est rate deriva tives on the balance sheet da te.

COUNTERPARTY RISK

Financial counterpar ty risk refers to the risk tha t counterpar ty may fail to fulfill its contr actual obliga tions. The risks are
mostly related to investment activities and counterpar ty risks in derivative contr acts. Banks that finance the Group are
used as counterpar ties whenever possible, as well as a few other specified counterpar ties. Cash may be invested in
bank deposits, cer tificates of deposit, municipal papers and the commer cial paper pr ogr ammes of certain specified
companies listed on the main list of the Nasdaq Helsinki and to cer tain state-owned companies. Because of the limited
extent of the investment activities, the r esulting counterpar ty and price risk s are not significant.

COMMODIT Y RISK

The Group is exposed to commodity risk s that are related to the availability and price fluctua tions of commodities. In
addition to me at raw materials physical electricity consumption is one of the most significant commodity risk s in the
Group companies. T he subsidiaries can hedge against fluctua tion in mark et prices for electricity and other commodities
by procuring fix ed-price pr oducts or thr ough deriva tive contr acts with Group Treasury. The companies may use external
parties to assist them in commodity risk management.

The Group uses electricity deriva tives in Finland and Sweden to level out ener gy costs. The electricity price risk is
evaluated for five-ye ar periods. The value changes of deriva tives hedging the price of electricity supplied during the
period ar e included in the adjustment items of pur chases. Hedge accounting is applied to contr acts hedging futur e
purchases.

A sensitivity analysis for electricity deriva tives assumes that deriva tives maturing in less than 12 months have an impact
on pr ofit. If the mark et price of electricity changed by +/-10 per centage points fr om the balance sheet da te, the impact
would be as follow , calculated befor e tax:
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EUR million 2016 2015

Electricity Ð effect in income sta tement +/- 0.0 +/- 0.2

Electricity Ð effect in equity +/- 0.3 +/- 0.3

CREDIT RISK

The GroupÕs Treasury Policy and related guidelines specify the cr edit quality r equir ements and investment principles
applied to customers and counterpar ties to investment tr ansactions and deriva tive contr acts. The Group Treasury is
responsible for defining the principles for cr edit management within the Gr oup and upda ting the Cr edit Policy as well
as instructing the Gr oupÕs subsidiaries in credit management.

Credit risk results from a customer Õs possible failur e to fulfil its payment obliga tions. The GroupÕs trade receivables are
spread among a wide customer base, the most impor tant customers being centr al retail organizations in the various
market areas. The creditwor thiness, payment behaviour and cr edit limits of the clients ar e monitor ed systematically. As a
main principle some type of securing is needed for all cr edit gr anted. The security can be credit insur ance, a bank
guarantee, or a security deposit. In addition, the Gr oup is exposed to minor cr edit risk in r emaining financing
investments of primary pr oduction contr act producers.

The amount of impairment losses r ecognized thr ough pr ofit or loss in the financial period was EUR 0.0 (-0.4) million.
The GroupÕs maximum exposure to credit risk equals the carrying amount of financial assets a t year-end. The age
breakdown of tr ade receivables is presented in Note 19.

LIQUIDIT Y AND REFINANCING RISK

The Group constantly assesses and monitors the amount of funding r equir ed for oper ations by me ans such as
preparation and analysis of cash flow for ecasts. The Group maintains adequa te liquidity under all cir cumstances to
cover its business and financing needs in the for eseeable futur e.

The availability of funding is ensur ed by spr eading the ma turity of the borr owing por tfolio , financing sour ces and
instruments. In gener al, cash and cash equivalents are targeted to k eep in minimum. T he Group also has revolving
credit facilities with bank s, bank borrowings, curr ent accounts with over draft facilities and the shor t-term EUR 200
million F innish commer cial paper pr ogr amme. Liquidity risk is managed by r etaining long-term liquidity r eserves and by
exceeding shor t-term liquidity r equir ements. The GroupÕs liquidity r eserve includes cash and cash equivalents, money
market investments and long-term unused commit ted credit facilities. Shor t-term liquidity r equir ements include the
repayments of shor t- and long-term debt within the ne xt 12 months, expected dividends as well as a specifically
defined str ategic liquidity r equir ement, which covers the oper ative funding needs.

The GroupÕs liquidity r emained good in 2016. Undr awn commit ted credit facilities on 31 December 2016 stood a t EUR
100.0 (100.0) million. In addition, the Gr oup had other undr awn overdraft and other facilities of EUR 20.1 (20.4) million.
The overdraft facility agr eements are in force until fur ther notice. At ye ar end, the companyÕs EUR 200 million
commer cial paper pr ogr amme had been dr awn in the amount of EUR 7.0 (27.0) million. The credit available fr om the
loan facilities is subject to variable r ates and the related inter est rate risk is managed thr ough deriva tive instruments.

The average rate of inter est (including commitment fees) paid by the Gr oup was 3.5 (3.1) per cent at the balance sheet
date.

The companyÕs current loan agr eements are subject to the net ge aring ratio financial covenant. F inanciers are provided
with quar terly repor ts on the observance of the financial loan covenant. If the Gr oup is in br each of the covenant, the
creditor may demand acceler ated loan r epayment. Management monitors the fulfillment of the loan covenant on a
regular basis. On 31 December , the financial covenant was well below the covenant level.
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Group management has identified no significant concentr ations of liquidity risk in financial assets or sour ces of funding.

THE NUMBER OF THE GROUP'S COMMITMENTS ON THE BALANCE SHEET D ATE
BY TYPE OF CREDIT

2016

Credit type Size In use Available

Overdraft facility 20.2 0.1 20.1

Credit limit 100.0 0.0 100.0

Total 120.2 0.1 120.1

2015

Credit type Size In use Available

Overdraft facility 20.4 0.0 20.4

Credit limit 100.0 0.0 100.0

Total 120.4 0.0 120.4

The following table analyses the Gr oupÕs financial liabilities and net-set tled deriva tive financial liabilities into
relevant maturity gr oupings based on the r emaining period on the balance sheet da te to the contr actual
maturity da te. Derivative financial liabilities ar e included in the analysis if their contr actual maturities are essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. Ex cept for inter est rate deriva tives, the amounts disclosed
in the table ar e the contr actual undiscounted cash flows.

Maturity analysis only applies to financial instruments and sta tutory liabilities ar e therefore excluded. The
amounts also include inter est on financial liabilities and mar gin on loan.
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31 DEC. 2016

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Cashflows

Credit type

Balance sheet

31 Dec. 2016

Cashflows

sum 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 >2021

Bond 99.7 111.0 3.7 3.7 103.7 - - -

Bank loans 15.7 16.5 0.3 0.3 0.3 15.7 - -

Pension loans 15.0 15.9 7.6 5.3 3.0 0.0 - -

Commer cial paper pr ogr amme 7.0 7.7 7.7 - - - - -

Other borr owing 6.7 6.8 5.4 0.7 0.7 - - -

Trade and other payables 245.3 245.3 245.3 - - - - -

Total 389.4 403.2 269.9 9.9 107.6 15.8 0.0 0.0

31 DEC. 2015

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Cashflows

Credit type

Balance sheet

31 Dec. 2015

Cashflows

sum 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 >2020

Bond 99.5 114.7 3.7 3.7 3.7 103.7 - -

Bank loans 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1

Pension loans 22.1 23.7 7.8 7.6 5.3 3.0 - -

Commer cial paper pr ogr amme 27.0 27.0 27.0 - - - - -

Other borr owing 4.9 4.9 4.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Trade and other payables 199.3 199.3 199.3 - - - - -

Total 353.1 369.9 242.8 11.3 9.0 106.7 0.0 0.1

The following table pr esents the nominal value and fair values (EUR million) of deriva tive instruments. The
derivatives mature within the ne xt 12 months except for inter est rate deriva tives and commodity deriva tives, the
maturity of which is pr esented separ ately.
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2016 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015

Positive
fair

value

Nega tive
fair

value

Fair
value

net

Fair
value

net
Nominal

value
Nominal

value

Inter est rate deriva tives - -13.4 -13.4 -14.0 126.9 128.5

matured in 2016 - -

matures in 2017 - -0.3 -0.3 -0.4 5.2 5.4

matures in 2018 - -0.8 -0.8 -1.1 15.7 16.3

matuers in 2019 - -1.6 -1.6 -1.6 25.2 25.4

matures in 2020 - -2.7 -2.7 -2.9 25.5 25.9

matures in >2020 - -8.0 -8.0 -8.1 55.2 55.4

of which defined as cash flow hedging instruments - -13.4 -13.4 -14.0 126.9 128.5

Foreign e xhange deriva tives 0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 43.6 57.7

of which defined as net investment hedging
instruments - - - - - -

Commodity deriva tives 0.6 -0.5 0.1 -2.9 7.2 8.1

matured in 2016 -1.6 3.6

matures in 2017 0.3 -0.3 -0.0 -0.9 3.8 2.8

matures in 2018 0.2 -0.1 0.1 -0.3 1.9 1.2

matuers in 2019 0.1 -0.1 0.1 -0.1 1.1 0.5

matures in 2020 0.0 0.0 0.0 - 0.4 -

of which defined as cash flow hedging instruments 0.6 -0.5 0.1 -2.9 7.2 8.1

DERIVATIVES TO WHICH HEDGE A CCOUNTING APPLIES

Changes in the fair values after taxes of interest rate swaps designated as hedges of cash flow amounting to EUR 0.5
(1.2) million ar e recognized under other compr ehensive income. All inter est rate deriva tives are designa ted as hedging
instruments of cash flow to which hedging accounting is applied.

Changes in the fair values of the ef fective por tions after taxes of commodity deriva tives designa ted as hedges of cash
flow amounting to EUR 2.0 (-0.9) million ar e recognized under other compr ehensive income. The hedged highly
probable tr ansactions are estimated to occur a t various dates during the ne xt 60 months. Gains and losses accumulated
in the hedging instruments r eserve are included as r eclassification adjustments in the income sta tement when the
hedged tr ansaction affects profit or loss. The ineffective por tion of commodity risk hedge amounting to EUR 0.5 (-0.1)
million ar e recognized under other oper ating e xpenses in the income sta tement.
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CAPITAL MANA GEMENT

The purpose of capital management in the Gr oup is to suppor t business through an optimal capital structur e by
safeguarding a normal oper ating envir onment and enabling or ganic and structur al growth. An optimal capital structur e
also generates lower costs of capital.

Capital structur e is influenced by contr olling the amount of working capital tied up in the business and thr ough
repor ted pr ofit/loss, distribution of dividend and shar e issues. The Group may also decide on the disposal of assets to
reduce liabilities.

The tools to monitor the development of the Gr oupÕs capital structure are the equity r atio and net ge aring ratio . Equity
ratio refers to the ratio of equity to total assets. Net ge aring ratio is measured as net liabilities divided by equity . Net
liabilities include inter est-bearing liabilities less inter est-bearing shor t term receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

On the balance sheet da te the equity r atio is 47.9 per cent. The target in r espect of net ge aring ratio is below 100 per
cent. On the balance sheet da te, the net ge aring ratio was 33.5 per cent.

NET GEARING RATIO

2016 2015

Interest-bearing liabilities 144.1 153.8

Interest-bearing shor t-term r eceivables 0.2 0.2

Cash and bank 6.6 9.5

Interest-bearing net liabilities 137.2 144.0

Equity 409.7 425.8

Net ge aring ratio 33.5 % 33.8 %
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26. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THE FAIR VALUE DETERMINATION PRINCIPLES APPLIED BY THE GROUP ON ALL
FINANCIAL INS TRUMENTS

When determining the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities, the following price quota tions, assumptions and
measurement models have been used.

Available-for -sale financial assets

Unlisted investments in shar es were measured at acquisition cost because it was not possible to me asure them at fair
value using the methods of me asurement or their amount was low .

Deriva tives

The fair values of currency forward contr acts are determined by using the mark et prices for contr acts of equal dur ation
at the repor ting da te. The fair values of inter est rate swaps are determined using the net pr esent value method
suppor ted by the mark et inter est rate or other mark et informa tion at the repor ting da te. If the market value given by a
counterpar ty is used, the Group also pr oduces its own calcula tion using gener ally accepted valua tion methods. T he fair
values of commodity deriva tives are determined by using publicly quoted mark et prices. The fair values are equal to the
prices which the Gr oup would have to pay or would obtain if it wer e to termina te a derivative instrument.

Bank loans

The fair values of liabilities ar e based on the discounted cash flows. T he rate used for me asurement is the rate at which
the Group could obtain corr esponding cr edit fr om a third par ty on the repor ting da te. The overall rate consists of a risk
free rate and a risk premium (mar gin on loan) for the company .

Finance le ase liabilities

The fair value is measured by discounting futur e cash flows by an interest rate which corr esponds to the inter est rate of
future leases.

Trade and other r eceivables

The original carrying amounts of non-deriva tive based receivables are equal to their fair values, as discounting has no
material ef fect taking into account the ma turity of the r eceivables.

Trade and other payables

The original carrying amounts of tr ade and other payables ar e equal to their fair values, as discounting has no ma terial
effect taking into account the ma turity of the payables.

Fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities me asured at fair value. Fair values at end of r epor ting period.
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Fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities me asured at fair value. Fair values at end of r epor ting
period.

31 Dec. 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets recognised a t fair value through pr ofit or
loss

Trading securities - - - -

Trading deriva tives

Interest rate swaps - - - -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Commodity deriva tives 0.6 - 0.6 -

of which subject to cash flow hedging 0.6 - 0.6 -

Total 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.0

Liabilities me asured at fair value

Financial assets recognised a t fair value through pr ofit or
loss

Trading deriva tives

Interest rate swaps -13.4 0.0 -13.4 0.0

of which subject to cash flow hedging -13.4 0.0 -13.4 0.0

Foreign exchange deriva tives -0.3 0.0 -0.3 0.0

Commodity deriva tives -0.5 0.0 -0.5 0.0

of which subject to cash flow hedging -0.5 0.0 -0.5 0.0

Total -14.2 0.0 -14.2 0.0
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31 Dec. 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets recognised a t fair value through pr ofit or
loss

Trading securities - - - -

Trading deriva tives

Interest rate swaps - - - -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Commodity deriva tives - - - -

Total 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Liabilities me asured at fair value

Financial assets recognised a t fair value through pr ofit or
loss

Trading deriva tives

Interest rate swaps -14.0 0.0 -14.0 0.0

of which subject to cash flow hedging -14.0 0.0 -14.0 0.0

Foreign exchange deriva tives -0.3 0.0 -0.3 0.0

Commodity deriva tives -2.9 0.0 -2.9 0.0

of which subject to cash flow hedging -2.9 0.0 -2.9 0.0

Total -17.2 0.0 -17.2 0.0

The quoted prices of L evel 1 foreign exchange and commodity deriva tives are based on prices quoted on the
market. The fair values of Level 2 instruments ar e to a significant degr ee based on inputs other than the quoted
prices included in L evel 1 but nonetheless observable for the r elevant asset or liability either dir ectly or indir ectly
(derived fr om prices). In determining the fair value of these instruments, the Gr oup uses gener ally accepted
measurement models, the inputs of which ar e nonetheless to a consider able degr ee based on observable
market informa tion. The fair values of Level 3 instruments are based on inputs which ar e not based on
observable mark et informa tion; r ather to a significant degr ee on the Management estima tes and measurement
models gener ally acceptable for their use.
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27. O THER LEASES

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group le ases many of its premises. The leases have usually been made until fur ther notice and normally
include the possibility to continue the agr eement af ter the original da te of termina tion. Leases generally include
an index clause. In addition, other r ent commitments include various machinery and equipment. T he lengths of
these leases are from thr ee to five years on average.

Minimum r ents payable on the basis of irr evocable le ase agreements:

Other r ent commitments 2016 2015

Maturing in less than a year 6.5 6.7

Maturing in 1Ð5 years 14.5 16.4

Maturing in over 5 ye ars 10.7 13.4

Other r ent commitments, total 31.7 36.5

Rent r eceivables on other irr evocable le ase agr eements

Maturing in less than a year 0.0 0.1

Maturing in 1Ð5 years 0.0 0.1

Maturing in over 5 ye ars 0.0 0.0

Rent r eceivables, total 0.0 0.1
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28. CONDITIONAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND
PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

Commitments and contingent liabilities 2016 2015

Loans secured by mor tgages - 0.2

On own behalf

Mor tgages given - 0.4

Assets pledged 3.2 3.2

On behalf of others

Guarantees 5.6 5.9

Other commitments 7.4 7.5

Leasing commitments

Leasing commitments ma turing in less than a year 3.5 4.6

Leasing commitments ma turing in 1Ð5 years 4.0 6.3

Leasing commitments ma turing in over 5 ye ars 0.0 0.1

Total 23.7 24.7

Eura facility will be closed af ter Rauma facility has been completed in 2017. P rocedur es related to Eura facility
after the pr oduction has ended ar e still being investiga ted. Alterna tives are selling, renting, r enovation and
demolition. Because futur e use is open, potential r enovation or demolition obliga tion cannot be me asured yet
with sufficient r eliability . Due to this no pr ovision has been recorded.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are consider ed related par ties if one of the par ties is able to exercise control or a significant
influence over the other in decisions af fecting its finances and business. The GroupÕs related par ties
include the associa tes and joint ventur es. Related par ties also include the Supervisory Boar d and Board
of Directors of the Gr oup par entÕs parent entity (LSO Osuuskunta), the members of the Gr oupÕs Board of
Directors, the GroupÕs CEO, the deputy CEO and their immedia te family members, as well as the
members of the Gr oup Management T eam. The Group strives to tr eat all parties equally in its business.

HKScan Corpor ationÕs principal owner , LSO Osuuskunta, is a cooperative of 1 300 Finnish meat
producers. The cooper ative fosters its membersÕ meat production and mark eting by e xercising its power
of ownership in HKScan. Today, LSO Osuuskunta has no actual business, but receives an income in the
form of dividend paid by HKScan and, to a lesser e xtent, income in the form of other investments and
rents. The HKScan Group applies pur e market price principles to the acquisition of r aw meat material.

The sale of animals to the Group by members of the Gr oupÕs Board of Dir ectors and members of the
Supervisory Board and Board of Dir ectors of its par ent entity LSO Osuuskunta totalled EUR 13.8 (13.5)
million. Said persons pur chased animals from the Gr oup with EUR 4.3 (4.4) million.

Information on employee benefits of the Management ar e presented in Note 4. Mor e informa tion on
fees of the Board of Dir ectors and the Management is available in the r emuner ation statement for 2016,
which can be found on the Gr oupÕs website.

Related par ty individuals ar e not otherwise in a ma terial business relationship with the company .

Shares in subsidiaries Number of shar es Owner -%

Owned by the Gr oup's par ent company

HKScan Finland Oy , Finland 1 000 100.00

HKScan Sweden AB, Sweden 500 000 100.00

HKScan Denmark A/S, Denmark 102 002 100.00

AS HKScan Estonia, Estonia 37 721 700 100.00

UAB HKScan Lietuva, Lithuania 2 000 100.00

AS HKScan Latvia, Latvia 155 920 99.52

HKScan UK Ltd, the UK 999 100.00

HKScan Asia Limited, Hong Kong 10 000 100.00

OOO HKScan, Russia 1 100.00

Owned by HKScan F inland Oy

KivikylŠn Kotipalvaamo Oy , Finland 49 49,00*

Lihatukku Harri Tamminen Oy , Finland 49 49,00*

Paimion Teurastamo Oy, Finland 25 50,00*
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Owned by AS HKScan Estonia

Rakvere Farmid AS, Estonia 6 984 100.00

Owned by HKScan Sweden AB

HKScan Real Estate AB, Sweden 80 000 100.00

Nordic Genetics AB, Sweden 1 000 100.00

HKScan International AB, Sweden 10 100.00

HKScan Poland Sp.zo.o, Poland 5 000 100.00

Samfood S.A., Belgium 24 999 100.00

Owned by HKScan R eal Estate AB

HKScan Real Estate Halmstad AB, Sweden 3 900 100.00

Owned by HKScan Denmark A/S

Kreatina A/S, Denmark 30 000 100.00

* Control is based on shareholders' agr eement / boar d selection.

Shares and holdings in associa ted companies Number of shar es Owner -%

Owned by the Gr oup's par ent company

Lihateollisuuden T utkimuskeskus, Finland** 2 600 5.2*

Owned by HKScan F inland Oy

LŠnsi-Kalkkuna Oy, Finland 250 50.00

Pakastamo Oy, Finland 660 50.00

Lihateollisuuden T utkimuskeskus, Finland** 22 400 44.80*

Honkajoki Oy, Finland 900 50.00

Envor Biotech Oy, Finland 128 24.62

Finnpig Oy , Finland 40 50.00

Oy LHP Bio-Carbon LTD, Finland 32 24.24

DanHatch Finland Oy , Finland 250 20.00

Owned by HKScan Sweden AB

Industrislakt Syd AB, Sweden 50 000 50.00

Siljans Chark AB, Sweden 3 680 39.30

AB TillvŠxt for svensk animalieproduktion, Sweden 135 500 50.00

Svenska Kšt tforetagen Holding AB, Sweden 48 000 24.00
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Owned by HKScan Denmark A/S

Tican-Rose GmbH, Germany 1 50.00

HRP Kyllingefarme I/S, Denmark 752 50.00

Farmfood A/S, Denmark 10 000 33.30

* The Group has a total of 50 per cent ownership in Liha teollisuuden T utkimuskeskus.

** Joint ventur e

The Group conducts business thr ough the associa tes. The activities include slaughtering, cut ting, me at
processing, and the use of le asing, waste disposal, research and advisory services. All commer cial
contracts are negotia ted on mark et terms.

The following tr ansactions wer e carried out with r ela ted par ties

2016 2015

Product sales to associates 46.9 70.1

Sales of animals to related par ties 4.3 4.4

Product pur chases from associates 39.2 46.6

Purchases of animals from related par ties 13.8 13.5

Open balances on 31 December 2016 2015

Trade receivables from associates 2.2 1.4

Trade payables to associates 5.1 5.3

30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 13 January 2017, HKScan lowered its outlook for 2016.

On 19 January 2017, HKScan announced that it had acquir ed the remaining 50% of Paimion Teurastamo (Paimio
Slaughterhouse). HKScan Finland had acquir ed a 50% holding in the company in summer 2015.

On 8 February 2017, HKScan informed on r enewing its Gr oup Leadership Team and simultaneously initia ting a review
of its oper ating model.

On 8 February 2017, HKScan informed about plans to embark on a par tial re-organization of its oper ations as part of the
review of its oper ating model. T he potential impacts on personnel of the planned oper ating model r enewal and
planned ef ficiency upgr ades will be assessed in Group-wide sta tutory negotia tions.

HKSCAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016
Financials / Financial statements / Notes to the financial sta tements /
Notes to the balance sheet

This page is gener ated fr om HKScan's online annual repor t 2016. Please visit annualrepor t2016.hk scan.com for the full r epor t. 165



PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS

PARENT COMPANY INC OME STATEMENT
FOR 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER

(EUR)

Note 2016 2015

Net sales - -

Other oper ating income 1. 15 588 679.33 12 645 817.13

Materials and services - -

Employee costs 2. -12 375 388.66 -10 457 922.74

Depreciation and impairment 3. -440 787.30 -428 732.42

Other oper ating e xpenses 4. -17 866 571.89 -13 874 006.22

EBIT -15 094 068.52 -12 114 844.25

Financial income and e xpenses 5. 19 878 367.40 21 841 420.92

Profit/loss befor e appr opria tions and tax es 4 784 298.88 9 726 576.67

Appr opria tions 6. 27 043 868.00 2 225.00

Income taxes 7. -3 184 475.97 973 883.04

Profit/loss for the period 28 643 690.91 10 702 684.71
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
31 DECEMBER

(EUR)

Note 2016 2015

ASSETS

Intangible assets 8. 947 533.00 833 393.00

Tangible assets 8. 5 285 476.38 2 204 453.24

Financial assets 8. 290 902 232.22 290 949 324.83

Non-curr ent assets 297 135 241.60 293 987 171.07

Non-curr ent receivables 9. 280 427 953.28 312 706 893.63

Deferred tax asset 9. 7 146 667.32 9 311 035.52

Current receivables 10. 37 889 826.62 8 287 845.59

Cash and cash equivalents 3 739 752.69 6 814 821.73

Curr ent assets 329 204 199.91 337 120 596.47

Assets 626 339 441.51 631 107 767.54

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital 11. 66 820 528.10 66 820 528.10

Share premium r eserve 11. 73 420 363.20 73 420 363.20

Treasury shares 11. -38 612.12 -38 612.12

Fair value reserve 11. -6 785 666.27 -1 538 202.49

RIUE 11. 143 202 868.19 143 075 845.19

Other r eserves 11. 4 805 464.95 4 792 003.12

Retained e arnings 11. 135 540 268.88 132 448 994.52

Profit/loss for the period 11. 28 643 690.91 10 702 684.71

Equity 445 608 905.84 429 683 604.23

Accumula ted appr opria tions 12. 199 794.00 243 662.00

Provisions 13. 2 771 403.00 2 857 979.00
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Deferred tax liability 14. - 329 308.75

Non-curr ent inter est-bearing liabilities 14. 125 154 844.63 117 500 005.00

Non-curr ent non-inter est-bearing liabilities 14. 124 669.00 -

Current inter est-bearing liabilities 15. 35 567 942.50 74 635 632.23

Current non-inter est-bearing liabilities 15. 16 911 882.54 5 857 576.33

Liabilities 177 759 338.67 198 322 522.31

Equity and liabilities 626 339 441.51 631 107 767.54
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PARENT COMPANY CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(EUR 1 000)

2016 2015

EBIT -15 094 -12 115

Adjustments to EBIT 1 245 1 320

Depreciation and impairment 441 429

Change in pr ovisions -87 -103

Change in net working capital 961 2 023

Interest income and e xpenses 7 113 6 046

Dividends r eceived 16 153 15 210

Taxes -30 -132

Cash flow fr om oper ating activities 10 702 12 678

Purchases of shares in subsidiary - -1

Purchase of other fix ed assets -3 636 -1 655

Disposals of other fix ed assets - 98

Repayments of loans r eceivable 30 844 2 364

Cash flow fr om investing activities 27 208 805

Cash flow befor e financing activities 37 910 13 483

Proceed fr om external borr owings 57 613 62 769

Repayment of e xternal borr owings -91 036 -54 230

Dividends paid -7 562 -26 447

Cash flow fr om financing activities -40 985 -17 908

Change in cash and cash equivalents -3 075 -4 425

Cash and cash equivalents on 1 Jan. 6 815 11 240

Cash and cash equivalents on 31 Dec. 3 740 6 815
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CHANGE IN WORKING CAPITAL:

Increase (-) / decrease (+) in current oper ating r eceivables -376 2 239

Increase (+) / decrease (-) in current non-inter est-bearing liabilities 1 337 -215

Total 961 2 023
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANYÕS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIC INFORMA TION ABOUT THE ENTITY
HKScan Corpor ation is a Finnish public limited company established under the law of F inland. The Company is
domiciled in T urku.

HKScan Corpor ation comprises Gr oup management and Gr oup administr ation.

HKScan Corpor ationÕs A Share has been quoted on the Nasdaq Helsinki since 1997.

HKScan Corpor ation is a subsidiary of LSO Osuuskunta and par t of the LSO Osuuskunta Group . LSO Osuuskunta is
domiciled in T urku.

Copies of HKScan Corpor ationÕs financial statements are available at the companyÕs registered of fice at
Lemmink Šisenkatu 48, 20520 Turku.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION
The parent companyÕs financial statements have been pr epared in compliance with valid F innish Accounting S tandards
(FAS). The HKScan GroupÕs consolidated financial sta tements have been pr epared in compliance with the IFRS
(International Financial Repor ting Standards) and the IAS and IFRS standards and SIC and IFRIC interpretations valid on
31 December 2016.

The amounts in the par ent company income sta tement and balance sheet ar e in euros and the amounts in the cash flow
statement and notes ar e in thousands of eur os.

TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign curr ency denomina ted tr ansactions are recognized a t the exchange rates valid on the tr ansaction date. Trade
receivables, trade payables and loan r eceivables denoted in for eign curr encies and foreign curr ency bank accounts
have been tr anslated into the functional curr ency at the closing r ate quoted by the Eur ope an Central Bank on the
balance sheet da te. Gains and losses arising from business transactions in foreign curr encies and from the tr anslation of
monetary items have been r ecognized in financial income and e xpenses in the income sta tement.

DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS
HKScan Oyj makes all external deriva tive contr acts for the Group . Derivatives that are made for subsidiaries ar e handled
with inter company deriva tive contr acts. Because of this HKScan Oyj has all the external deriva tives of the Group and
these are partly for the par ent company and par tly for subsidiaries.

Outstanding deriva tives in foreign curr encies are measured at the forwar d exchange rate quoted on the balance sheet
date. Hedge accounting is not applied and changes in the value of for eign exchange contr acts hedging commer cial
flows are recognized thr ough pr ofit or loss in other oper ating income or e xpenses, and changes in the value of for eign
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exchange contr acts hedging financial items ar e recognized in the income sta tement in for eign exchange gains and
losses from financing oper ations.

Commodity deriva tives all relate to subsidiaries and inter company deriva tives have been made. There is no income
statement ef fect as the cash flows from the deriva tives are elimina ted by the inter company deriva tive contr acts with
subsidiaries. Hedge accounting is not applied. F air values of these deriva tives are netted in the balance sheet and they
are repor ted in the notes.

Hedge accounting is applied on inter est rate swaps for the par t that they hedge par ent companyÕs interest risk. The fair
values of the deriva tives are recorded in the balance sheet and changes in the fair values ar e recorded in the equity .
Realised gains or losses on inter est rate swaps hedging variable-inter est loans are presented under financial items in
the income sta tement. Hedge accounting is not applied on e xternal inter est rate swaps that relate to subsidiaries and
intercompany deriva tives. Income statement ef fect is elimina ted by the inter company deriva tive contr act with
subsidiaries. Fair values of these deriva tives are netted in the balance sheet and they ar e repor ted in the notes.

The fair values of currency forward contr acts are determined by using the mark et prices for contr acts of equal dur ation
at the repor ting da te. The fair values of inter est rate swaps are determined using the net pr esent value method
suppor ted by the mark et inter est rate or other mark et informa tion at the repor ting da te. If the market value given by a
counterpar ty is used, the company also pr oduces its own calcula tion using gener ally accepted valua tion methods. T he
fair values of commodity deriva tives are determined by using publicly quoted mark et prices. The fair values are equal to
the prices which the company would have to pay or would obtain if it wer e to termina te a derivative instrument.

PENSION PLANS
HKScan Corpor ation employeesÕ statutory pension pr ovision has been or ganised thr ough insur ance in a pension
insurance company . Statutory pension e xpenses have been charged in the ye ar to which the contributions r elate.

MANA GEMENT RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS AND SEVERANCE
PAYMENTS
The remuner ation of the CEO consists of a fix ed monthly salary , benefits, supplementary pension benefits and possible
incentive awards under the companyÕs incentive scheme. Under the terms of the CEOÕs executive agr eement, the CEOÕs
employment may be termina ted by the company and the CEO a t six monthsÕ notice. In the event that the company
termina tes the CEOÕs executive agr eement, the CEO will r eceive an amount tha t equals 12 monthsÕ salary, in addition to
the salary for the period of notice.

On 20 January 2016, HKScan announced that Hannu Kottonen will discontinue his duties as CEO of HKScan as of tha t
day. In 2016, CEO Hannu Kottonen was paid a total salary and supplementary pension benefits of EUR 1.3 million.

In the interim, Aki Laiho , deputy CEO and C OO, tempor arily assumed the position of CEO . In 2016, deputy CEO and
COO Aki Laiho was paid a total salary and supplementary pension benefits of EUR 0.5 million.

Jari Latvanen started as the new President and CEO of HKScan on 31 October . In 2016, CEO Jari Latvanen was paid a
total salary and supplementary pension benefits of EUR 0.4 million.

INCOME TAXES
Consolida ted accounting principles ar e applied to income tax es and deferr ed tax assets and liabilities when allowed
under Finnish accounting principles. T he deferr ed tax liability on depr eciation dif ference is disclosed as a Note.

LEASES
All leasing payments have been tr eated as rent. Leasing payments based on unpaid le asing agreements are shown in
contingent liabilities in the financial sta tements.
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ACCUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS
Accumula ted appr opria tions consist of change in depr eciation dif ference. The dif ference in depr eciation accor ding to
plan and accounting depr eciation is shown as an appropria tion in the income sta tement and the accumula ted
dif ference in depr eciation accor ding to plan and accounting depr eciation is shown in the balance sheet as accumula ted
appr opria tions.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY'S
INCOME STATEMENT

(EUR 1 000)

1. OTHER OPERATING INCOME, TOTAL

2016 2015

Rental income - 1

Other oper ating income 15 589 12 628

Gain on disposal of non-curr ent assets - 17

Other oper ating income, total 15 589 12 646

Employees, average 106 99

2. STAFF COSTS

2016 2015

Salaries and fees -10 273 -8 475

Pension expenses -1 664 -1 400

Other social e xpenses -438 -583

Staf f costs -12 375 -10 458

Managing dir ectors and their deputies 1 979 997

Members of the Boar d of Dir ectors 316 297

Management salaries, fees and benefits 2 295 1 294
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3. DEPRECIATION AND IMP AIRMENT

2016 2015

Depreciation accor ding to plan on non-curr ent assets and goodwill -441 -429

Total depr ecia tion and impairment -441 -429

4. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2016 2015

Rents/le ases -1 380 -1 381

Losses on disposal of fixed assets, tangible assets total 0 -1

Losses on disposal of non-curr ent assets 0 -1

Audit fees, or dinary audit -224 -95

Audit fees, other e xpert services -385 -23

Audit fees -609 -118

Non-statutory staf f costs -2 166 -2 076

Energy -93 -84

Maintenance -39 -39

Adver tising, mark eting and enter tainment costs -985 -770

Service, information management and of fice costs -9 523 -5 783

Other e xpenses -3 072 -3 622

Total other oper ating e xpenses -17 867 -13 874
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5. FINANCIAL INC OME AND EXPENSES

2016 2015

Financial income

Dividends fr om Group companies 16 145 15 208

Dividends fr om par ticipa ting inter ests 8 -

Income fr om units 16 153 15 208

Interest income fr om Group companies 14 994 16 247

Interest income fr om par ticipa ting inter ests 3 2

Interest income fr om others 20 26

Inter est income fr om other non-curr ent financial assets 15 017 16 275

Other financial income fr om others 4 062 7 246

Other financial income 4 062 7 246

Total financial income 35 232 38 730

Financial e xpenses

Interest expenses payable to Gr oup companies -1 -36

Interest expenses payable to others -8 283 -8 329

Total other inter est and financial e xpenses -8 284 -8 365

Unrealised losses on fair value assessment -1 696 -487

Other financial e xpense from others -5 374 -8 036

Other financial e xpense -5 374 -8 036

Total financial e xpenses -15 354 -16 888

Financial income and e xpenses, total 19 878 21 841
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6. APPROPRIATIONS

2016 2015

Increase (-) or decrease (+) in depreciation dif ference 44 2

Group contribution income 27 000 -

Total appr opria tions 27 044 2

7. DIRECT TAXES

2016 2015

Tax for previous financial periods - -91

Change in deferr ed tax liabilities and assets -3 154 1 105

Other dir ect taxes -30 -40

Income tax on or dinary oper ations -3 184 974
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY'S BALANCE SHEET

8. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 2016
Intellectual

pr oper ty rights
Other long-term

expenditur e Total

Acquisition cost on 1 J an. 2 275 661 2 936

Increase 91 - 91

Transfers between items 324 - 324

Acquisition cost on 31 Dec. 2 690 661 3 351

Accumula ted depr eciation on 1 J an. -1 830 -272 -2 102

Depreciation for the financial period -169 -133 -302

Accumula ted depr ecia tion on 31 Dec. -1 999 -405 -2 404

Carrying amount on 31 Dec. 691 256 947

Intangible assets 2015
Intellectual

pr oper ty rights
Other long-term

expenditur e Total

Acquisition cost on 1 J an. 2 155 352 2 507

Increase 120 32 152

Transfers between items - 277 277

Acquisition cost on 31 Dec. 2 275 661 2 936

Accumula ted depr eciation on 1 J an. -1 677 -181 -1 859

Depreciation for the financial period -153 -91 -244

Accumula ted depr ecia tion on 31 Dec. -1 830 -272 -2 103

Carrying amount on 31 Dec. 445 388 833
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Tangible assets 2016

Machinery
and

equipment

Other
tangible

assets
Pre-

payments Total

Acquisition cost on 1 J an. 1 204 380 1 675 3 259

Increase - - 3 545 3 545

Decrease - - -324 -324

Acquisition cost on 31 Dec. 1 204 380 4 896 6 480

Accumula ted depr eciation on 1 J an. -686 -367 0 -1 053

Accumula ted depr eciation of disposals and r eclassifications - - - -

Depreciation for the financial period -140 - - -140

Accumula ted depr ecia tion on 31 Dec. -826 -367 0 -1 193

Carrying amount on 31 Dec. 378 13 4 896 5 287

Tangible assets 2015

Machinery
and

equipment

Other
tangible

assets
Pre-

payments Total

Acquisition cost on 1 J an. 1 209 380 606 2 195

Increase 65 - 1 438 1 503

Decrease -162 - 0 -162

Transfers between items 92 - -369 -277

Acquisition cost on 31 Dec. 1 204 380 1 675 3 259

Accumula ted depr eciation on 1 J an. -600 -349 0 -949

Accumula ted depr eciation of disposals and r eclassifications 81 - - 81

Depreciation for the financial period -167 -18 - -185

Accumula ted depr ecia tion on 31 Dec. -686 -367 0 -1 053

Carrying amount on 31 Dec. 518 13 1 675 2 206
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Financial assets 2016

Holdings
in Gr oup

associates
Holdings in

associates

Receivables
from

associates
Other shar es
and holdings Total

Acquisition cost on 1 J an. 290 738 148 47 16 290 949

Increase - - - - -

Decrease - - -47 - -47

Acquisition cost on 31 Dec. 290 738 148 0 16 290 902

Carrying amount on 31 Dec. 290 738 148 0 16 290 902

Financial assets 2015

Holdings
in Gr oup

associates
Holdings in

associates

Receivables
from

associates
Other shar es
and holdings Total

Acquisition cost on 1 J an. 290 737 148 47 16 290 948

Increase 1 - - - 1

Acquisition cost on 31 Dec. 290 738 148 47 16 290 949

Carrying amount on 31 Dec. 290 738 148 47 16 290 949

Intangible assets 2016 2015

Intellectual pr oper ty rights 691 445

Other long-term e xpenditur e 256 388

Intangible assets 947 833

Tangible assets

Machinery and equipment 378 518

Other tangible assets 13 13

Payments on account and tangible assets in the course of construction 4 896 1 675

Tangible assets 5 287 2 206

Financial assets

Holdings in Gr oup companies 290 738 290 738

Holdings in associa tes 148 148

Receivables from par ticipa ting inter ests - 47

Other shares and holdings 16 16

Financial assets 290 902 290 949

Total non-curr ent assets 297 136 293 988
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9. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

Non-curr ent loan receivables 834 1 007

Deferred tax assets 7 147 9 311

Other r eceivables 347 459

Prepayments and accrued income 150 -

Total 8 478 10 777

RECEIVABLES FROM GROUP COMPANIES

Non-curr ent Group loan r eceivables 279 096 311 241

Non-curr ent r eceivables fr om Gr oup companies 279 096 311 241

Total non-curr ent r eceivables 287 574 322 018
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10. CURRENT RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

Trade receivables - 5

Short-term receivables (from others) 5 65

Short-term pr epayments fr om accrued income (fr om others) 605 345

Total 610 415

RECEIVABLES FROM GROUP COMPANIES

Trade receivables 403 22

Loan receivables 9 521 7 168

Other r eceivables 205 522

Group contribution r eceivables 27 000 -

Total 37 129 7 712

RECEIVABLES FROM PARTICIPATING INTERESTS

Loan receivables 150 150

Other r eceivables - 11

Shor t-term r eceivables fr om par ticipa ting inter ests 150 161

Total curr ent r eceivables 37 889 8 288

MAIN ITEMS INCLUDED IN PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

Accrued financial items 117 106

Accrued staf f costs 13 17

Other pr epayments and accrued income 475 222

Total 605 345
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11. EQUIT Y

Equity in 2016
Share

capital

Share
pr emium

reserve
Treasury

shares

Fair
value

reserve RIUE
Other

reserves
Retained
earnings Total

Equity on 1 Jan. 66 820 73 420 -38 -1 538 143 076 4 792 143 153 429 684

Increase - - - -6 786 127 13 - -6 646

Decrease - - - 1 538 - - - 1 538

Dividend distribution - - - - - - -7 562 -7 562

Direct recognition in
retained e arnings - - - - - - -49 -49

Profit for the period - - - - - - 28 644 28 644

Equity on 31 Dec. 66 820 73 420 -38 -6 786 143 203 4 805 164 186 445 609

Equity in 2015
Share

capital

Share
pr emium

reserve
Treasury

shares

Fair
value

reserve RIUE
Other

reserves
Retained
earnings Total

Equity on 1 Jan. 66 820 73 420 -38 -1 538 143 076 4 709 158 970 445 419

Increase - - - - - 83 - 83

Dividend distribution - - - - - - -26 447 -26 447

Direct recognition in
retained e arnings - - - - - - -73 -73

Profit for the period - - - - - - 10 703 10 703

Equity on 31 Dec. 66 820 73 420 -38 -1 538 143 076 4 792 143 153 429 684

Distributable equity 2016 2015

Contingency r eserve 527 513

Treasury shares -38 -38

Reserve for invested unr estricted equity 143 203 143 076

Retained e arnings 135 540 132 449

Profit/loss for the period 28 644 10 703

Distributable equity 307 876 286 703
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12. A CCUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS

2016 2015

Depreciation dif ference 200 244

Total appr opria tions 200 244

The unrecognized deferr ed tax liability on depr eciation dif ference is EUR 49 000.

13. STATUTORY PROVISIONS

2016 2015

Provisions for pensions 2 771 2 858

Statutory pr ovisions, total 2 771 2 858
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14. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2016 2015

Deferred tax liability - 329

Bond 100 000 100 000

Loans from financial institutions 23 560 15 000

Other liabilities 1 720 2 500

Total 125 280 117 829

Total non-curr ent liabilities 125 280 117 829

Interest-bearing

Amounts owed to others 125 155 117 500

Non-curr ent inter est-be aring liabilities 125 155 117 500

Non-inter est-bearing

Amounts owed to others 125 329

Non-curr ent non-inter est-be aring liabilities 125 329

Total non-curr ent liabilities 125 280 117 829
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15. CURRENT LIABILITIES

2016 2015

Loans from financial institutions 14 140 34 131

Trade payables 2 282 876

Accruals and deferr ed income 12 907 3 625

Other liabilities 1 479 1 098

Total 30 808 39 730

AMOUNTS OWED TO GROUP COMPANIES

Trade payables 149 218

Accruals and deferr ed income 95 41

Other liabilities 21 428 40 504

Total 21 672 40 763

Total curr ent liabilities 52 480 80 493

Interest-bearing

Current amounts owed to Gr oup companies 21 428 40 504

Amounts owed to others 14 140 34 131

Curr ent inter est-be aring liabilities 35 568 74 635

Non-inter est-bearing

Current amounts owed to Gr oup companies 244 259

Amounts owed to others 16 668 5 599

Curr ent non-inter est-be aring liabilities 16 912 5 858

Total curr ent liabilities 52 480 80 493
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MAIN ITEMS (NON-CURRENT AND CURRENT) INCLUDED IN ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED
INCOME

Accrued staf f costs 2 367 1 991

Accrued inter est expenses 634 681

Accrued changes in value of deriva tives 8 913 429

Other accruals and deferr ed income 952 524

Total 12 866 3 625

LIABILITIES DUE IN FIVE YEARS OR MORE

Loans from financial institutions - -

Pension loans - -

Other long-term liabilities - -

Liabilities due in mor e than five ye ars - -
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16. COMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Commitments and contingent liabilities 2016 2015

DEBTS SECURED BY MORTGAGES AND SHARES

Loans from financial institutions 0 0

Total 0 0

Real estate mor tgages 0 0

Total 0 0

SECURITY FOR DEBTS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND OTHER GROUP COMPANIES

Guarantees 20 163 29 710

Total 20 163 29 710

SECURITY FOR DEBTS OF PARTICIPATING INTERESTS

Guarantees 489 607

Total 489 607

SECURITY FOR DEBTS OF OTHERS

Guarantees 1 703 1 878

Total 1 703 1 878

OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Leasing commitments

Maturing in less than a year 215 222

Maturing in 1Ð5 years 209 198

Total 424 420

OTHER RENT COMMITMENTS

Maturing in less than a year 871 867

Maturing in 1Ð5 years 3 482 3 468

Maturing in mor e than five years 4 353 5 202

Total 8 706 9 537
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Other commitments 4 4

Total other contingencies 9 134 9 961

17. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

2016 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015

Positive
fair

value

Nega tive
fair

value

Fair
value

net

Fair
value

net
Nominal

value
Nominal

value

Inter est rate deriva tives 4 890.8 -13 434.1 -8 543.3 -8 907.7 70 936.9 71 764.0

matured in 2016 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matures in 2017 0.0 -251.2 -251.2 -366.2 5 234.2 5 441.0

matures in 2018 0.0 -753.5 -753.5 -1 098.7 15 702.7 16 323.0

matuers in 2019 1 620.5 -1 620.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matures in 2020 2 681.5 -2 681.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matures in >2020 588.8 -8 127.4 -7 538.6 -7 442.7 50 000.0 50 000.0

of which defined as cash flow hedging instruments 0.0 -8 543.3 -8 543.3 -8 907.7 70 936.9 71 764.0

Foreign e xhange deriva tives 304.2 -363.4 -59.2 -74.0 30 398.2 40 969.0

of which defined as net investment hedging
instruments - - - - - -

Commodity deriva tives 1 135.1 -1 135.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matured in 2016 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matures in 2017 622.4 -622.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matures in 2018 282.6 -282.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matuers in 2019 212.8 -212.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

matures in 2020 17.3 -17.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

of which defined as cash flow hedging instruments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Nominal values of e xternal deriva tives that are elimina ted due to inter company deriva tives are netted to zer o in
the table above. T he nominal values are EUR 13 162 (16 745) thousand foreign exchange deriva tives, EUR 7 271
(8 083) thousand commodity deriva tives, EUR 55 937 (56 764) thousand interest rate deriva tives.
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Fair value hier archy

31 Dec. 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivatives, positive fair value

Interest rate swaps 4 890.8 - 4 890.8 -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 304.2 - 304.2 -

Commodity deriva tives 1 135.1 - 1 135.1 -

Total 6 330.1 - 6 330.1 -

Derivatives, negative fair value

Interest rate swaps -13 434.1 - -13 434.1 -

Foreign exchange deriva tives -363.4 - -363.4 -

Commodity deriva tives -1 135.1 - -1 135.1 -

Total -14 932.6 - -14 932.6 -

31 Dec. 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivatives, positive fair value

Interest rate swaps 5 132.9 - 5 132.9 -

Foreign exchange deriva tives 296.0 - 296.0 -

Commodity deriva tives 2 900.9 - 2 900.9 -

Total 8 329.8 - 8 329.8 -

Derivatives, negative fair value

Interest rate swaps -14 040.6 - -14 040.6 -

Foreign exchange deriva tives -370.0 - -370.0 -

Commodity deriva tives -2 900.9 - -2 900.9 -

Total -17 311.5 - -17 311.5 -

The fair values of Level 1 instruments ar e based on prices quoted on the mark et. The fair values of Level 2
instruments are to a significant degr ee based on inputs other than the quoted prices included in L evel 1 but
nonetheless observable for the r elevant asset or liability either dir ectly or indir ectly (derived fr om prices). In
determining the fair value of these instruments, the company uses gener ally accepted me asurement models, the
inputs of which ar e nonetheless to a consider able degr ee based on observable mark et informa tion. The fair
values of Level 3 instruments ar e based on inputs which ar e not based on observable mark et informa tion; r ather
to a significant degr ee on management estima tes and measurement models gener ally acceptable for their use.
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SIGNATURES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
AND REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Vantaa, 27 February 2017

Mikk o Nik ula
Chairman of the Boar d

Niels Borup
Deputy chairman of the Boar d

Henrik T reschow
Member of the Boar d

Pirjo V Šliaho
Member of the Boar d

Teija Andersen
Member of the Boar d

Jari Latvanen
CEO
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AUDITORÕS NOTE

A repor t on the audit carried out has been submit ted today .

Vantaa, 1 March 2017

PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy

Authorized Public Accountants

Jouko Malinen
APA
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AUDITORÕS REPORT

(TRANSLATION FROM THE FINNISH ORIGINAL)

To the Annual Gener al Meeting of HKScan Oyj

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION
In our opinion,

¥ the consolida ted financial sta tements give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows of the gr oup in accor dance with Interna tional Financial Repor ting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the EU

¥ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the par ent companyÕs financial performance and financial
position in accor dance with the laws and r egula tions governing the pr eparation of the financial sta tements in
Finland and comply with sta tutory r equir ements.

Wha t we have audited

We have audited the financial sta tements of HKScan Oyj (Business ID: 1951458-9) for the year ended 31 December ,
2016. The financial statements comprise:

¥ the consolida ted statement of financial position, sta tement of compr ehensive income, sta tement of changes
in equity and sta tement of cash flows, and notes to the consolida ted financial sta tements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies; and

¥ the parent companyÕs balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement and notes to the financial
statements

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accor dance with good auditing pr actice in Finland. Our r esponsibilities under good auditing
practice are further described in the Auditor Õs responsibilities for the audit of the financial sta tements section of our
repor t.

We believe tha t the audit evidence we have obtained is suf ficient and appr opria te to pr ovide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the par ent company and of the gr oup in accor dance with the ethical r equir ements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial sta tements in Finland, and we have fulfilled our other ethical r esponsibilities in
accordance with these r equir ements.
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